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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Kesoram Industries Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Kesoram
Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). OQur
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standaione financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.
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hs“';' Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
1 |Impairment assessment of | Principal audit procedures performed
investment in and Loans and
Advances to wholly owned [Our audit procedures, included validating

subsidiary (Cygnet Industries
Limited)

The Company's wholly owned
subsidiary (Cygnet Industries
Limited) involved in the business of
manufacturing Rayon and
Transparent paper, is not performing
well due to adverse business
conditions. As on March 31, 2022 the
Company has an investment of Rs.
926.54 crores and outstanding loans
of Rs. 154.46 crores in the said
subsidiary and has recognised
impairment loss on investment of Rs.
154.25 Crore during the year ended
31 March 2022  (Cumulative
impairment loss recognised as on 31
March 2022 amounts to Rs. 620.32
Crores).

The management at each reporting
date assesses if there are any
indicators that the investments in and
loans to the subsidiary is impaired
and, if indicators exist, performs an
impairment test on these investments
and loans by making an estimate of
recoverable amount, being the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. The recoverable amount of the
investment in and loan to subsidiary is

assessed based on complex
assumptions that require the
management to exercise their

judgment such as future expected
revenue, future expected revenue
growth rate, EBIDTA (earnings before
interest, depreciation and tax)
margins, future cash flow,
determination of historical trends, the
most appropriate discount rate.

We focused on this area due to
significant carrying amount of the
investment and loan to subsidiary and
the significant management
judgement and estimates involved in
evaluation of recoverable amount.

the appropriateness of the impairment

model

and reasonableness of the

assumptions used, focusing in particular on

the

business projections of Cygnet

Industries Limited through the following
procedures:

Obtained an understanding of controls
performed by the management to
assess impairment indicators and
perform impairment assessment,

Evaluated Design and Operating
Effectiveness of the management
controls over the impairment
assessment process and preparation
of impairment workings.

Benchmarked key market-related
assumptions in the models, including
discount rates and long-term growth
rates, against external data, using our
valuation specialists.

Involved our fair value specialists to
assist in the evaluation of the
appropriateness of the model for
calculating wvalue in use and
reasonableness of significant
assumptions like discount rate and
industry specific long-term growth
rates.

Tested the mathematical accuracy ang
performed sensitivity analysis in order
to assess the potential impact of
changes in the inputs used on the
recoverable amount,

Performed a detailed analysis of the
revenue and cost projections and
various assumptions relating to
revenue growth for assessing the
reliability of cash flow forecast,
compared the revenues projections,
EBIDTA (earnings before interest,
depreciation and tax) margins and
coherence the forecast with market
trend through a review of actual past
performance and
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Refer note 5 “Investments in previous forecasts to understand the

subsidiary and joint venture” and 7
“Loans” of the Standalone Financial
Statements

appropriateness of the management
estimates.

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures
in the financial statements with
respect to the assumptions and
checked whether they were
apprepriately presented.

Recoverability of deferred tax
assets (DTA) recognized on
carry-forwards tax losses,
unabsorbed depreciation and
provision for loans and advances

The Company has recognised Rs.
272.45 Crores as DTA, as at 31
March, 2022, relating to carry-
forwards tax losses, unabsorbed
depreciation, provision for doubtful
loans and advances and capital
losses.

The Company exercises significant
judgement in  assessing the
recoverability of DTA relating to
these items. In estimating the
recoverability of DTA, management
uses inputs such as internal business
and tax projections over a 10 year
period.

Recoverability of DTA on carry-
forwards tax losses, unabsorbed
depreciation and provision for loans
and advances is sensitive to the
assumptions used by management in
projecting the future taxable income,
the reversal of deferred tax liabilities
which can be scheduled, and tax
planning strategies.

Refer note 2.12 "Taxes on Income”
for accounting policies, note 2.19 in
"Use of estimates & critical
accounting judgements” related to
taxes, note 18 "Deferred Tax Assets/
Liabilities” and note 30 “Income tax
expenses” for disclosures related to

Principal audit procedures performed

We obtained an understanding of
controls performed by the
management to assess the
recoverability of the DTA relating to
carry-forwards tax losses, unabsorbed
depreciation and provision for loans
and advances.

We evaluated Design and Operating
Effectiveness of the management
controls over the process for
determining the recoverability of the
DTA relating to carry-forwards tax
losses, unabsorbed depreciation and
provision for loans and advances which
included amongst others controls over
the assumptions and judgments used
in the projections of future taxable
income.

To assess the Company’s ability to
estimate future taxable income, we
compared the Company's previous
forecasts to actual results.

We involved our tax professionals with
specialized skills and knowledge to
assist in evaluating taxation related
matters including the Company’s tax
planning strategies and interpretation
of tax laws.

We performed a sensitivity analysis
over the key assumptions to assess
their impact on the Company's
determination that the DTA relating to
carry-forwards tax losses, unabsorbed
depreciation and provision for loans
and advances.
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Sr.

No Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

taxes of the Standalone Financial |e We evaluated the adequacy of
Statements. disclosures in the financial statements
related to Deferred tax in notes 2.12,
2.19, 18 and 30 respectively of the
standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Reports of Director and the foliowing
Annexures thereto (namely Management Discussion and Analysis, Report of Corporate
Governance, Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities, Form AQC-1,
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Exchange Earnings and Outgo) but
does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

» In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.,

o If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responslbility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
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management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they couid
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced: We consider

Qesking
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quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter shouid not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 1
nd AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

€. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

9. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

I

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company, except the amount pertaining to Unpaid dividend of Rs. 0.02
crores and the related equity shares which has not been transferred.
Based on the information and records available with the Company, all
these relates to the disputed matters with several shareholders.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
personsg or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Uitimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year
and has not proposed final dividend for the year.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 302009E)

gy Y

Abhijit Bandyopadhyay
(Partner}

(Membership No. 054785)
UDIN: 22054785AGTZZV3840

Place: Kolkata
Date: 11 April 2022
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our repoit of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KESORAM
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the Company”} as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financia! control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls aver financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management averride of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controis
system over financial reporting and such internai financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the respective Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 302009E)

Mooty

Abhijit Bandyopadhyay
(Partner)

(Membership No. 054785)
UDIN: 22054785AGTZ22ZV3840

Place: Kolkata
Date: 11 April 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that

i (@

(b)

(<)

(d)

(e)

(it) (a)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and
capital work-in-progress.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

Some of the Property, Plant and Equipment and capita! work-in-progress were
physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a
program of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of
all the Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work-in-progress at reasonable
intervals having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its activities.
According to the information and explanations given to us no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed,
transfer deed, conveyance deed, mutation of title papers, provided to us, we
report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties of land and buildings
(other than the properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial
statements included in Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work-in-
progress, are held in the name of the Company as at balance sheet date.

Immovable properties of land and buildings whose title deeds have been pledged
as security for loans are held in the name of the Company based on the
confirmations directly received by us from lenders / custodian (Debenture
Trustee).

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
and intangible assets during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending
against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder

The inventories, except for goods-in-transit and stock lying with third parties,
were physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the
year. In our opinion and based on the information and explanation given to us,
the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate
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(b)

(i) (a)

(b)

having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its operations. For stocks
held with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained
and in respect of goods in transit, the goods have been received subsequent to
the year-end or confirmations have been obtained from the parties. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were
noticed on such physical verification of inventories / alternate procedures
performed as applicable, when compared with books of accounts. -

According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of
the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from
banks or financial institutions and hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable except for non-fund based limit, bank guarantee received
against lien on fixed deposit, for which no stock statement is required to be
submitted

The Company has provided loans during the year and the outstanding balance of
loans as at March 31, 2022 are given below:

r Loan
(in Rs,
| | Crores)
A. Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year
Subsidiary N o _9.54
Joint Venture - - | i |
Others ** - -
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of
above cases”™ ]
Subsidiary - B 154.46
Joint Venture® - 7.11
Others*
- __ | 525.97

“The amounts reported are gross amounts including accrued interest (wherever
applicable), without considering provision made.

@Loan of Rs. 7.11 Crores given to Joint Venture (Gondkhari Coal Mining Limited)
has been fully provided for in the books.

*Includes loan of Rs. 493.22 Crores given to Birla Tyres Limited which has been
fully provided for in the books.

**The Company has accrued interest on the Loan of Rs. 26,45 crores which has
been provided for on prudent basis as the loan is already impaired. This amount
has not been reported above,

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security to any other entity
during the year.

In our opinion the terms and conditions of the loans granted by the Company to
Birla Tyres Limited with a maximum amount of Rs. 519.67 Crores outstanding
(including accrued interest) as on March 31, 2022 and to Gondkhari Coal Mining
Limited (a Joint Venture) with a maximum amount of Rs. 7.11 crore outstanding
as on March 31, 2022, are prejudicial to the interest of the Company’s interest
on account of the fact that the loans were fully provided for in the books and no
interest is being charged on loan to Gondkhari Coal Mining Limited.
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()

(d}

(e)

{f)

Further, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the loans granted by the
Company to Cygnet Industries Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary) of Rs, 9.54
Crores during the year with @ maximum amount of Rs, 154.46 Crores outstanding
as on March 31, 2022 and to Manglam Timber Products Limited with a maximum
amount of Rs. 6.30 Crores outstanding as on March 31, 2022, in our opinion, are
not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

The Company has granted loans to Cygnet Industries Limited (a wholly owned
subsidiary) and Manglam Timber Products Limited, which are payable on demand.
During the year the Company has not demanded such loan. Having regard to the
fact that the repayment of principal or payment of interest has not been
demanded by the Company, in our opinion the repayments of principal amounts
and receipts of interest are regular. (Refer reporting under clause (iii)(f) below).
Further, in respect of loans granted by the Company to Birla Tyres Limited
including accrued interest of Rs. 519.67 Crores and Gondkhari Coal Mining
Limited (a Joint Venture) of Rs. 7.11 Crores are fully provided for in the books
and no interest is being charged on loan to Gondkhari Coal Mining Limited. (Refer
reporting under clause (iii)(f) below).

In respect of loans granted, since the Company has granted loans which are
payable on demand and during the year the Company has not demanded such
loan and interest in the case of Cygnet Industries Limited (a wholly owned
Subsidiary Company) of Rs. 154.46 Crores and Mangalam Timber Products
Limited of Rs. 6.30 Crores, there are no amounts overdue for more than 90 days
as at the balance sheet date.

Further, in respect of loans granted by the Company to Birla Tyres Limited of Rs.
519.67 crores and Gondkhari Coal Mining Limited (a Joint Venture) of Rs. 7.11
Crores is fully provided for in the books as at the balance sheet date. (Refer
reporting under clause (iii)(f) below).

No loans granted by the Company have fallen due during the year since as stated
in clause (d) above loans are payable on demand and during the year the
Company has not demanded such loan and interest in the case of Cygnet
Industries Limited (a Subsidiary Company) of Rs. 154.46 Crores and Mangalam
Timber Products Limited of Rs. 6.30 Crores.

Further, in respect to loan granted by the Company to Birla Tyres Limited of Rs.
519.67 Crores and Gondkhari Coal Mining Limited (a Joint Venture) of Rs. 7.11
Crores are fully provided for in the books as at the balance sheet date. (Refer
reporting under clause (iii)(f} below).

The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment details of which are given below:

All Parties- | Promoters | Related

Including (in Rs. Parties
Related Crores) (in Rs.
Party” Crores)
(in Rs.

Crores)

Aggregate of loans ]
Repayable on demand (A) * Nil
680.43
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Agreement does not specify any 7.11 Nil 7.11
terms or period® B
Total (A+B) 687.54 Nil 161.57
Percentage of loans to the total loans 100% 0% 100%

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

*The amounts reported are gross amounts including interest accrued {wherever
applicable), without considering provision made.

@Loan of Rs. 7.11 Crores given to Joint Venture (Gondkhari Coal Mining Limited)
has been fully provided for in the books.

*Includes loan of Rs. 493.22 crores given to Birla Tyres Limited which has been
fully provided for in the books

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees, and securities provided, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit or amount which are deemed to be deposit. Hence reporting
under clause (v) of the order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit}) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central
Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost
records have been made and maintained by the Company. We have, however, not
made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Customs, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been
regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities expect for delays in
respect of remittance of interest on Goods and service tax relating to earlier
years.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Customs, cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable except for interest on
Goods and Service Tax the details of which are given helow:
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Name of the Nature of Amount | Period to | Due date | Date of
Statute Dues {Rs. in which Payment
Crores) the

amount

relates
The Central, | Interest on 0.01 | 2019-20 | Not Not paid
State and | unpaid Applicable | till the
Integrated amount  of date
Goods and [ goods  and
Service Tax | service tax
Act, 2017
The Central, | Interest on 0.70 | 2020-21 | Not Not paid
State and | unpaid Applicable | till the
Integrated amount  of date
Goods and | goods  and
Service Tax | service tax
Act, 2017

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) above which have not
been deposited as on March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Amount
Name of the | Nature of gguﬂe wher; Period Amount Deposited
Statute Dues er?din (Rs. in | (Rs. In
~ P g o Crores) | Crores !
Andhra Pradesh .
VAT Act Sales Tax ) High Court 2006 - 2010 _0.54 ) 0.22 ‘
The CGST Act, Education &
2017 High )
Education 0.09
Cess High Court 2017 -
Central Excise | Central .
Act, 1944 Excise High Court 2010 0.08 -
The Appellate
Central Sales DY.
Tax Act, 1956 Sales Tax Commissioner 2015-16 0.15 0.09
(CT),
Central Excise | Central . 1994, 2010 &
Act, 1944 Excise High Court 2017 0.12 -
, Addl.
Egt“t;ag' » Excise Ef(?:?steral Commissioner of | 2005-2007 0.38 i
’ Central Excise
1974-75, 1997-
98, 1999-2000,
2000-2004, 2005-
Central Excise | Central 06, 2006-07,
Act, 1944 Excise CESTAT 2007-08, 2008- | 10.35 0.85
09, 2009-10,
2010-11 & 2011-
12,
Central Sales
Tax Act, 1956 Sales Tax CESTAT 2016-17 0.06 0.01_
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Amount
Name of the | Nature of E?srut:?e wheri(sa Period Amount Deposited
Statute Dues pu (Rs. in | {Rs. In
pending

Crores) | Crores

Central Sales

Tax Act, 1956 Sales Tax High Court 2001-02, 2003-04 0.18 0.47

Central Excise &

Central  Excise | Central i;rp\:alﬁ:te T 2006-07  and| oo )
Act, 1944 Excise Tribunal, 2008-10
Bangalore
Central Excise &
. Service Tax
I;gw;:ce At | service Tax Appellate gggg:?g and 45.67 3.7
Tribunal,
Bangalore o
Interest on
unpaid
Goods and | amount  of | Commissioner 2018-19, 2019-
Service Tax Act | goods and | (Appeais) 20, 2020-21 70.08 13.07
service tax
and penalty

Andhra Pradesh
General Sales | Sales Tax Tribunal 2003-04 0.11 0.02

Tax Act, 1957

Deputy
Commissioner of
Sales Tax Sales Tax | 2003-05 0.32 .05

(Appeals}),
Amravati Division

Bombay Sales
Tax Act

1979-81, 1980-
81, 1982-83,
1992-93, 1995-
96, 1995-97,
1997-98, 1999-
Central Excise | Central Superintendent 00, 2001-02, 0.03
Act, 1944 Excise of Central Excise | 2002-03, 2004- 0.45 ’
05, 2005-06,
2011-12, 2012-
13, 2013-14,
2014-15 and
2015-16

1985-90, 1995-
1996, 1999-2000,
Central Excise | Central o 2000 to 2001,

Act, 1944 Excise Commissioner | 540203, 2003 - 0.71 0.02
2005, 2010-11
and 2012-13
1986-89, 1991-
94, 1995-9¢,
Central Excise | Central Assistant 1996-97, 1998-
Act, 1944 Excise Commissioner 99, 1999-10,
2002-03, 2003-
04, 2004-05,
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Forum where Amount Am°”'.‘t
Name of the | Nature of di ; . Deposited
ispute is | Period -
Statute Dues pending (Rs. in | (Rs. In
Crores) | Crores
2005-06 and
2016-17
Finance Act . Superintendent 2013-14 and
1994 " Service Tax | of central Excise | 2014-15 0.11 ]
Tamil Nadu
General Sales | Sales Tax High Court 199%-2000 0.18 =
Tax Act, 1959
West Bengal | 2004-05, 2006-
vara et 2092 | Sales Tax | Appellate &|07,  2007-08, 1.95 .
! Revisional Board | 2008-09, 2005-10
Central Excise | Central Commissioner 5332107 20%%}]073_’ 1.44 0.02
Act, 1944 Excise (Appeals) 11 g ) )
Central Excise | Central Deputy
Act, 1944 Excise Commissioner 2004 0.03 )
West Bengal
Sales Tax | Sales Tax | et Bengal|;qqq.q9 0.99 0.06
Act,1994
West Bengal West Bengal | 2006-07 & 2010-
VAT Act, 2003 | S8leSTax | 1% o Tribual | 11 0.17 0.00*%
2004-05 2005-
West Bengal f
central 221 | salesTax | Appellate g |96 200607, ¢, -
ax Act, 1956 Revisional Board 2007-08, 2009-
10, 2010-11
Central Excise | Central Additional
Act, 1944 Excise Commissioner 2005-10 0.11 i
Customs Act, Custems ) 1.06
1962 Duty Supreme Court 2012-13 )
Electricity Duty | Electricity 23.11 )
Act, 1939 Duty Supreme Court 2003-13 )
Motor Vehicle Motor 0.64 )
Act, 1988 Vehicle High Court 2012 )
Andhra Pradesh | Permit Fees 2009-19 & 2020- 8.51 )
Forest Act, 1967 High Court 21 ) -
Andhra Pradesh | Entry Tax
Entry tax High Court 2007-09 0.41 0.05
Employee State | Employee Dy. Director, ESI
Insurance Act, State Corporation 0.22 -
1948 Insurance Gulbarga 1995-98
The Karnataka Power Karnataka
Electricity Act, Electricity
1999 Regulatory 6.25 -
Commission
(KERC) 2015-16
Forest Land Permit Tax

Permit Tax
2010-11

High Court

2009 and 2011
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Forum w;re Amount Amount
Name of the | Nature of dispute is | Period Deposited
Statute Dues e{f i (Rs. in|(Rs. In
P 9 Crores) | Crores

Environment Envircnment
Protection Fees | protection Karnataka High 2009-10 and 4.03 4.03
Order fee Court -1 2010-11
Tamil Nadu Municipal
Municipal Corporation .37 )
Corporation Act, | Tax 2002-03 to 2017- '
1920 District Court 18
Investor Unpaid 0.02 )
Education and Dividend '
Protection Fund IEPF Authority 1995 to 2013

* The amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the company.
(viii} There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were

surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.
(ix){a) In ouropinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The company has not been declared wiliful defauiter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
unutilized term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under
clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

{d) Onan overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-
term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiary or joint venture,

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiary or joint venture.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments} during the year and hence reporting under
clause x(a} of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private

placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi} {(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on

the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
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{b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of

()

(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii}

(xviii)

{xix)

the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and up to the date of this report,

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and up to the date of this report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii} of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

{b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during
the year and covering the period up to March 31, 2022,

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with any of its directors or directors of its holding company, subsidiary
company, or persons connected with such directors and hence provisions of section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)}(a), (b) (c) and (d} of
the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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{(xx) The Company has, at aggregate level, net losses during the immediately preceding
three financial years and hence it is not required to spend any money under sub-
section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause {xx) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company for the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 302009E)

v/

Abhijit Bandyopadhyay
{Partner)

{Membership No. 054785)
UDIN: 22054785AGTZZV3840

Place: Kolkata
Date: 11 April 2022



Kesoram Industries Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2022

(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 41-Mar-2i 21-Mar-24

ASSETS
{1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipiment 3 1,511.77 1,567.05
(b} Right of use Assets 4 3112 3L07
(e) Capital work-in-progress 4A 28.21 14.63
{d) Investments in substdiary and joint venture 5 306.22 460.47
{e) Financial assets
{i) Investments 6 73.83 7741
(ii) Loans 7 154.46 13120
(iii) Other financial assets 8 10.13 3.18
(£) Income tax asset (net) 4.01 6.99
(£) Deferred tax assets (net) 18 272.45 261.63
(h) Other non-current assets [ 13.80 5.%0
Total non-current assets 2,406.90 2,550.02
(2} Current assets
(n) Inventories 10 141.44 101.50
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 1 316,71 274.96
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 118.97 90,95
(iii) Other bank balances 13 57.21 14.49
(i¥) Loans - 6.80 872
{¥) Other financial assets 8 22,48 13.20
(¢) Other current assets 1) 155.30 52,17
Total current assets 818.01 554.00
Total assets 3.225.81 3.113.02
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 14 {a) 244.41 164.81
{b} Share application money pending allotment 14 (b) 106 -
(¢} Other equity 14 (b) 360.81 182.35 |
Total equity 606,28 347.16
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial Mabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 1,554.23 1,774.02
(ii) Lease Liabilities 15 1.48 5.31
{iii) Other financial liabilities 16 87.21 74.27
(b} Provisions 17 24.46 23.10
{c) Other Non-current lisbilities 19 0.41 0.37
Total non-current liabilities 1,667.79 1,877.07
(2) Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{i} Borrowings 15 142.29 58.58
(ii) Lease Liabilities 35 518 1141
{iii) Trade pavables 20
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 19.86 15.70
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 510.10 515.78
(iv) Other financial liabilities 16 §6.00 46,27
(b) Provisions 17 17.12 43-49
(¢) Income tax liabilities {net) 0.20 0.20
(d) Other current liabilities 19 200,09 217,36
Total current liabilities 951.74 888.79
Total liabilities 2,619.53 2,765.86
Total equity and liabilities 3.225.81 3.113.02
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1-45
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
. ey V)
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SEL1IS —— —_— D
Chartered Accountants Manjushree Khait‘anﬁ
(Firm's Registration No.302009E) Chairman
Abhijit Bandyopaghyay = WIAAAAA SAnavanas _,(:;/
Partner Suresh Sharma P Radhakrishnan

Whole-time Direcior & CEQ

Place: Kolkata
Date : 11th April, 2022

Company Secretary




Kesoram Industries Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)
Note No. 2021-2022 2020-2021

Particulars

I Revenue from operations 3,539.56 2,415.21
I Other income 22 38.15 102.22
IO Total Income (I+I1) 3,577.71 2,517.43
v Expenses:
{a) Cost of materials consumed 23 36106 237.8%
_(b] Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock- a4 (19.18) 26.51
in-trade
(¢) Power & Fuel 1,125.64 602.22
(d) Packing, Carriage and Shipping 1,062.74 807.23
{¢) Employee benefit expense 25 148.32 141.23
{f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 90.73 06,21
{g) Finance costs 27 481.70 245.81
{h) Other expenses 28 312,33 205.67
Total Expenses 3.562.34 2,362.71 |
v Profit before exceptional items and tax (I1I-IV) 14.37 154,72
Vi Exceptional Items 29 {154.25) {204.83)
Vil  Profit/(Loss) before tax (V+VI) {139.88) (140.11)
VIII Tax expense:
{1) Current tax charge / (credit) (in respect of earlier year) - (43.87)
(2) Deferred tax charge / (credit) 30 {0.87) (262.18)
Total tax expense (0.87) {407.05)
IX  Profit/(Loss) for the year (VII-VIII) (130.01) 166.94 |

X Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss (net)

Remeasurement of post-employment benefit plans 3.50 2,09
Fair value changes of investments in equity shares (3.58) 7.90
Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to the statement of]|
Profit and Loss 0.96 (1.57)
Total other comprehensive income/{loss) 0.97 8.42
XI  Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year (IX+X) (129.04) 175.36 |
X1l Earnings per share a1
Basic (Rs.) (6.50) 10.53
Diluted (Rs.) (6.50) 10.53
XIII  Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1-45
In terms of our report attached For and on hehalf of the Board of Direclors i sastd
LA KA
—_— -
-
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS |2
Chartered Accountants Manjushree Khaitan
(Firm's Registration No,302009E) Chairman

»VW ~2 A A~ ?L/\cxm\..\,\( (:///“

Abhijjit Bandyopddhyay s
Partner Suresh Sharma P Radhakrishnan
Whole-time Director & CEO

Place: Kolkata
Date : 11th April, 2022

Compuany Secretary




Kesoram Industries Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, umless otherwise stated)

Particalars 2021-2022 2020-2021

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax (139.88) {140.11)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 90.73 96.21
Provision for bad and doubtful debis charged/(written back) 2.47 2.28
Inventory provision written off - 4.03
Capital Work-in-Progress written off 0.31 -
Provision for donbtful advances .63 -
Finance costs 48170 245.81
Exchange loss/(gain) on foreign eurrency fluctuation (c.09) -
Exceptional Items 154.25 204.83
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 0.13 (0.27)
Liabilities/Provision no longer required written back (12.79} (4.47)|
Interest income (18.21) (B3.11)
Dividend income from long term investment {other than trade) {0.02) {0.02)
Operating profit before working capital changes 560,23 415.18
Changes in Working Capital:
Increase / {decrease)} in Non Current /Current financial and other liabilities/provisions (63.97) {29.13}
(Increase) / decrease in Non Current /Current financial and other assets {121.90) (139.12)
(Increase) { decreaze in inventories (39.93) 9.65
Cash Generated from Operations 234.43 256.58
Direct Taxes paid {uet of refunds) 2.00 {0.84)
Net cash generated from operating activities- Total 336.43 255.74
B. Cash flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment/capital advance given {33.18) {20.57)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment (ROU) 0.69 1.65
Loan given to subsidiary (8.15) (246.35)
Net Loan Received/(Paid} to Body Corporate - (38.55)L
Repayment of loans given to subsidiary 0.55 82.13
Interest received 3.04 1.04
Deposit Redemption/(Placed) with bank (42.99) (3.99)
Dividend income from long term investment {other than trade) 0.02 0.02
Net cash used in investing activities - Total (79.12) (224.62)
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares [*] 334.05 -
Finance cost paid (235.54) (408.76)
Payment of Lease obligations (13.45) (13.61)
Proceeds from
- Long term borrowings - 2,063.40
- Short term borrowings 50.00 102.87
Repayment of
- Long term borrowings (364.533) (1,185.18)
- Short term borrowings - (377.56)
Net cash Ecncrated from/(used) in ﬁmmcing activities - Total (229.27) 181.16—|
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 28.04 212,28
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 90.95 318
Add: Adjustment on account of loan settlement through issue of Equity Shares & OCRPS - 66.30
Less: Cash credits at the beginning of the year {0.02) {190.82)
Adjusted cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 90.93 (121.34)
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 118.97 90.93
2021-2022 2020-2021
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise :
Cash on hand 0.06 0.03
Balances with banks on current account 103.20 66.99
Deposit with original matarity for less than three months 15.71 23.93
Cash credits at the end of the year - {0.02)
118.97 90.93

* Net proceeds of Rs 334.05 crores is after netting of share issue expense [excluding GST] of Rs 11.83 crores and conversion of ICD and accrued
interest on [CD amounting to Rs 54.13 crores




Kesoram Industries Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, zo22
{All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:
1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Ind AS - 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”,

2 Disclosure for non-cash transactions 2021-2022 2020-2021

Shares issued for conversion of Inter Corporate Debt (ICD) by wholly owned subsidiary

into equity 496.49
Issue of Equity shares for settlement of loan - 144.44
Issue of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares for settlement of loan

(recognised at fair value of Rs 74.07 crores} ) 448.97
Issue of equity shares to Manav Investment & Trading Co Ltd against loan received 54.13 -
Total 54.13 1,089.90
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
S
. . K_tasisVias)
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS " Manjushree l(]utitnﬁ '
Chartered Accountants Chairman

(Firm’s Registration No.302009E)

. K haln)
Abhijit Bandyopadhyay Suresh Sharma P itaitcishinan
Partuer Chief Financial Officer Whole-time Director & CEO =
. o

P )

Place: Kolkata
Date : 11th April, 2022

et

fam Nath
Company Secretary
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Kesoram Industries Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

1L Company Information

Kesoram Indusiries Limited (the Company} is a public pany domiciled and incorporated under the provisions of the Indian
Companies Act, 1613. The Company is a flagship company of B. K. Birla group of companies, Tts shares are listed on threa stock

exchanges in India (Bowbay Siock Exchange, National Stock Exchange and Caleutia Stock Exchange) and its Global Depositary
Reveipls (GDR) are listed op Luxembourg Siock Exchange. The Company markets its cament product under "Birla Shakti® brand.

The financial statements ag at 31 March 2o22 present the financial position of the Company.
The financial statemenis for the vear ended 31 March 2022 were approved by the Board of Directors and antherised for issue on
11th April 2022.

2.8 y of significant accounting pollcies

2,1 Basis of preparation
(i} Compliance with Ind A%

These financial statements bave been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind A3} nolified under Section
133 of the Companies Acl, 2013. The financial statementis have also been prepared in aceordance with the relevant presentation
requiremnents of the Companies Act, 2013 and presenlation requirements of Schadule I11 to the Companics Aet, 2013, {Ind AS
compliant Schedule III), as applicable.

{iiy Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical ¢ost convention with the exception of certain assets and
lisbilities that are required tabe carried at falr values by Ind AS,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

a) Property, plant and equipment are stated at scquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises of purchase cost, borrowing costs if capitalisation eriteria are mat and other directly aitributable
cosi of bringing the assets to its working condition for intended use. The cost also comprizes of exchange differences arising on
translation /eettlement of long term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to acquisition of such depreciable assats. Any
trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

b) Subsequent expenditure related te an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its carrying amount only if it
increases the future benefits from the existing assets beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

¢} Capital work in progress is stated at eost, [including borrowing cost, where applicable and adjustment for exchange diffarence
referred to in Note 2.14 below] incurred during construction/installation period relaling to items or projects in progress.

d) Losses arising from the retirement of 20d gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment which are
carried at cost are recognised in the Stat t of profit and loss.

€) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is caleulated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, et of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Liatimated useful life (in

Class of assels

veurs)
Buildings 5-60 years
Plant and Equipment 1-40 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 1-16 Years
Office Equit t 1-20 years
Vehicles £-10 Years
Eﬂway Siding 15 Years

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset's useful life or over the shorter of
the asset's useful life and the lease term if there is oo reasonable cerlainty that the Company will obtain ownership at the end of
the lease term.
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2.3 Intangible assets

Intangible property, plant and aquipmant are capitalised where it iz expected to provids future enduting sconomic benefits and
amortized on a straight line basis. Capitalisation costs include license fees and the cost of implementation/ system integration
servicea, The Cosls are capitalised in the year in which the relevant intangible asset s impl ted for use.

Cluss of assels Lstimated usefol Jife (in

vears)

Soltware

2,4 Impairment

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in vircumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment logs is racogniszed for the amound by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds itz recoverable amount. The reeoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of
dispogal and value in use. For the purposes of agsessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets {cash-
generating units). Non-financlal agsets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

2.5 Lease

Eifective April 1, 2019, the Company bad adopted 1nd AS 116 - Leases using the modified retrospeciive method. Under medified
retrospeciive approach, the Company had recorded lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease p 1z, di d
al the incremeatal borrowing rate and ihe right of use asset at an amount equal to the leasa lisbility, adjusied by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relatad 1o that lease recognised under 1nd AS 17. The weighiad average incremental
borrowing rate for leases initially recognised upon the first-time application of Ind AS 116 was 13,21%. The Company applied a
single discount rate to a portiolio of leases with bly similar characieristics, The adoption of Tnd AS 16 did not bad any
material impact on Statement of Profit and Loss and earnings per share in the previous year,

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangernents, if the contract conveys
the right to conirol the use of an identified asset, The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it
involves the uge of an identified asset and the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has
tight to direct the use of the identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease linbility adjusted for any leaze payments made st or before the commencement date plus any initial
direct costs incurred, The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using
the straight-line method from the commencemment date over the shorter of bkease term or useful life of right-of-use assel.

The Company measures the lease liabilily at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date
of the leaze. The leaze payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if ihat rate can be readily determined.
If thak rate cannot ba readily determined, the Company uses i tal borrowing rate, For short-term and low value lesses, the
Company recognises the lease payments ag an operating expense on a strajght-line basis over the lease term,

When the lease liability is ed due to change in contract terms, a corresponding change §s raade to the carrying amount of

tight-of-use assel, or is recorded in the profit and loss aceaunt if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset is reduced to zero.

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as fivance lease. Such
agsels acquired are capitalised at fair value of the asset or present value of the minimum leage payments at the inception of the
lease, whichever is lower. Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company as lessee are classified as operating leases, Payments made under operating leases (net of any inventives received from
the lessor} are charged to profit or lags on a straight-live basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to

increase in line with expected peneral inflation to comp for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.
45 a lessor:
In respect of assets given on operating lease, the lease rental i is recognised in the Stat t of Profit and Loss on a straight-

line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compenszate
for the expected inflationary cost increases. There is no change in accounting as a lessor due to adoplion of Ind A8 116 Leages,

2.6 Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost §s determined on weighted average f first-in, first-out (FIFCG}
basis, as considered appropriate by the Company. The cost of finished goodz and wark in progress comprizes raw materdals, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads, Net realisable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary
gourse of busi Tess the esti d costs ¥ to make the gale, Provigion is made for obsolete/slow moving/defective
stocks, wherever necessary.
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2.7 Financial Instruments

Fi jal assets and fi ial lishilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
insirument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs thai are directly aitributable to
the acquisilion or issue of finanelal assels and finaneial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair valus
through profit and loss) are added to or dedueted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financisl asset or financia!
liability. The transaction cosis dl.rect]y attnbutab]e 1o the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss are i diately r Ised in the glal t of profit and loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is 8 method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest
income of expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

{a} Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance
sheel.

Other bank balances

Other bank balances include deposits with maturity less than twelve months but greater than three months and balances and
deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial assets at amortised cost
Fi | agsets are subsequently ed at amorlised cost if these financial assels are held within a business model whose

objective {5 to hold these assets in order to collect contraciual cash flows and the contractual ierms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amouvnt outstanding,

Fi ial 27 ed at fair value

Financial assets are measared al ‘Fair value through other comprehensive incorne’ (FWOCI) if these financtal asseis are held
within & business model whaose objective is 1o hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these finaneial
assets and the contraciual terms of the financial asset pive mise on specified dates to cash flows thai are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount suistanding.

The Company in respect of equily investments {other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) which are not held for
tradiog bas made an irrevocable election to present i other comprehensive income subsequent ¢havges in the fair value of such
equity instruments. Such an election is made by the Company on an instroment by instrament basis at the tme of initial
recognition of such equity invesiments.

Fi 1 asset not ed at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is cartied at ‘Fair value
tlmough the statemnent of profit and loss' (FVPL).

Impairment of fi ior .
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the "Expected credit Josses’ (ECL) associated with its assels carried at amortised
cost and FYOCI debt insir ts. The Company recognizes logs allowance for expecied credit losses on financial asset.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Firancial Instruments, which
requires expected lifetime losses 10 be recognized from initfal recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition of financlal assets

The Comp d a fi 1 asset only when the contrachual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the financial assst and substanllally all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues 10 toutrol the transferred asset,
the Company recognises its reiained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts jt may bave to pay.

If the Company refains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred fi ial asset, the Comp
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collaeralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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2.7 Financial Instruments
(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity
Financial lisbilities, debts and equity instrumenis issued by the Company are classified according to the substamee of the
contractnal arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial Liability and ap equity instrument.

Equity instruments
AD equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interesi in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilitles
All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FYTPL.

Financhal liabilithes at FVTPL
Finaocial Yabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (i} contingent consideralion of an acquirer in a
business combinstion, (i} beld for trading or (iii) it i= designated as at FVTPL.

A finaneial liability is rlassified as held for trading if:

+ it bas been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

+ on inftial recogmition it is part of a portfolic of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profii-taking; or

« it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a fi ial tract or a designated and effeclive hedging instrument,

A financial lisbility other than a financial Bability held for trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination may be desipnated as at FVTPL upon initial recoguition if:

+ such designation eliminates ot significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

+ the financial Lability forms part of a group of fi ial asgels or fi jal Labiliies or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on 2 fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s d ted risk or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

« ji forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combinad contract to
be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fajr value, with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss to the exient that they are not part of a designated hedging retationship (see hedge accounting policy). The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid oo the financial liability and is included in the ‘finance cost” line
item {note 27) in profil or loss,

However, for financial liabilities that are designsted as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liabiity
that s attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognilion of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised in profit or boss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a fivancial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are
recognised in retained earnings.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent ideration of an acquirer in a busi bination, {ii) held-for-trading, or (ii)
designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at arnortised cost using the effective interest method,

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant.

Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafis and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate methad. Any differenee between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the
settlement or redemption of borrowings ie recognised over the term of the borrowings in the stalement of profit and loss,

De-recognition of financial liabilities
The Company de-recognises fi ial Labilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire.

Derivative flnanclal instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company uses certain derivative financial instruments to reduce business risks which arise
from its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate fluctwatl The st 18 are confined principally to forward foreign
exchange contracts

Derivalives are initially accounted for and measured at fair value from the date the derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair valus at the end of each reporting pariod.

Offsettng financlal Instruments

Financial assels and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reparted in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultanecusly, The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of defaull, insolvency or bankraptey of the Company or the counterparty.
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2.8 Employee Beneflts

Deflned contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Paymenis made to state managed retirement
benefit schemes are dealt with as payments 1o defined contribulion schemes where the Company’s obligations under the schemes
are equivalent to those arising in 2 defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefils is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with
actvarial valuation being camed oul at each balsnce sheet date. Re—measurement gains and logses of the net defined benefit
liability/ {asset} are recognised i diately in other comprebensi The service cost and net interest cn the aet defined
benefit liability/ (asset) is & treated a3 a nel expense within enployment costa.

Pasi service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan dment or curtailment oecurs or when any related restruciuring
cosis or lermination benefits are recognised, whichever is earlier.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined-benefit obligation as
reduced by the fair value plan assets.

O 4 2%
As lated eox ted ab which are expected to be availed or encashed wllhln twelve months from the year end are
treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is ed at the expected cosi of 1E

compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid a5 a result of the unused entitlements as at the year end,

A lated o ted ab which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond twelve months from the year end are
treated as other long term employea benefits. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unil Credil
method) at the end of each year. Actuarial loss/gains are recognised in the Stat t of Profit and Loss in the year in which they
arise.

Short-term Employee Benefits (i.e. benefits payable within one year) are recognised in the period in which employee services are
rendered.

Ind AS 19 — Plan A d Curtail t or Settl ts

The amendment require an eatity to use updated assumptions to determine current service costs and net interest for the
rewainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, and to recognize in the Statement of Profit and Loss
as part of past service cost, or gain or loss on seltlerent, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previcusly
tecognized because of the impact of the assei ceiling, The adoption of the standard did act have any material impact to the
financial statements.

2.9 Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reagonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relaling to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to comp and pr d within other income,

Governmenl granis relating 1o the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
income and are credited 1o profit or logs on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within
other income.

2.10 Provision and Contingent Liabillties

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embedying economic benefits will be required 1o seitle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation.

Provigi d at the p t value of I ‘s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at 1he end of the reportl.ng period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the Liability. The inerease in the provision due to
thep ge of time is znised as interest expense.

Pravision for restoration and environmental costs

An obligation for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs arises when environmental disturbance is caused by the
development or ongoing extraction from mines. Costs arising from restoration at ¢losure of the mines and other site preparation
work are provided for based on iheir discounted net present value, with a corresponding amount being capitalised at the start of
each project. The amount provided for is recognised, as soon as the obligation 10 incur such costs arises. These costs are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss over the life of the operation through the depreciation of the asset and the unwinding of the
discount on the provision. The cost are reviewed periodically and are adjusted o reflect known developments which may have an
impacl on the ¢ost or life of operations. The cost of the related asset is adjusted for changes in the provision due to factors such as
updated cost estimates, new disturbance and revisions to discount rates. The adjusted cost of the asset is depreciated
prospectively over the lives of the assets to which they relats. The wowinding of the discount is shown as a finance cogt in the
Statement of Profit and Loss,
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Provision for warranty
The estimated liability for warranty is recorded when products are sold. These eslimates are established vsing historical
information on the nature, frequency and average cost of obligations and estimates regarding possible future

incidence based on eorrective actions on produet failure, The timing of outflows will vary as and when the obligation will arise -
being typically up to five years.
2.10 Provision and Contingent Liabilities

Contingent Liabllities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a pogsible obligation arising from past events, the
exdgtence of which will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-oceurrence of ane or mere uncertain future evenis not wholly
within the control of the company or a present cbligation that arises from pagl events where it is either pot probable that an
outflow of resonrces will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount canmot be made.

2.11 Non-current assets {or disposal groups) held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal grovps) are elassified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered prineipally
through a sale teansaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the
Tower of thelr carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for asgets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assels and contractuel rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this
requitement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset {or disposal group) to fair value less costs to
sell. A goin is gnised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but pot in
excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognized. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of
the non-current asset (or disposal group? is recopmised at the date of de-recognition.

Hon-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as
held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group elassified as held for gale continue to be
recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assels of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately
from the other assets in the balance sheel. The liabilities of a dispesal group classified as held for sale are presented separately
from other liabilities in the balance sheel.

2.12 Taxes on [Income

The tax currently paysble is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from met profit as reported in profil or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or dedustible in other years and it further excludes jtems that ace
never taxable or deduwelible. The Company's labilily for eurrent tax is caleulated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the repmting period.

A provision is vecognised for those matlers for which the 1ax determination is uncerlain but it is considered probable that there
will be a future cutflow of funds 10 a lax authorily. The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amount expeeted to
become payable. The assessment is based on the judgement of tax professionals within the Company supported by previcus
experience in respect of such activities and in cerlaln ¢ases baged on specialist independent tax advice.

Deferred tax is recognised on teroporary differences hetween the carrying amoums of assets and liabilities and the amounts nged
for taxation purposes (tax base), at the tax rates and tax laws ted or i ted by the end of the reporting period,

Deferred tax assels are recognised for the future 1ax consequences to the extent it is pmbable that future taxable profits will he
availzble against which the deductible temporary differences can be ntilised.

Deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from inilial recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profil (tax loss).

Income tax, in so far as it relates 10 items diselosed under other comprehensive ineome or equily, are disclosed separately under
other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable.

Deferred tax assets apd liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to offset corrent tax assets and Labilities and
when the deferred Lax balances related to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax linbilities are offset where the
entity bas & legally enforeeable right to offset and intends either ta settle on net basis, or to realize the asset and setile the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which iz likely to give
fulure econcmic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Aceordingly, MAT is revognised as
deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset ¢an be measured reliably and it is probable that the fulure economic benefit
associated with the asset will be realised.
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2,13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue shall be recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to cuslomers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which Lhe entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services,

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue from contract with cuslomers is recognized when the Company satisfies performance obligation by iransferring promised
goods and services to the customer. Performance obligalions may be satisfied al a point of time or over a period of time,
Performance obligations satisfied over a period of time are recognised as per the term of relevant contractual agreements/
arrangements. Performance obligations are said to be satisfied al s point of time when the customer obtains controls of the asset.

Eevenue is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume discoonls, Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for the dizcounts, using the expected value method, and revenue is only recognised to
the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. A contract liability is recognised for expected volume
discounts payable to customers in relation to sales made until the end of the reporting period.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point io time that the considetation is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the payment is due, which are otherwise recorded as contract assets.

(b) Interest income
Interest income is acerued on a lime proporticn bagis, by refersnce to the principal outstanding and the effeclive interest rate
applicable.

(¢) Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the sharcholder's rights o receive p 1 have been established

{d)} Rental income
Renlal ineome from invesiment properties and subletting of properiies iz recognized on a Hime propertion basis over the term of
the relevant leages.

() Unfulfilled perfor bligatons

The Company provides certain benefits to customers for purchasing products from the Company. These provide a material right to
customers that they would not receive without entering inlo a contract, Therefore, the promise 1o provide such benefits Lo the
customer is a separate performance obligation. The transaction price is allocated to the product and the benefil 1o be provided on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Management estimates the stand-alone selling price per point on the basis of the on the
basis of providing cost of such benefits. These estimates are established using historical information on the nature, frequency and
average cost of obligations and t eglimates regarding, possible future incidence. To the extent these benefits are not
settled/disbursed tll the end of a reporting period these are recorded,

A contract liability is recognized until the benefit is provided.

2.14 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred in connection with borrowing and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency burrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment 1o the interest cost. General and specific borrowing
costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construetion or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Premium in the form of fees paid on refinancing of loans are
accounted for us an expense over the life of the loan using effective interect rate method. All other borrowing costs are recognised
in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.15 Foreign currency transactions and translations

mition i rrene
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is the functional eurreney of the Company
and the presentation currency for the financial statements.

Transactions ard balences

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing an the date of transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities related 1o foreign currency transactions remaining unsettled at the end of the year are translated at year end
exchange rates. Gains/losses arising out of fluctuations in the exchange rates are recognised in the statament of profit and loss in
the period in which they arise,

2.16 Research and Development Expenditure

Revenoe Expenditure on Research and Develop 1 is charged to the Siat of Profit and Loss in the year in which it is
incorred and Capital Expenditure relating to Research and Development are included in proparly, plant and equipment.
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2.17 Earnings per share

(i} Basic earnings per shore

Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing:
+ the profit attributable to owners of the Company
+ by the weighted average number of equity shares o

ding during the fi year

(i} Diluted earnings per share
Dituted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share to take into account:

« the after income tax effect of interest and other fi ing costs jated with dilutive potential equity sheres, and

+ the weighted sverage umber of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming ihe conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares

2.18 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker.

The Board of Directors has been identified as the chief operating decigion maker, Refer note 38 for segment information
pr d. The company ts for intersegment sales and transfers at cost,

2.19 Use of estimates and eritical accounting judgements

Tn preparation of the financial stai ts, the Company makes judg ts, estimates and assumptions about the carrying values
of assets and labilities thai are not readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and the associated assumptions are based
on historical experience snd other factors that are considered to be relavant. Agtual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Significant judgements and estimates relating te the carrying values of assets and Habilities include useful Tives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and [n\'esl.ments, Pprovision
for employee benefits and other provisions, recoverability of deferred tax assets, o iilmenis and conting, ement
of leage liahility and Right to Use Asset.

2.20 Recent pr t

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"} notifies new standard or dments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Acecunting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time, On March 23, 2022, MCA ded the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 151, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired

and liabilities assurned must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Coneeptual Framework for Financial Reporting

under Indian A ing Standards (C piual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the
quisition date. These ch do not significantly change the requirements of Tnd AS 103, The Company does not expect the

amendment to have any significant impaet in its financial statements,

Ind AS 16 ~ Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly probibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from
selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will remgni.se such sales
proceeds and related eost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments (o have any impact in {ts recognition of
its propetty, plant and equj t in its fi ial stat

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the “cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate direetly to the contract”. Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour,
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and
the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in j1z financia] statements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvermnents to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies the treatment of any cost or fees incurred by an entity in the process of derecognition of financial
liability in case of repurchase of the debt instrument by the issuer. The Company does not expeet the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements,

Ind AS 106 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (zgz21}

The amendments remove the ustration of the reimb t of leazehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolva any
potential confusion regarding the treatment of leage incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were deseribed in
that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to bave any significant impact in its financial statements.
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Kesoram Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5: Investments in subsidiary and joint venture

Particulars Face value 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
A. Investments carried at cost
(a) Equity Investments in Subsidiary Company - Unguoted
92,65,36,876 (31 March, 20211 92,65,36,876) shares of Cygnet
Industries Litnited * 10 926.54 926.54
Less: Provision for impairment in value of investments {620.32) {466.07)
(b) Equity Investments in Joint venture - Unquoted
22,730( 31 March, 2021: 22,730) shares of Gondhkari Coal Mining
Limited 0 0.02 0,02
Less: Provision for impairment in value of investments (0.02) (0.02)}
Total investment in sruhsid-;ary and joint venture 306.22 460.47

* During the previous vear ended 31 March 2021, loan given to wholly owned subsidiary amounting 1o Rs 496.49 crores has been
converted into investment in Equity Shares at the face value of Rs 10 per share.

Financial Assets

Note 6: Investinents

Particolars Face value 33 March 2022 41 March zoz|

A. Investments carried at fair value through other
comiprehensive income:
Investments in Equity shares
(D) Quoted
0.00 * o.00 *
496,100 { 31 March, 2021: 496,100) shares of HGI Industries Ltd. $ e
4,996,086 ( 31 March, 2021: 4,996,986) shares of Kesoram Textile 2 20.18 20.18
Mills Limited #
20,18 20.18
(i} Unguoted
30,000 ( 31 March, 2021: 30000} shares of Birla Buildings 1.td 10 48.40 52.28
10,000 ( 31 March, 2021: 10,000) shares of Corotnande] Stampings & " .
Stones Ltd $ 10 0.00 0.00
143,000 ( 31 March, 2021; 143,000) shares of Kesoram Services
Limited (Eratwhile Kesoram Insurance Broking Services Ltd} 10 1.06 Lo3
10,455 ( 31 March, 2021: 10,455) shares of Calcutta Stock Exchange . i} _
Association Ltd
;(;c(i gtly m, 2021: 10) shares of Meghdoot Co-operative Housing 100 0.00 * 0.00 *
7,231 ( 31 March, 2021: 7,231) shares of Padinavati Investment Ltd 10 3.65 3.36
18,800 ( 31 March, 2021; 18,800) shares of Vasavadatta Services 1xd 10 0.54 0.56
= 53.65 57.23
Total Investments 73.83 7741
(i) The carrying value and market value of unquoted investments are as below:
(a) Quoted
Carrying value 20.13 20.18
Market value 2018 2018
Unquoted
Carrying value 53.65 57.23

# market values in cases of some quoted investments are not available, hence the fair value has been considered as market values in such
cases

$ cost of these equity instruments have been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possible fair
value measurements and cost represents the best estimate of faic value within that range.

* Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company




Kesoram Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(Al amounts in Ropees crores, unless otherwlse stated)
Note 7: Loans

Particulurs 31 Mareh 202z §1 Maorch 2oz

A. Non-current (at amorlised cost)
Credit impaired
(a) Loan Lo joint venture company 711 A%
Less: Allowance for eredit loss (7.11} (7.01)
b) Loan to subsidiary [refer Note (a) below] 154,46 131.20
Lzse: Impairment Lass on Subsidiary Loan - -
15446 131.20
(2 1 Loan to others [refer Note (b} below] 510.67 493.22
Less: Impairment Loss on Loan {o Body Corporate (510.67) (493.22)
15446 131,20
B. Current {at amortised cost)
Unsecred, considered gond
{a} Loan to employees 0.50 0.04
{b ) Loan to others .30 6.68
6.80 6.7
Mote:
(a} The Loan to Cygnet Industries Lid, a wholly owned subsidiary company, was given after complylng with the provisions of section 18604) of the Companies Act, 2013. The loan was given
in accordance with the terms and conditlons agreed between the parties and is to be used by the recipient in the normel course of busi The lean is ble on d d. The Rate of
Interest on the loan is 10.5% p.a.
(b) Loan has been provided to Birla Tyres Limited, s body corporate, pursuant to the scheme of ar t and post d ble on d d and carrying an interest rate of

503% p.a. During the current year, the Company hss acconnted for Rs 26,45 crores as interest ncome on this loan which hast heen pnmded foran prudent basis as the particular asset is
already impaired.

(¢) Loans granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs & Related Parties

~Promeoters HNA NA N
-Directors NA NA NA
-KMFs N MA MA
-Related Parties

{a) Loan to Joink venture company {*)- without specifving any terms or & - - -
period of repayment

(b} Loan ta subsidiary {Cygnet lndustries Limited) - repayable on 154.46 13120 2% 21%
demand

HHE

® Loan of Ra 7.01 crores glven to Joint Venture has been fully provided for

ulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015

{d) Disclosure as per Reg

A ol b | PNk g Lnvestnient by Hhe leanies in
AR ILEMRED L snating during The ; iy
Hivi ik shaires al parent Canpany
¥en

e o e Coompay Kelatinnship

ypnet Industiles Limited Subsidiary 154.46

Note B: Other financlal assets )

Non-current

Deposit with original matority for more than 12 months * 028 .01

Secutity deposits 9.85 347
10.53 3.18

Current

Sectirity deposits .62 4.06

Balance with body corporates 10,63 1063

Letss: All for doubiful ady [10.63) {10:,63)

Interest accrued on deposits 016 0.08

Cthers 12.70 9.06
22,48 13,20

* Held as lien by bank against bank guarantees




Kesoram Industries Limited

Notes forming part of fi ial .
(All amounts in Rupees erores, unless otherwise stated)

Naote 9: Other assets
Particuliors 41 Mareh 2ouz ) Mareh 2o
Non-Curren|
Capital advances n.Bz 3.68
Prepald expenses 1.98 171
IE-E(! 5.39
[Current
Balance with statutory/government authorties 1520 17.62
Prepald expenses 784 335
Advance to vendors 1IL.67 $2.80
Less: Allowances for donbtful advances (32.61) (42.61)
}itecelvable from Gratuity Fund (Refer Note 25) .44 -
Clnim Receivable * 52,27 .29
Others 2.07 o87
Less: Allowanees for doubtful recelvabl (1.58) (0.15)
155.30 52.:7-|

* Pursuant to Cirevlar no 14 of 2017 (dated 30.03.2017) of the Ministry of Railways, the Company had entered into a Long Term Tariff Contract (LTTC) with the South Central
Zonal Rajlways for a period of 5 years. Since the Company has complied with the terms of the Cantract, it has accrued a Freight Rebate of 42.59 crores under Claims Receivable
for FY 2021-22.

Note 10: Inventories

Particulars 31 Mareh daeez 21 Mareh 2021

Raw materials 14.76 Q.00
Wark-in-progress 1L54 a4
Finished goods 33.88 1698
Stores and spare parts * Br.26 66,11
iq1.44 10150
Included above, goods-in-transit:
Raw materials 6.33 0.92
Finished goods 15.04 541
|Stores and spare parts Q.21 895
| 22,48 15.28
* The stores & spares | v hal is net of provision of Rs. 5.73 crores (31 March 2021: Provision ier Rs. 4,03 crores) towards slow moving, non-moving and obsalete
stock.
MNote 11: Trade receivables (All amounts in Rupees crores, unbess otherwise stated)
Farticalars A1 March zouz g1 March 2oz
Current
Trade Receivables
(a) Secured, considered good a¢.31 28.56
(b} Unsecured, considered good 290,08 240.85
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (3.68) {2:45)
(€) Credit impaired 7.27 620
Less: Allowanes for credit impalred (7.27) (6.20)
| 1671 274.96

Aging ol Trade Recvivables

Qutstunding for following periods from due date of Payments

Particulars tessthané | 6 months -1 More than 3
Not Due o year =2 years | 2-3years years Total

Undisputed Trade Recelvables

(1) Secured - considered good 26.27 8,41 - - - 0.01 29.69
(1) Unsecured - considered good 264.58 16.76 192 1,37 o.41 0.04 | 200.08
Dispusted Trade Receivables

(i) Secured - considered good - = - [+ X1 0.09 a.52 o.62
{ii) Unsecured - credit impaired - - 0.40 1.66 L) 4.15 727
Total Debtors aar.A5 20,17 2,32 3.24 1,36 4.72 | 32760
Less: Allowance for Loss - - - - - - (10.05)
Net Deblors 205.88 20,07 .32 2.4 1.36 4.72 | 3167

Aging of Tride Receivahles 2 March 2oz

Quistanding for following periads from due date of P
Particulars Lessthan 6 | 6 months -1 Maore than 3
Not Due - year 1-2years | 2-jyecars years Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables

(1) Secured - considered good 2208 5.03 0.23 0.07 0.03 E 2744
(i) Unsecured - considered good 229493 15.63 1.00 1.99 090 - 248,85
Disputed Trade Receivables

(i} Secuced - conskdered good - [+¥-] 0.37 0.3 a.36 0.24 112
(i) Unsecured - credit impaired - .56 070 0,35 2.00 B0 6.20
Total Debtors 252.01 2123 .39 R4 2,60 274 | 283.61
Less: Allowance for Loss = - - - - - {8.65)
Net Deb 282.01 a1.24 230 2.54 2.69 2.74| 274.06




HKesoram Industries Limited

Notes forming part of financial stateinents
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note 12: Cash and cash equivalents

F1 March 2022 31 March 205

Particolars

Cash and ¢ash oquivalents
Cagh on hand 0.06
Balanees with bank
In Current a¢counts 10320
Others
Depasit with original maturity 1ass than three months 15.71
118.97

Note 13¢ Other bank balances

AL Murch 202z 31 March 2021

Irarticilars

Depasit with original maturity for more than three months but less than .
twelve months 5719 a7
On unpaid dividend accounts .02 0.02

57.21 14,49

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2oz

000

Depesits more than three months includes:-
56.90 14.44

- Depashs pledged with the sales tax authorities
- Held as Jien by bank against bank guarantess




Kesoram Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financlal statements
(All amounts in Rupecs crores, unless otherwise stated)
Note 14t Equity shere capital and other equity
Note 14 {a): Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital

Particulars A1 Murch 2oz 0 March avai

60,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

[2020-21: 60,00.00.000 shares]
6,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each
e8]

Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity

Particulars a1 March 2uze

24,40,224,163 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully
paid up

(31 March 2021: 16,48,11,341 Equity Shares of Rs.

10 gach fully paid vp)

784,933 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 ¢ach partly paid up 0.39 -
(31 March 2021: Nil Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each

31 March 029 at Mureh 2021
Opening balance 164.81 142.59
Freeh aharea isauerd 70,60 2.0
2441 104,01

a. During the financial year 2021-22, subseription for Rights iasue of 7,00,97.755 equity shares of ® 10 each for cash ata premium of Rs 40
per share aggregating to Rs 206.09 crore was opened, on which Rs 25 per shars was p g Rs 25 per share on
first and final cal) within six months from the date of allotment. The ssue was oversubsm'bed and: allotlnent ofthe pertly paid up equity
shares of Rs § each was made on 21st October 2021 and the trading of the said partly paid up equity shares wag available fror 28th October,
20:21 to Joth Hovemnber 2021,

'The first and final call for the aforesaid partly-paid vp shares wes made 3 times and the last date for payment was 19th March, 2022, First
and final call money for 7,96,35.460 shares was fved and the all for 7,92,12,822 was made till 3ast March, 2o22 and for 422,638
shares on 6th April 2022 . Out of the aforesaid allotted shares the trading of the 7,86,35,199 squity shares commenced by q1st March, zo2z
and 5,28,551 shares on 4th April, 2022 and the balance 4,71,710 shares will take place in due sourse. For the remaining 3,62,205 partly paid
up shares the Baard Committee hes decided to give alast and final reminder to the shareholders for payment of their first and final call
money.

First and final call money on 422, 638 hag been received which has been shown under share application money pending allotment of Rs 1.06
CLOTES.

There is no deviation in use of proceeds from the objectives as stated in the Offer Docoment for rights issus.

b. During the previcus vear, the Company issoed 2,22,21,262 Bquity Shares face value of Rs 10 each to the previous lenders on a preferential
basts on Bth March,2o21 at the price determined in d with the applicable law @ Rs 65 per share {induding securties premiurm of
Rs 55 per share). Refer Note 20 (b).

&, Uthlisation of Proceeds from Rights
The proceeds from the rights ssue (refer (a) above'l have been utiliced towards the obiect stated in the Offer Letter in the following manner:

]'nr'tlculun Funds Utilised

* The above Raure includes unutlised & ved of Rs 1.97 crores as or fist March, 2022,

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has two clesses of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share and partly paid up shares of Rs 5 each. All shareholders
for fully paid up equity shares are entitled to one vote per share and for partly paid up shares the voting rights considerad are in proportion to
the artual amount paid oo those shares. The Company declares and pays dividend in Tndian rupees. The dividend proposed by the board of
directors & subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case of interim dividend. In the event
of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distdbutlon of all preferantial
amounts, in the proportion to theit shareholdings.

(ii} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the comp
Sharcholder 31 Maech soc &0 Mareh 2ot

Number of shares % holding Number of o holding
Manav Investment & Trading Co. Lid 54319456 22.26% 3.39,66,601 20,619
i i tio
ﬂ:;;ldmmumnts and Industries Corporation 4,65.40,750 10.50% 279,380,750 16.59%

ited L22.77.710 5.24% 127,772,710 7.75%
11,34,45,910 46.49% 7,40,84,151 44.95%




(iii) Details of shareholdings by the Prometery Promater Group

31 March 202z A1 March 2oz % Chunge
brumelcoalinmouitysup Nan L MNumher of sharex e hobding Rillmluer ul, % holding LT .
shuyres the vear

Promolér
| Manay Investment & Trading Co. Lid 543,190,456 22.26% 3.19,66,601 20.61% 59:92%
Sf;;;:lnwslmcm and Industries Corporation 46348750 18.090% 2,75:38,750 16.50% p—_—
Manjushree Khaitan (Chairman} 10,69,723 0.44% 720,158 0.44% 48.54%
Promoter Group
Century Textiles 2nd Industries Ltd 76,00,502 F.11% 51,156,800 2.10% 48.54%
Aditya Macketing and Manufacturing Pvt. Ltd. 96,37,913 1.40% 24,49,111 L49% 48.54%
Padmavati Investment Pyt Lid. 28,20,048 116% 18,94.115 1.15% 48.54%
Birla Inetitute of Technology and Sclence 15,15,806 0.62% 1515806 co2% n.ou'.?él
Birla Education Trust 0,54,171 .39% 9,54.17t 0.50% 0.00%
Prakash Edueatonal Society 9,10,922 037% B,10,922 0.55% 0.00%
Late Basant Komor Birla 597,968 o.25% 402,496 0.24% 48.54%
Birln Educational Institution 9,62,643 15% 262,643 0.22% n,nn'.'&l
Vidola Jalan 1,71,381 0.07% 115977 0.07% 48.54%
Rajashres Birla 4,827 0.00% 3,250 0.00% 48.52%|
Vasavadutin Bajaj a51 0.00% 5750 0.00% 4B.54%)
Kumnr Mangalam Birla 445 0.00% 200 0.00% *3-33?_61

m,aﬂ_ﬂa.agﬁ 49.30% 757,601,340 4_‘5._959; 5B.H2%

* % change during the year has been computed an the basis of the no of shares at the beginniog of the year.

Note 14 (b): Other Equity

ForLiculars 4% March 2oss 20 Murch o

Securities Premium 1,230.99 G2L.40
Capital reserve

(a} Development grant/subsidy Q.15 015
(b) Amalgamation reserve 2.91 2.1
Capital redemption reserve 359 359
General reserve 224.00 224.00
Fair volue through other comprehensive income

(Fvoet)- equit,\-u:gil'nsll'umentsp 5584 58.46
Others 731 731
Retained earnings {1,163.98) {1,037.56)
Total Other Equity 360.81 182.35 |
(1) Becurities Premium

Particnulrs 30 Muarch 2o 21 Mineh 2043

Opening balance 92349 80127
Inerease/(decrease) during the year [Refer Note 14(a)] 307.50 10222
Closing balanee 1,230.99 923.49 |
(iil) Capital reserve

(a) Development grant/subsid

Opening balance 5 15
Transfer in equity - =
Closing balance 0.15 015

T
1.?*

L 4




(b) Amalgamalion reserve

Opening balance 2,51 .51
Increase/(decrease) during the year = =
Closing balance 2,91 2.91

{iiil} Capital redemption resecve
Furticnlars 21 Mureh 2ous 21 Murch 2o

Opening balance 2.50 3.59
Inerease/(decrease) during the year = =
Closing balunce 3.59 359
(iv) General reserve

Particulanrs #1 March o2z 31 March 2021

Opening balance 224.00 224.00
Increase/ (decrease) during the year & -
|Closing bnlnnee 2,00 224.00

(v) Fair valoe through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)- equity instruments

Tayiticulurs 31 March 2oz g March 2o

Opening balance 58.46 5056

Charige in fair value of FYOCT equity instruments net of taxes (2.62) 7.90
| Transfer i equity - -

Closing balance 55.84 68.40

(vi) Other reserves

Farlionlars S0 March 2o 21 Mineh 2o

Opening balance 7 731
Increase/(decrense) during the year - -
Closing balance 7.31 7.31
(vii) Retained earning

Furticulars 31 March 2oze 41 March aois

Opening balanee (1,037.56) (1,205.02)
Wet profit/(loss) for the year (130.01) 166.94
ltems of other comprehensive incorre ised directly in retained exrnings
-R t of post-empl benefit obligation, net of tax 3.59 0.52
Transfer in equity - .
Closing balance (1,163.98) (1,037.56)

Nature and purpose of other reserves

i) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Indian Companies Act, 2013 (the “Companies Act™).

(1i} Capital reserve

(a)ertain grants of capital nature had been credited vo Capital Reserve.

(b} The Company has recognised profit on t of arnal jon in eapital reserve.

{iif) Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve was created on t of rei of certain in and spares at cost,

(iv) General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1656, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net profit at a specified percentage in
d with applicabl lations. C Juent to the introduction of the Companies Act, the requi to datory transfer 8

specified pemenmg:of net profit 1o general reserve has been withdrawm.

(v} Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)- equity instruments

The cumulative gaine and losses arising on fair value changes of equity Investments 1 at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in FVOCI - equity instruments reserve. The balance of the reserve reg such ch gnised net of amaouni
reclassified to retained earnings on disposal of such investments.

{ui) Other reserves

Others primarily include:

{a) Amounts appropriated out of profit or loss for doubtful debts and conting
{b) 8hare buyback reserve has been created as per the Companies Act, 1956.
(¢} Reserve which has arisen on forfelture of shares.
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Financial Liabilitkes

Note 15: Borrowings

Particolars

Term Loans:

From othors

16,035 Senior Secured, Listed and Rated Redeemable
Non-Convertible Debentuores [face value of Rs 9,685,700 each [as

a1 Mareh zoz22

A bdinrch 2ozy

at gist March, 2o21: Rs 10,00,000 each}] 1. 1.984.66
[Refer note {a) below] 16853 3t
4,599 Secured Opilonally Convertible Debentures [face value of 3849 370.29
Rs 3,27,400 each (as at 315t March, 2021 Rs 10,00,000 éach]]

[Befer note (a) balow}
(b) Unsecured
At Fair Value through Profit & Loss Account

4,48,57,105 Zero % Oplionally Convertible Red bl o0 2407
Preferznice Shares [face valoe of Rs 100 each]- recognised at fair - 4
value [Refer Note (1) below]

_ _ 1692.92 1,829.02 |
Less: Curront maturitics of long term borrotwings (Refer below) (138.40) (55.00)
Add: Interest acerued on long térm borrowings - .
1,554.23 1, 77402
Current
(a) Secured
Curcent maturities of Optionally Convertible Debentures 138.49 E5.00
(b) UVnsecured
Working Capital Loan from Bank
Overdratt f Cash Credit [Refer Note {b)] .02
Prom others
Inter corporate doposit 300 3.00
L. 449 5802
Adld: Interest acerued on short term borrotwings 0.80 0.50
142,20 58.58

Net debt reconcilintion

“This section sets ont an analysis of debt and the movements In net debt for the corrent p

Purliculars

Cash and rash equivalents

Non-eurrent borrowings

R1E B

s1-Mar-zi

(|i§zz-55)

(1,741.65))

Diher aksels

Caxh and cash
wijpivalenis

Liabilities Ceom financiing aclivilics

Nineurrent
horrowings

Current
borrowings

(Al amounts in Ropees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Net debit as at 1 April 2oz 90,95 {L774.02) (5B.58) [1,741.65)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalenis during the year 20.04 - E 28.04
Repayment of Borrowing 309.33 5500 364.39
Receipt of the Borrowings. - (50.00) (50,00)]
Change in cash credit considered as cash and cash equivalent for

statemnent of cash flows (o.02) B 002 )
Interest expenses s {464.02) @99 (467.95)
Inerest paid 235-99 (0.44) 235.55
Changes in ¢urrent matorities of long-term debt - 136.49 (138.99) -
Nomn-cash movemenis:

I f ghares 10 M Tnvestment & Trading Co Ltd against

I::oo equity shares anav Investment ng Ce Lid agatn R . B4.13 5'”31
Nel debl ma nt 31 March gozz 118.97 (1,554.23) (142.29) ( l.sw-ssll
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Olher asse
Lunxlv ivmab ensh
ryiivadenls

finpicing actisilies
{urvent
borpowings

{All amounts in Rupees erores, unless otherwise stated)

Totnl

Net debt as at 1 April 2020 348 (1,337.46] (515.54) (n,849.82)
Cash Rows 212,27 (B78.22) 274469 (4191.26)
Change in cash eredit considered as cash and cash equivalent for

statement of cash flows (190.80) g 19080 =
Interest expenses + {136.51) (83.03) (219.54)
Intercst paid . 27541 127.30 40271
Conversion of acerved interest to Loan (45.55) - (4555
Unamoriised processing cost charged off (33.21) - (33z1)
Cha i I maturities of long-term debt and interest accrued

i ::]i:l: In current matun IONE-LEMmm al il ace (6932) (sﬁm) (124.:?}
Non-cash imovernents:

Lssue of OCRI'S and Equity shares for loan settlement 66,30 45084 220 51944
Net debt as nt 31 March 2021 90.95 (1.774.02) (58.58) h.?-il.é;)l

(8} Repayment terma and nature of gecurities given for borrowings from Othera are as follows:

Nature of Security

Repaymient Terms

Non-Convertible Deberdure 146353 1,594.66 . 3 Redeemabla in 12 instalments by 28th Febroary
First m;:;:ﬂ:::mﬁ::j::’i i 2026 slarting from November 2021, Tanure of
and ﬂ;mnﬂ and intangible of  ibstrument 4 years 11 months and 1z days from the

angible assets date of allotment .. 161h March, 2021. Cash
the Company., Additlonally secured by coupon ates: 118 hs @0.1% pa; 19-36 "
ﬁl'edfe on zﬁ,ﬁaﬁbz?&qulty shares of @ua%ps; 3}éomonths @ 13‘1%;:'
& Lomp N e P ' XIRR of 20.75% excluding addillonai nterest 1 anl
g;‘;m; m’ﬁ:mﬁ:&m O"  taves. First instalment for Rs 55 crores was paid in
promoler; November'21 and the next instalment is due in
guarantee by a promoter limited to the AugISH2S for R
value of shares pledged and under NDU g 7 RS 30,47 crayes.
as stated above.

Optionally Convertible Debenture 138.49 370.29 . Redeemable in August 2022, Tennre of Insbrument
Flrst pari passu chatge on all fixed 17 months and a5 days from the date of sflotment
assets, moveable assets (Non-custemt 5 o 6tk parch, 2021. Cash coupon rale @8.7% pa
and current) and intangible assets of i Jonicable: XIRR of 20.75% excluding additiona)
the Company. Addiionally secured bY | niarest 1 and tanes, Prepayment of Rs 300.33
pledge 00 2,60,41,587 equity shares of oo pas was made till March'zoez.
the C: held by the p ters ;

Non Dispasal Undertaking (NDLD on
ather seryrity held by a promoler;
guarantee by a promoter limited 1o the
value of shares pledged and under NDU
a8 stated above,
Zero Coupon Optionally Coovertible Redeemable Preference Shares 090.70 74.07 NA Red: ble in 5 equal instal starting from
FY z027-2R
1,692,72 1,829.02
‘The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings during the coresnt year. Fucther, the C y bas complied with all the applicabl a5 per the Deb Trust Deed for the year ended March 31, 2022,
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(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note 16: Other financial liabilities

Particnlars #1 March 2oz 34 March 2o
Non-Current
Security deposits g7 74.27
87.21 ”4.27
Current
Capital creditors 11.72 109
Retention & earnest deposits 10.99 0.30
Orher payables 271 8.64
Security deposits 30.56 17.22
Unpaid dividends * 0.02 0.02
56.00 86.27

* Note: There is no liability due which is required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund under section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act,
2015 except for disputed cases for shares held in abeyance under section 126,

Note 17t Provisions
Particulars 31 March 2ouz 34 March 2021

Non-Current

(a) Provision for employee benefits

Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 13.00 12.79

(b} Others

Decommissioning obligations 11.46 10.31
|Total non-current provisions 24.46 23.10

Current

(a) Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 25) - 1.46

Provision for leave encaghment {unfunded) 2.20 2.01

Others 017 2.22

(b) Others

Provision for contingencies - 1.71

Provision for disputed statutory dues 14.75 2519

‘Total current provisions 1712 53.40
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{All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Movemnent in provisions
Movements in each class of provision during the financial vear, are set out helow:

Provision For
dispuled
statutory dues

Iheeommissioning Provivion for

Particulars T T 2
ubligation contingencies

As at 1 April 2021 10.51 171 2519
Charged/{credited) to profit or loss: - - -
Additional provizion recognised - -

Unused amounts reversed - (171) (10.44)
| Amounts used during the year - - -
Unwinding of discount 115 - -

As at 31 March 2022 11.46 - 14.75

Movements in each class of provision during the previous year, are set out below:

Provision for
disputed
stalutory dues

Pecommissioning Provision for

Particulars pf + N
obligation contingencies

As at1 April 2020 9.28 1.2 22.63
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss; - - -
Additional provision recognised - 0.50 2.56
Unused amounts reversed = = =
Amounts used during the year - - :
'Transfer pursuant to the scheme of arrangement - - -
Unwinding of discount 1.04 - -
As at 31 March 2021 10.31 171 25,19

Note 18: Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities

Particulars 2 31 March 20

Deferred Tax Liabilities

‘Timing Difference - Property, plant and equipment 201,70 215.00
Timing Difference - Investments 14.22 15.18
Timing Difference - Amortisation of Debenture interest 17.41 67.33
Other 9.00 12.48
Gross Deferred Tax Liability 242.42 309.99
Deferred Tax Assels

Unabsorbed depreciation 217.32 214.68
Capital losses 27.20 27,20
Business losses 99.34 160,21
Ttems allowable for tax purpose on payment basis 16.72 22,34
Provisions 147.33 139.64
Others 6.66 2.54
Gross Deferred Tax Asset 514.87 571.62
Net Deferred Tax Assets 272,45 261.63

The Company has recognised net deferred tax asset considering that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax losses can be utilized,

Note 19+ Other liabilities

Particulars 31 March zoz2z 31 Marvch 2021

Non-current
Advance received from Employees 0.41 0.57
0.41 0.57
Current
Deferred revenue 14.88 24.19
Advance from customers & others 33.85 35.72
Statutory dues 110.83 136.09
Advance received from Employees 0.36 0.94
Other payables 32.07 20.42
200.99 217.36
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(All amoumts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note 20: Trade payables
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2oz

Current

() Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and sroall 19.86 15.70

enterprises {Refer Note 34)

(b) Totsl outstanding dues of creditors other than micre 492,69 495.48

enterprises and small enterprises

() Employee benefits payable 17.11 20.30
520.96 531.48

Aging of Trade Payables

Asx on st March zozz

Total

Particulars < 1year 1-2 years 243 years
years

(i) MSME 19.86 - - - 19,86
(i} Other Creditors 460.02 19.60 .43 514 491.19
(iiii) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
{iv) Disputed Dues - Qthers - - - 1.80 1.80
{v) Employee’s henefits payable (undisputed) 14.37 1.54 0,28 0.92 17.11
Total 494.25 21.14 6,71 7586 520.06

Aging of Trade Payahles

As on 315t Maveh oz

Particulars < 1year 1-2 years -3 years More than 3 Total
years
{i) MSME 15.70 = - - 15.70
{ii) Other Creditors 425.48 5114 12.14 3.89 493.65
{iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - 0.03 1.80 1.83
(v) Employee's benefits payable (undisputed) 18.00 0.96 0.48 0.86 20,30
Total 459.18 52.10 13.65 6.55 531.48

Naote: Aging has been considered from the date of transaction
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Note 21: Revenue from operations

Iz ]

Particulars
Revenue from contracts with customers #
Sale of Products 2,530.22 2,410.28
Other gperating revenue 9.4 4.93
3,539,506 2,415.21
# The entre revenoe is being recorded at a point in time.
A, Revenue from contracts with enstomers disaggregated on the basis of geographical region and product lines is presented below:
Year ended 31 March, 2022
Cement 3.530.22 - 3,530,322
L 3,530.22 - 3,530.22
Year ended 31 March, 2021
Cemont 2,410,28 - 2,410.28
| 2,410.28 - 2,410.28
B. The Company has recognised the following Jated contract liabilities and receivables iram contract with costomers
Purticulurs 2021-202% 20202021
Contract liabilities — Deferred revenue [Refer Note 19] 14.B8 24.19
Contract abilities - Advance from customers [Refer Nite 19] 3385 35,72
48.73 59.91

The change in Contract Liabilities are ag follows:

Particulars BD21-2023 BOZG-20RL
Contract linbilities - Opening 5
Add: Additicns doring the year, excluding amounts recognised as 48.65 §6.81
revenue during the year
Legs: Revenue recognised in the current year which was included {59.83) (32.73)
in Contract Liabilities
|Contract Liabilities - Closing 48.73 59.91
Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021
Trade Receivables- Gross 516.71 274.96
Less: Allowance for doubtfu} debt - -
316.71 274.90

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract ligbilities and how much relates to periormance
obligations that were not satisfied in a prior year.

2ou1-2H2L

Particulirs

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract lability balance at the beginning of the period:

Contract liabilities — Deferred revenue 24,19 026

Contract liabilities - Ad from 35.64 32.47
59.83 32.73

Note 22! Other Income

22020

Particulors

Interest income:
On Anancial instruments measured at amortised cost A4 27 B2.10
O income tax refund 0.39 t.o1
Less: Provision for Doubtful Interest Income * (26.45) -
Dividend income 0.02 o.02
Other non aperating income 19.92 14,08
38.15 102,22

* Refer Note 7 (b)
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Note 23: Cost of Materials Consmmned

Raw Material Consumed
Opening inventory 200 Bag¢
Adil : Purchases 188.95 128.70
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 14.76 4.00
Add: Raising lime stone cost 17787 104,79
a61.06 237.83
{a) Limestone raising cost include:
Salaries, Wages, Boous ele. 12.67 1137
Contribution to Provident and other Funds 0.53 0.48
Contribution to Gratuity Fund (refer note 25) .43 047
Workmen and Staff welfare a.20 0.25
Dead Rent, Royalty etc. 90.41 63.94
Power and Fuel 12.63 4.40
Siores and spares parls consumed 35.08 19.2¢
Machinery repairs 4.97 372
Other repairs .39 0.10
Rates and taxes - 015
Insurance 0.03 0.02
Contractors-Transport 9.47 4.72
Miscellaneous 197 0.88
177.87 109.70

Naote 24: Changes in stock of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock 1o trade

Particulars 2020:2021
Inventories at the beginning of the year
- Wark - In - progress .41 15.62
- Finished Goods 1608 75
Less: Tnventories at the end of the year
= Work - in - progress 11.54 9.41
- Finighed Goods 31388 16.98
Less: Transferred to Capital Jobs 0.5 0,03
{19.18) 26.51
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Note 25: Employec benefits expense

Particulars ZHBr-20p0 20202021

Salaries, wages and bonus X 125.91
Centribution to provident fund . 6.04
Contribution te sup jon fund . 0.08
Gratuity ) 3.08
Camrlhuunn under Empl State T Sch . 0.29
v 1 fan @k . 2.67
‘?tnff\n-t:ll’arc expenses K 4.76
Total employee benefit I 32 141,23
During the year, the Company recognised an amount of Bs. 6,95 erore (2020-21; Rs. 5.95 crores ) af tion to key gerial | 1, The details of such

remuneration is as below:

Particulars 2212122

Short term employee benefits
Post employment benefiis 0.20 0.17
Total employee henefits exp 6.35 5.3_5_J

Compensated absences cover the Company’s liability for sick and earned leave.

(i) Defined bengfit plan

o) Gratuity

The Company operates a gratuity plan through the “KICM Gratuity Fund”®. Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for each
completed year of service in line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The same is payable at the time of separation from the Company or I, which is earlier.
‘The benefits vest after five years of continwous service.

b) Provident fund

Provident fund for certain eligibl ! is d by the Company through the “B, K. Birla Group of Companies Provident Fund Institution® and "Birla Industries

Provident Fund®, in line with the Pr(mdent Fund and Miscellaneous Prwiﬂoms Act, 1952, The plan guarantees interest at the rate notified by the Provident Fund Authorities,
The conmbuuon by the employer and employee together with the Interest accumulated thereon are payable to employees at the time of their separation from the Company
or retirernent, whichever is earlier. The benefits vest immediately on rendering of Lhe services by the employee.

The Comtpany has an obligation to fund any shortfall on the yield of the trust’s investnents over the administered interest rates on an annual basiz. These administered rates
are determuined annually predominantly considering the social rather than economic factors and in most cases the actual retum earned by the Company has been higher in
the past years. The actuary has provided a valuation for provident fund liabilities on the basis of guidance issued by Actuarial Society of India and based on the below
provided assumpticns there is no shortfall as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 respectively.

The Company also pays provident fund contributions to publically administered local fund as per the local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contribulicns are aceounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as emploves benefit expense
when they are due.

The details of fund and plan asset position are given below:

Present value Fair \ulm of plun

g
of obligation Nt amount

Particulirs

ns al 31 March 2021
a5 al 31 March 2022 27.51 29.08

The plan assets have been primarily invested in government seenrities.

Assumptions used in determining the present value obligation of the interest rate guarantee under the Delerministic Approach:
Pariicalars #1 March 2ozz 31 March 2oz

Discount Rate (per annum) 8.50% 8.50%
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets (per antim) B.50% 8.50%

The Company contributed Rs. 1.78 crores and Re. 2.61 crores during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 respactively to the fund.
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(it} Defined contribution plan
Superannuation Fund; The Company bas defined contribution supersanuation plan for the benefit of its eligible employees. Employees who are members of the defined
contribution snperanmuation plan are entitled to benefits depending on the yesrs of service and salary drawn.

Separate irrevoeable trust is maintained for 1 d and entitled to benefits. The Company contnbutes 15% Off Lhe eligible employees’ salary or Rs, 1 lakh,
whichever is Jower, in cage of NPS participating employvees and 15% of the basic salary in case of Non NP3 pariiciy ployees to the trust every year, Such
contribulicns are recognised as an expense as and when incurred. The Company does not have any further obligation beyond this contribution.

The Company contributed Rs. 0,02 crore and Es. ¢.02 Crore during the year ended 21 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 respectively.

Al t€ in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

(iv) Bal sheet r ihomn

a) Graluity
The amounts recognised in the balance shest and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

PFrosent value  Faivvalue of plan

Fra Net am
of abligation EETTUES ctaniaung

Pavticnlurs

01 April 2021
Current service cost 3 19 - 3.19
Interest expense/(income) .57 {3.61) (0.04)
Total amonnt reeoEr=|ised in profit or loss 6.76 {3.61) 3.18]
Remeasurement
Return oo plan assets, excluding ts included in interest expense/{income) - (0.33) 0.33
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in 4 graphi ptions - - -
Actuarial (gain)/logs from change jn financial pi (0.86) - (0.B6)
Actuarial (gain)/loss from unexpected experience {3.06)] - {3.06)
|Total t recognised in other comprehensive income — (3.92) (0.33) (3.59)
Employer contributions; premium paid — 146 1.46)
Benefit payments 4.15) 4.15] -
Seltlement Cost . -
Aeguisition adjustment - - -
Ign March 2022 SL76 52.20 {0.44)

Particulirs calie Fair vilue of plan Nel andount

FILET

o1 April 2020 48.69 41.78 6.1

Current service cost 324 = 324
I pense/ (i ) 3.15 (2.84) 0.31
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 6.39 (z.84) 3.55
Remeasurement

Return on plan assets, excluding ts included in i t exp f (i }) - 4.91 (4.01)
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions - - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (0.90) - {0.90)
Actuarial (gain)/loss from unexpected experience 3.71 - 3.71
[Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 2.81 4.91 (2.10)
Employer contributions/ premium paid - 5.90 (6.00)
Benefit payments 4.82 4.82 -
Settlement Cost - - -
Disposalf Transfer of Asset - - -

|31 March zoz1 53.07 EL.61 1.46




Kesoram Industries Elmited
Notes forming part of financial statements
<all in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

{v) Significant estimat, hiarial rpii
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:;
X 31 Murch 2oz 51 March 2021
7.00% 6.H0%
5.00% 5.00%
1.00% 1.00%
. TALM zo12-20 TALM 2012-20
Mortality rate ULTIMATE. ULTIMATE
[TX1] in Ruj crores, unless otherwise stated)

(vi) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:
Particonlars Tmpract on defined benefit obligation

41 March = 21 March 2o
Increase Decronsy Inereane

Decrease

Discount rate (-/+ 0.5%)

% chauge compared to base due to sensitivity -4.15% 4.46%

Salary growth rate (-/+ 0.5%) 54.02 49.64 55.46 50.83
4.36% -4.10% 4.50% 4.42%
5177 5L75 53.08 53.06
0.02% -0.02% 0.02% ~0.02%

Life expectancy/ mortality rate (-/+ 10%) 5178 5174 23,00 53.06

% change compared to base due Lo sensitivily 6.04% -0,04% 0.03% -0.03%

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unkikely to oceur, and changes in some
of the assumplions may be correlated, When calenlating the sensitivity of the defined benefit cbligation to signifieani actuarial assumptions the same method {present value
of the defined benefit obligation ealculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporiing period) has been applied as when eslculating the defined benefit
liability recognised in the balance sheet,

The methods and types of assumplions used in preparing the senitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.
{vii} The major categories of plons 5

In the ab of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded with I Companies, the position of each major calegory of plan assels, the
percentage or amount for each category to the fair value of plan assets has not been disclosed.

{viii} Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which arve detailed belmy:

Irevestrent risk:

The defined benefit plans are funded with i companies of India. The Company does not have any liberty 10 manage the funds provided to insurance companies.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated vsing a di t rate determined by reference to the Government of India bonds. If the return on plan
asset is below this rate, it will ereate & plan deficit.

Tnteresi risk:

A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.

Life expectancty:

The present value of the defined benefit plan lLiability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and at the end of the
employment, An increase in the lfe exp of the plan particip will i the plan liability.

Salary growih risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the futurs salaries of plan participants. An increase in the salary of the plan panlicipants
will increase the plan Liability,

{ix) Defined benefit liabikty and employer contributions
Expected contributions lo post-employment benefils plans for the year ending 31 March 2023 is Rs. 7.75 crores.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 13 years (31 March 2021 - 13 years).
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Note 26: Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particuliirs 2021-2022 20202021
Depreciation on tangible asseis 76.87 8o.10
Amortisation of Right to Use assets 13.86 16,11
90.73 96,21

Note 27: Finance cost

Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021

Interes! expenses 467.07 240.43

Interest on Lease Liabilities 1.48 2.07

Dther borrowing costs 13.15 5.31
4817 22581 |

Mote 28: Other expenscs

Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021
Consumplion of stores and spare parts 48.63 20.42
Rent 19.15 10,32
Repairs and Maintenance
Building 5.85 4.00
Plant and Machinery 51401 36.59
Qthers 270 2077
Insarance B.a6 6.09
Rates and Taxes 6.68 533
Brokerage and Discounts 29,11 17.04
Commission to selling agents 283 7.38
|sates Promotion 47.33 19.80
Directors’ Fees 0.68 101
Legal & Professional Expenses 38.40 30.86
Provision for doubtful debts 2.47 2.28
Provision for doubthul advances 163 -
Loss/{(Profit) on property, plani and equipments sotd/ discarded (nei) 0.13 (0.27)
Payments t¢ the auditor [refer Note (a) below] 2.53 2.06
|Security Services 6.76 5.85
Miscellancous expenses |refer Note () helow] 31.29 23.25 |
312.33 205.67
(a) Details of auditors’ remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses are as below;
Audit Fees (including Limited Reviews) 2,14 2,14
Tax Audit Fees 0.30 0.45
Fees for issuing various certificates 2.04 1.31
Reimbursement of Expenses - 0.06
Total 4.48 3.96

* The above figure includes Rs 1.95 crores for Rights issue certification work transferred to Securities Premium and not
charged to Profit & Loss,

(b) Miscellaneous expenses include
{i) Consumption of stores and spares parts 2.35 1.53

{c) Legal & Professional expenses include
(i)} Payment to cost auditor 0.05 0.05
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Notes forming part of financial statements

{All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note 29: Exceptional items

Particnlars 2py-2ouz ZRO-EOZ]

Impairment Loss on Subsidiary Investment [refer Note a] (154.25) (78.95)
Difference due to Fair ¥alue of OCRPS net of settlement cost [refar Note b - 277.34
| Impairment Loss on Loan to Body Corporate [refer Note ¢) = (493.22)

(154.25) (294.53)

a) The Company has carried out an impairment analysis in respect of its Investment and loan to its wholly owned subsidiary Cygnet Industries Limited and
consequently recognised an additional provision for impairment of Rz, 154.25 crorez [FY 2o20-21: R2. 78.95 crore] which has been presented as an
Exceptional Item in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022,

The assessment was based on the management’s business plans/future projections approved by the Board of Directors. The key assumptions used for
computation of valvue in use were the sales prowth rate, gross profit margins, long-term growth rate and the risk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate. The post-tax
digcount rates were derived from the Company’s weighted average cost of capital, taking into account the cost of capital, to which specific market-related
premium adjustments are made. The Company had performed sensitivity analygiz by changing the aforementioned variables independently, keeping the
other variables constant, based upen which, there would be no material increase to the impairment charge which would impaci the decision of the vser of
the financial statements.

b) During the previous year, a Resolution Plan (“the Plan™) was approved by the lenders under the Reserve Bank of India (Prudential Framework for
Resolution of Stressed Assets) Directions, 2019 issued by Reserve Bank of India vide its circular 7th June 2019. Pursuaat to the Plan, the Company had
entered inle a Setilement Agreement (“the Agreetnent”) with the lenders dated 20th February, 2021, which was forther amended on 15th Maceh, 2021, The
Agr t entails setil t of the existing Gross debt aggregating to ¥ 2,181.81 ¢rores as at 315t January, 2021 in the following manner and divided inio
three paris:

i} By issnance of 2,22,21,262 pumbers of Equity Shares of face valua of T 10 each to the lenders oo a preferential bagis on Sth March,2021
at the price determined in accordance with the applicable law @ % 65 per share (ineluding securities premium of © 55 per share).

if) By issuance of 4,48,97,195 numbers of Zero % Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ('OCRPS') of face value of T100
each issned to the lenders convertible with prior congent of the holder and at the option of the Company during the period of 18 months
from the date of allotment, and redeemable at par over the period of five vears starting 315t March, 2028 in five equal tranches,

iiii) Upiront repayment of Existing facilities to the extent of ¥ 1,670.04 crores to the lenders.
The Company during the previons year ended 315t March, 2021 had issued OCRPS has been initially recognised at fair valoe in the books. The resultant net

gain of ¥ 277.34 crores, et of settlement costs, as at the date of implementation of the Plan between the carrying amount of the facility before settlement
and on fair value of OCRPS / Equity was rect d in ‘the Stat 1 of Profit and Loss" as an exceptional item.

¢} The eompany consequent to demerger in the finaneial year 2019-20 had recognised an amount reccverable from the resulting company. As on March 31,
2021, the related onistanding balance is Rs. 493,22 erores. Duting the previous year, the Company recognised a provision for impairment in respect of this
outstanding bal , as the Iting company was going throngh a Resolution Process and the outeome of the same was dependent on impl tation of

the Resclution Process. This impairment loss was considered as an exceptional item in the previons year.

Note 39: Income tax expense

This wote provides an analysis of the Company's income tax expense, shows amonnis that are recognised directly in equity snd how the
tax expense is affecied by non-assessable and non-deductible items.

Particalues 41 March zozz 31 March 2o

(a) Income tax expense

Current pax

Current tax on profits for the year - -

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods * - (43.87)
|Total enrrent tax expense - (43_3?_3

Deferred tax

Decrease (increase) in deferved tax assels 56.74 (266.22)

(Decrease) inerease in deferred tax liabilities (67.57) 4.60
Fl‘ulal deferred tax expense/(benefit) (m.s-:;) (261.62)
[Income tax expense (10.83) (305.49)

* Adjustments for corrent lax of prior periods represents write back of exvess provisicn for income tax of earlier years on disposal of pending litigations.

Particulars 31 March 2oz 4 March 2oz
Deferred lax assels 514.87 57162
Deferred tax liabilities (242.42) (309.99)
Closinﬁ Balance 272.45 201.63
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(Al nts in Rupees erores, nnless otherwise stated)
Asal Apr o1,  Recognised in - Recognised in . Asal
021 Statement of Other Mareh 4
Particulars Profit and Loss Gmnpr.clleusi\- 31, 2T t.iuc tt.l
¢ Inconwe Uncertinty
Refer Note
(¢) heluaw
A.Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed depreciation 210.68 (2.36) - 217.32 -
Capital losses 2720 - - 27.20 -
Business losses 164.21 {60.87) = 99.34 156.12
Provisicn for donbtfol debts 11.04 o.62 - 11,66 -
Provision for doubtful advances 179 0.01 180 -
Other Provisions 126.81 706 - 133.87 -
Items allowable for tax purpose on payment basis 22.34 (1.94} - 20.40 -
Others 2.55 | 0.78 - 3.28 -
R7L.62 (56.74) - | 587 156,12
B. Deferred tax liabilities
Difference bet: book hal and tax bal of property, plant and equipment 215.00 (13.30) - 20170 -
Difference batween fair value of investment and indexed cost of scquisition 1518 {0.06) (0.96) 14.22
Difference on account of amortisation of Debenture interest 67.3% (49.02) 17.41
Others 12.48 {2.39) .00 -
300.99 (67.57) (0.96}| 24242 =
Net deferred tax assels / (labilities) (A-B) 261, 10.83 096 | 272.45 156.12

Asal apror.  Rocopniscd in - Reeopnised in Asal Nat
24120 Statement of Other March  Recoynised
Pacticulars Profit and Luss  Comnprehensiv 3, 2020 dne to
< Income Uncertainty
Refer Note
fars helow
A.Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed depreciation 17.07 202.61 219.68 -
Capital losses 27.69 (0.49) 27,20 -
Business losses 7765 8256 - 160.21 17.30
Provision for doubtful debits 14.54 (3.50) - 11.04 -
Provision for doubtful advances 2.49 (0.70) - 179 -
Other Provisions 138.90 (1218} 126.81 -
Items atlowable for tax purpose on payment basis 26.00 (3.66) 22.34 -
Others 0.06 158 - 2.55 -
305.30 266.22 - 57162 117.30
B. Deferred tax Mabilities
Diffarence batween book balance and tax balance of property, plant and equipment 28076 (74.76) - | 215.00 -
Difference between fair valne of investment and Index cost of acquisition 13.62 1.56 15.18
Ditference on account of Amortisation of Debenture inlerast - 67.33 - 67.52
Others 2.01 10.47 - 12.48 -
30539 3.04 L.56 | 300.00 -
Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (A-B) 0.00 AR {1.56)| =261.63 117.20

(h) Reconcilintion of tax expense and the accounting
Particalars

rofit multiplicd by tax rate:

31 March 2021

Profil before tux BB .
Tax at the rate of 25.168% (35.20) (35.26)
Dieferred 1ax asset not recognised - -
Exemplt income - -
Déductions claimed in lax - -
Permanent differences 018 17.62
Provision for Impairment on Investment in Subsidiary 28.82 10.87
Others (including difference in tax rates) (3.80) (2.23)

Total Income tax ﬂense/(crelﬂ_i)

(c) Tax losses

Particulars
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax has been recognised:
- Tax losges

31 March 20z2

21 March 2021

- Loss on provision for Impairment on Iovestment in Subsidiary {Refer Note 5) f20.32 466,07

Patential tax benefit @ 25,168% on Business losg 156.12 117.30

Minimum alternale tax (MAT) credit entitlerneat -
I‘i'otal 150,12 117.30

(a) Unabsorbed depreciation does not have any expiry period.

(b) From finaneial year 2020-21 (AY 2021-22) and onwards, the company bas opted a new tax regime as per the provisions of Section 115BAA of the Income

Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, reinstated brought forward business losses f unshsorbed depreciation hag besn o

d while cc

¥

ing deferred tax assets.
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Note 312 Enrnings per share

Particwlirs

i) Basic
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year
Number of equity shares at the end of the year
Weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year (*}
Hominal value of each equity Share (Rs)
Profit / {Loss) for the year (Rs. in crore)
Earnings per share (Basic) (Rs.)

(il) Diluted
‘Weighted average number of equity shares ouvtstanding doring the year (*)
Earnings per share {Diloted) (Rs.)

PLLbER R A

16,48,11,341
24,40,24,163
20,01,31,405
0

{13001}
(650}

20,01,3L405
(6.50)

2020-2007

14,25,90,079
16481180
15,85,67,203]
10

166.94
10.53

15:85,67,203
1053

* Basie and diluted eamnings/(Joss) per share for the previous year have been retrospectively adjusted for the bonus element in respect of the Rights Tssue made doring the

current year. Refer Note 14 {(a).

Note 32: Contingent Habilities

Particulars
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

31 March 2a2z

31 March zoz1

In the opinicn of the manag o provision is considered

Note 33: Capilal and other commitments

31 March anez

Capital Commitments
Estimated value of contracts in capital accotnt ining to be d et of adh 26.06 319
Rs. 2.99 erores (31 March zozr: Bs. 1.59 crores)]
20,00 349

(i) Rates, Taxes, Duties etc, demanded by various Authorides 164,10 213:47
(b) Income Tax matters 15.02 15.453]
185.02 228.90

d abave on the ground that there are fair shances of ful oul of

gt March 2021

Note 34: The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises D p
('MSMED Act'). The disclosures pursuant to the spid MSMED Act are as follows:
Yarticulars

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and
remaining unpaid as at year end

d under the MSMED Act and remaining

I due to suppll i
unpaid as at year end

Principal ts paid to suppliers regl

g d under the MSMED Act,
heyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the
year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

d under MSMED

Interest due and payable towards li i
Act, for payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

‘e above information regarding Micro and Small enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been

3 March 2o

15.70

010

identified on the basis of information available with the Company
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Naote 35: Lease Disclosure

1. The following is the break-up of current and non-corrent lease liabilities as at 215t March, 2022,

Particulars Boywp-gn

Current Lease Liability
Non Corrent Lease Liability 1.48 531

6.66 16.72

2. The following is the mavement in lease liabilities during the year ended 315t March, 2021:

Opening Bolanee 16.72 2211
Additions during the year 2,00 6.60
Finance cost acorwed during the period 148 2.07
Deletions 0.09 0.54
Payment of lease liabilities 13.45 13.61
| Closing Balance 6.66 16.72
3. Expense pertaining to leases which has been identified as Short Term 16.98 6.82
4 Expense pertaining to leases which hag been identified as Low Value [1%11 .00

5. Contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 215t March, 2022 on an undiscounted basis
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of Jease liabilites as at 31st March, 2022 on an undiscounted basis:

Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years




Kesoram Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements
{All amounis in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note 36: Capital management
(a) Risk management

The capital structore of the Company consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company which comprises issued share capital {including
premium) and accumulated rezerves disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

The Company's capital m ment objective is to achieve an optimal weighted average cost of capital while continuing 1o safeguard the Company's ability to meet its liguidily requirements

(including itz commitments in respect of capital expenditure} and repay loans as they fall due.

Note 37 : Fair value measurements

R

This section gives an overview of the siguificance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additicnal information on balance sheet items (hat ial instr
The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respeet of each
class of financial asset, financial lability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements,

Financial instruments by category

21 March 2022 “Total

Particolars e TN
VO | Y !
FYOCT AR Yaloe

Total Fair
Value

Financial assets

Cash and rash equivalents - - 118.97 13.97 118.97
Other bank balances - - 57.21 5721 57.21
Trade receivables - - 316.71 31671 a6
Loans - - 161.26 161.26 16126
Investments - 73.83 = 73.83 73.83
Other financial assets = = 32.61 42.61 42,61
Total financial assets - =»3.8% 686.76 760.50 760.59
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 90,70 - 1,605.82 1,606.52 1,606.52
Trade and other payables - - 520.06 520.06 520.96
Lease Liability = . 6.66 6.66 6.66
Other financial liabilities - - 143.21 143.21 143.21
Total financial inbilities 90.70 - 2,285.65 2,376,135 2,376.&5_

31 Mareh 2oz

. X Total Fair
Particulurs Amortised g \«:ﬂ]lll‘

FVI'L VO T value

Finaneial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - 90.95 90.95 90.95
Othier bank balances - - 14.49 14.49 14.49
Trade receivables - - 274.96 274.96 274.96
Loans = - 137.02 137.92 137.92
Investments - 7741 - F741 7741
Other financial assets - - 16.38 16,38 16.38
_To_ta] ﬁnancia_l_ assels - it 1 534.70 612,11 612,11
Finarwial liobilities

Borrowings 7497 - 1,758.53 1,832.60 1,832.60
Trade and other payables . - 531.48 531.48 531.48
Lease Liability - - 16.72 16.72 16.72
Other financial Habilities - - 110.54 110.54 110.54
Total financial liabilities 74.07 = 2,417.27  2,491.34  2,491.33
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Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)
(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value, grouped into Level 1 to Level g, as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by
reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of
investment in quoted equity shares.

Valuation technigques with observable inputs (Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and
labilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This level of hierarchy includes Company’s over-
the-counter {OTC) derivative contracts.

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): This level of hierarchy includes financial
assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unohservable inputs). Fair values
are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. This level of
hierarchy includes Company's investment in equity shares which are unquoted or for which quoted prices are not available at
the reporting dates.

31 March 2022

Particulars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets:

Investments 5 = 73.83 73.83
- - 73.83 73.83 |

[Financial labilities:

Borrowings - 90.70 - 90.70
- 90.70 3 00.70 |

31 March 2021

Particulars

Level 2 Level 3
Investments = = 77.41 7741
. - 77.41 7741 |
Financial liabilitiess
Borrowings - 74.07 - 74.07
= m3.07 - 74.07 |

(i) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
(a) Derivatives are fair valued using market observable rates and published prices together with forecasted cash flow
information where applicable.

{(b) Investments carried at fair value are generally based on market price quotations. However in cases where quoted prices
are not available the management has involved valuation experts to determine the fair value of the investments. Different
valuation techniques have been used by the valuers for different investments, These investments in equity instruments are
not held for trading. Instead, they are held for long term strategic purpose. The Company has chosen to designate this
investments in equity instruments at FVOCT since, it provides a more meaningful presentation. Cost of certain investments in
equity instruments have been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possible fair
value measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.

(¢) Fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows. The carrying amounts of other
borrowings with floating rate of interest are considered to be close to the fair value.

() The carrying amounts of remaining financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values.

(e) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent
limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates
presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in sale
transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be
different from the amounts reported at each reporting date. =
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(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note 38: Financial risk management

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices,
liguidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company has a risk management policy which
pot ouly covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities such as interest rate risks and credit
risks, The risk management policy is approved hy the Board of Directors. The risk mabnagement framework aims to:

(i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations on the Company’s business plaun.
(ii} achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the finaucial value of the expected earnings in advance,

{A) Credit risk

The Company takes on exposure te credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the company. Maximum exposure to eredit risk of the Company has been listed below:

31 March 2p22 31 March 2023

Trade receivables 316,71 274,96
Loan 161.26 137.92
Other financial assets 32.61 16,38
Total 510.58 429.26

Other receivables as stated above are due from the parties under normal course of the business and as such the Company believes exposure to credit
risk to be minimal.

i} Trade and other receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company through established policy and procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally cartying upto 9o days credit terms. The Company has a detailed review
mechanism of overdue cnstorer receivables at various levels within organisation to ensure proper attention and focus for realisation. Trade
receivables are consisting of a large number of customers, Where credit risk is high, domestic trade receivables are backed by security deposits.
Export receivables are backed by letters of eredit.

In determining the allowances for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss expetience and is adjusted
for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used iu the
provision matrix.

The Company’s exposure to customers is diversified and there is no significant credit exposure on account of any single customer as at 31 March 2o22
and 31 March 2021,

The compeny is making provisions on trade receivables based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The reconciliation of ECL is as follows:

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Opening balance 8.65 6.62
Charge/(Release) to statement of profit and loss 2.47 2.28
Utilised during the year (3.85) (0.25)
Balance at the end of the year 7-27 8.05
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Kesoram Industries Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements
{All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

(B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to that risk where the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk mamgemem is to maintain sufficient
liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Furthermore, the Company has aceess to funds from debt markets
through commercial paper programs, non-convertible debentures and other debt instruments. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and in
mutnal funds, which carry no or low market risk.

{iy Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables helow analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities

The amounts distlosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Lass than 1 ] ] . Muore than 5 Total
L 3 ¥ ank:

31 Marc| ¥ SAsANs S hyeurs years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings (including interest obligations) 370.11 849.85 1,666.86 448.497 3,335.79

Lease Liahility 472 0.66 0.40 721 12.99
Other financial liabilities 56.80 - - 87.21 144.01
Trade payables 520.96 = - = 529.96
‘Total non-derivative financial liabilities 961.59 850.51 1,667.26 543.39 4,022.75
of financial babilities Luss than 1 ¥ i g More than 5
1- % years 3 - 5 year s o
year years
Borrowings (including interest obligations) 38417 1,044.36 2,171.70 448.97 4,039.20
Lease Liability 13.16 3.99 0.31 7.536 24.82
Other finaneial liabilities 36.83 - - 74.27 L0
Trade payables 531.48 - - = 531.48 |

Total non-derivative financial liabilitics 965.64 1,038.35 2,172.01 530.60 4,706.60
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Kesoram Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wil) fluctnate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company’s main interest rate rigk arises from borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During 231
March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company’s borrowings at variable cate were mainly denominated in INR.

The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

Om Financial Liabilities:
The exposure of the Company’s financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

Particulars 21 Mavch 2022 21 March zoz21
Variable rate horrowings - -
Fixed rate borrowings 1,605.72 1,832,02
Total horrowings 1,605.72 1,832.02
(b) Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as below:

Impact on prodit before tas

41 March zo2:z %21 March 2021

Interest expense rates — increase hy 50 basis points (50 bps)#
Interest expense rates — decrease by 50 basis points (50 bps)# & <
“# Holding all other variables constant

(iii} Price risk

(a) Exposure

The Company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet at fair value
through OCI. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio. In general, these investments are
not held for trading purposes.

(b) Sensitivity
The table below summarizes the impact of increases/decreases of the share prices on the Company's equity.

Impael o0 equoity

31 March 2o0z2 4t March 2n21

Share price - Increase 5% 3.60 3.87
Share ptice - Decrease 5% (3.69) (3.87)




Kesoram Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Ropees crores, imless otherwise stated)

Note 39: Segment reporting

The Company, at standalone financial statement level, operates in one segment i.e. "Cement”. The Company has disclosed segment information in the
lidated financial stat ts which are presented in the same financial report. Accordingly, in terms of Paragraph 4 of INDAS 108 'Operating Segments', no
disclosure related to segments are presented in this standalone financial statement.

Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers:

tar the vear
Particulars ended 31 March
2022
India 3:539.56 2,415.21
Others - -
3.539.56 2,415,21

Note 40: The Company has considered possible effects that may result from the ongoing COVID 19 in the preparation of these financial statements including the
recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the
economic conditions because of COVID 19 variants, the Company has, at the date of approval of these financial statements, used internal and external sources of
informaticn and expects that the carrying amount of the assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID 19 variants on the Company's financial statements may
differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of the same.
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Note a1: Relaved party ranssctbons (Al sounts lis Rupees crores. wnless otherwise stated)y

el
Al Subsidiary

Crenel Induslrics Limiled
B} Jalnt Venture
Gondklari Coal Minine Linuited

) Fast Retbrement Beneflt Plui

13.K. Birla Group of C: 1l deint Fund Il
ks Industries Provident Fund [nstitulion.

HKICHE Gratuity Fund

Kesorawn Supcraununtion Fund

T Key M P L& TH

Sl Muniushres Khaitn [Chabemen]

Kr. F Fodhakrisloan [Wholc Time Divector & CEC]

Mr, Surcsh Sbarnwn [Chief Fianncial Qifleer]

Mr. Alash Ghuwakwak [Company Seeretan ] (resigned e 14l June, 2oz
M. Rnelwram Nath [Company Secretary] fappointed woa f 150 June, 2021}

Birs. Wlanpaly Radhakrishon Prablu [Tadependent Direelor] dweld 19th My, 2oz}
Mz, Satish Marain Jalon {Additional Dircttor] {nppoinked wef 12U Augusl, 2021}
Mr. Lee Scow Chuan [odependent Dircclor]

Ms. Jilvoomp Kaug [Independsnt Direclor]

Mr. Kashl Praznd Khandelws] (Tndependent Director]

M, Bbaskar Meogl [Nominee Dircclort (rasigned w.e.f 171h June, 20213

Mr. Sudip Banerice [Indepcudent Direclor]
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Notes fi ing part of i dal

Note g0: Related party transactsns (Al ansonnts in Rupeos creres, unless atherwise atated)

(B) Owtmanding balayces

Yoo thee yenr Fr Al 2aruy

craleal 1
o Relationship TTX ey

Nty wil

Payahle/ (Reeelvable) :

Others - 1 111
Poat Retiremient Benefit Man {e27)| 1.5% |
Lonn Receivable

Suluidliary [ALET] [

ol Venlur: ** 617 [
Interest Payabile | | |

Oilors | oq6] | -
Interes) Receivable

Subsddinry: .04 1 |

dolnt Ventire ** a6z o6z
Investoent In Shares 1 1

Subaidiary [uet of impairneat his) | 30622 T 400.47
Advanee Reeelvahle | L1

doint Venture ** | osip] | oy

-0 ding bal i Ra 7.1 crotes e from Jofut Venluee has been fully provided for- Refer Hote 7 {ck
() Compensuatlon of KM P of the Company
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Non Cwrréni favesimends frefer noe 6} and Non Carrenr Loans ard Advarces (refer pale 71




1554 10 XE L S1000U] B T UG0S JEAMAL SHRULAAE Lo Candhyr 40 (MRS S5E GEE) 1961 R

XX, UG S SN AT X7 S ) JEDA ) TP 20HRU B PASHOSTR 40 PAISPS e 1i72q 57 TRY) FIUTLONGE |0 BY00 51 U] PAPIOOAI YHL St il LSRarres yons (s Yoa avey duedwo) sy, (18]
‘PRI |SUsg AL 81 |5 J{FYRG Ha 31| S 4 GMEE RMTIend AUE oL
I3 (FIT A B1EW ) AME S0P S o JRTEg U020 AQ FRARCTIERM Leauau e LY PAIIUSPY THANUS 10 fllofsd R0 L KR G PU ATRAIDAR 30 A[oauD

B ANBALIC) S MR (259 J0 FUREM UL PIRIO0RT e ) TUTpUEISIApUT. 24} ks (g Surpany) seapus ulliar) SUpnpus (a04nus 10 (ot A Wy pun) G PR 16T JARg ATedmos #L {14)
ERLIBL g U AR 0 J[ERG UQ 10 0 ) A0 20 AEmoss eenuedend e spiacad 1y
o (SR NRWR  Sredans g o JETe ue 50 dq o L3R Faidd UL PAJRURR| MU 40 FIORIR] TG T ey 40 PUs] AASIIPUL S0 AR T

ey T 1% v Tu[p L Il (SSUERAaLIY) SR ol d

aie) JUpnpus ‘(e PAIT, paamally £0 BALIN 36 POIEADe sl e AT ML, {4)

a
“agmd [E1o0a0i S ML 05Ty WML So Dunime eplAL Ul PRI 0 AR 10U eaey (edmon SqLL L)

Tpolsad SONnIeE ML PUSASY D0 A PRIPETA 3G 0 164 5T T TOR0REA I A sy you apAuedusecy s [ {00)
& Al aamy jog op Audwop gy (M)

RIRE | I it G
“Aundasd puoming Ao Suippoy <o) Suedwe) H rurmde Taypuid 1o pamp asg s Bupakaid A asm fuzdod AURUTE ATR 3AEY 300 op AUBdwos ) ()

AT HCYIN] Sy s A3 i Jep

FUO|F|nadd IS M) Jo LRl od prsmiRord puE Dosaee aq i AU )| iy sonernls) e o pedon

UL TAIRCU 39 C) Jaul sZ RTLL AT PUR LIPURALHT $7PCT HU 16 PIED BATKH)R ST R MATILIs Feid SIPALMIL QR FRIFFA FRAophos i BBSp Y3THm ZWE| [ER0Mmpl pam moge| Sunsts Mmalcs Sunoosgns
ENTE A2 “BfaL] [0 SUOTEE, MR U {, 500 S4,) DTOE ‘<) USRS [FRIMPUT, PUT 0703 LIS (WIS 00 $pe0 YL, PAYRNed ST WaOson (EUs S 1TSS YLK FIE papus.eai aveinand 94 Fupung
Armadg (WPog 90 3P0 EY a0

“paaesaed W Al THY SYLMINEAAL] L LG
a0 oy ipdugpaooy Sundusec Sapal | annoad e sAg) iq DAL SHFR0] |0 JURCSNE U PR LIRS 2q L SOICAUY POALITS BOU TR AURar) By 0EmA TTuounaud pADE s Mo S Junig - S

i airss] SUHE L S1ep 52
yasardedaid ospe pUE 1wl ey =0 (s ot + sen)
i 2t 1 sl Supeds 0L & YA AR SEUDL | S s ) s poe
33304 &) Bnp s puEs Ty A | 11507 S0 ST paiopus prpdeg|  wgogu) aeceq ﬂ..w:ﬂE paicydiug e v sy {0
suyilnem Fuppesado|

4305 Jo AN Jsmesaly Lrefpaeg g
10 I WL oo B miFaaad

AT 5 STHIEUL QPR
S1 80P (L) Suiloouy i a1 GoRapsy |IFTESH) 400 (ool FRNPOLY J8 3 01 RUYR 1M W OOEY Y] B {N)

“ORIE By

Uy ue por ey d e Anppce
FANREIT UL DORNDA PN Sl
YR PEFEATHI] T LB B AdOILLAALL
T P EAOAL SRR Yz

ESLST BT) U1 $3lmLaL]) |5 Sune sado|
Eenasdlny pu ucpanpead u) Feass
A Uop snawary Oy qamoad o1 ang] | gréen o) (s} e Tupem RO o s ey Jaedin ], [k 9 (V)
‘paniading 120G (R0 % St
FEY OO aBnol Ty Spqeind W Sqreg + Busddnys pa ey
PUR FUNLTYD DI 18058) ) “Topgreg + Eso dumtes
P Ty Jead B SuLmp Jusensdi mey R WOT) S
a|qednd Jesey 2 pak Yasmoad anumsay ] i)
i ) 1 swmpainid up sz | Tocgy g6z (s SHeind Fpes) sRisay PO¥ ooty o peer) o Sctmt Pigeing 2pei) )
[ o1 Tt TEADOY] AP SN  FENpos] jU OS] | UNITH SM L ejqeAj ooy BPEIL )
‘paRCUdL Loy 3 s
STy AOIUTAY| T S T
Sumuzniyg Lraahal L3 pTe) 3 B Y
a2y SU LN suonmede Do)
WE)s PaT Gwodd anussy | By-of SoEn Qo Ao ) affeiayy FRpaL,] o apey O Jenoum ) Lowenaa] (3)
el juaume
S UL Sl A o FaTReIem. 91 Py
T RG] SR Y TE STaasd.
ST XY RUIBAP §0 WORMIHN U
Tl 1Y Pl FUrirewl fupesads 1
2 AR pan 100 sou] Jay iy
©] S (LYA) STHRUT M UL LOmEnpe | (650ET) 650 [rE 2] Annbg & nplofqamips sty 0y S AL W Aimbg w0 wmey (p)
il Jo e wo seog)
FEIGLEIpE 30 « 50
o soqun « (anepasdap) |
1 ] AUNEEE UL PR Ry eI Iy esre] | e Sunsdo e
[P DU BYssE SO Arg fo spessoud Al Ediag iy | -eoa) s s wopidar)
Ay WA B [0 J0uiedaug |16 Th) LT Lbva -Buor} +eraamied wg) = xery JA pited 32K oney sfasey wudeg 1gud {7
"OET 3401 [0 Yusswudl]
2] W[ [AYRSR SBY 1pRj FELESK
TS puier s, Sugdr Jo speancad
B W SR jo WRwiedsad e
1 0E FRUPMALICG 1) THROpa ] [, + Sy |
CSTE AIE BIIT] FAIEYS el WAL T HEALN + WL
150 AU €15 ppon ety un ssmou] | [BTh) e Ik Gmbrg saapieyaeys | mewme-oog) ¥R e sy Aamdrd-igag {9)

opel

) up [Rmaacd @) 0E peamses Try
YTy PISRREIY 1 BRATE[E] LbqnamI)
PUe SHEpeaLIA Tlie Ry Yo
U A1 o) ey foneedo
paseuchit oy uag0posd Of Seeanul
YR FQupe e s Ylwond oy 2my] ' SR JUeLn;)|
> WM, A AROE R INE SO Wik ]

e

sonwy a) 2t 310N

Sludwaeys [erouwug jo dred Sururioy sajoN



Kesorom Industries Limited
Notes forming part of fi inl statements

Note 45: Figures for the previous year have been regrouped freclassified wherever necessary to conform 1o eurrent period's classification.

* Amount is helow the rounding off norm ad d by the C

For and on behalf of the Board of Direelors

iy S

Manjushree Khaitan  — “~
" Chairman

o

2 AL AL Srentiaaae

Suresh Sharma P Radhakrishnan
Chief Finanetal Offiver Whole-time Director & CEO
Place: Kolkata
Date : 1th April, 2022
L
Raghuram Nath

Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of KESORAM INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanving consolidated financial statements of KESORAM
INDUSTRIES LIMITED ("the Parent™) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its
subsidiary together referred to as "the Group™) which includes the Group's share of loss
in its joint venture, which comprise the Consclidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022,
and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Staterment of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanataory information

In our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given
to us and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate
financial statements of the subsidiary, and joint venture referred to in the Other Matters
section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the ipformation
required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended {"Ind AS’) and ather accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and their
consolidated loss, their consolidated total comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash
flows and their consclidated changes in equity for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities wunder those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group; its associates and joint
venture in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the sub-paragraphs (a) of the Other Matters section
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consclidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinicn on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to
be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr.
No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor's Response

1

Recoverability of deferred tax
assets (DTA) recognized on
carry-forwards tax losses,
unabsorbed depreciation and
provision for loans and advances
(Recognised in the books of the
Parent)

The Parent has recognised Rs.
27245 Crores as DTA, as at 31
March, 2022, relating to carry-
forwards tax losses, unabsorbed
depreciation and provision for lpans
and advances,

The Parent exercises significant
judgement in assessing the
recoverability of DTA relating to
these items. In estimating the
recoverability of DTA, management
uses inputs such as internal
business and tax projections over a
10 year period.

Recoverability of DTA on carry-
forwards tax losses, unabsorbed
depreciation and provision for loans
and advances is sensitive to the
assumptions used by management
in projecting the future taxable
income, the reversal of deferred tax
liabilities which can be scheduled,
and tax planning strategies.

Refer note 2.16 "Taxes on Income”
for accounting policies, note 2.23 in
"Use of estimates &  critical
accounting judgements” related to
taxes, note 18 "Deferred Tax Assets/
Liabilities” and Note 30 "Income tax
expenses” for disclosures related to
taxes of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Principal audit procedures performed

We obtained an understanding of
controls performed by the
management to assess the
recoverability of the DTA relating to
carry-forwards tax losses, unabsorbed
depreciation and provision for loans
and advances.

We ewvaluated Design and Operating
Effectiveness of the managemeant
controls  over the process for
determining the recoverability of the
DTA relating to carry-forwards tax
losses, unabsorbed depreciation and
provision for loans and advances which
included amongst others controls over
the assumptions and judgments used
in the projections of future taxable
income,

To assess the Parent’s ability to
estimate future taxable income, we
compared the Parent's previous
forecasts to actual results.

We involved our tax professionals with
specialized skills and knowledge to
assist in evaluating taxation related
matters including the Parent's tax
planning strategies and interpretation
of tax laws.

We performed a sensitivity analysis
over the key assumptions to assess
their impact on the Parent's
determination that the DTA relating to
carry-forwards tax losses, unabsorbed
depreciation and provision for loans
and advances.

We evaluated the adequacy of
disclosures in the financial statements)
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s,

No Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

related to deferred tax in notes 2.16;
2.23, 18 and 30 respectively of the
consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

= The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Report of Directors and the
following Annexures thereto, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the consclidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiary
and joint venture audited by the other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities
and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the
subsidiary and joint venture is traced from their financial statements audited by the
other auditors.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consclidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the consclidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated changes in equity of the Group including its joint venture in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its joint venture and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used far the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture are résponsi
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assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their
respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint
venture are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group
and of its joint venture.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Parent has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence ohtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group and its joint venture to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosuras are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group and its joint venture to cease to conlinue as a
going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
staterments represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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+ (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities within the Group and its joint venture to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstaternents in the consolidated financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the consclidated financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in {i} planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consoclidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matters

(b) We did not audit the financial statements of 1(one) subsidiary whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs. 667.84 crores as at 31st March, 2022, total
revenues of Rs. 85.70 crores and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 8.20 crores for the
vear ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net loss of Rs. NIL for
the year ended 31% March, 2022, as considered in the consolidated financial statements,
in respect 1 (one) joint venture, whose financial statements have not been audited by
us, These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consoclidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiary and joint venture and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, and its joint venture is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not medified in respect .of the above
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matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other
auditors and the financial statements certified by the Management,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
the reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiary
and joint venture referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid consclidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books, returns and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The Consclidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent
as on 31st March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and
the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company and joint venture
company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its joint
venture company incorporated in India is disqualified as on 21st March, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure A" which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent, subsidiary company
and joint venture company incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified
apinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over
financial reporting of those companies.

i1 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according te the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Parent to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 187 of the Act.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i} The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its joint venture
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i} the Group, its joint venture did not have any material foreseeable losses on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary company and joint
venture company incorporated in India, except in case of Parent Company the
amount pertaining to Unpaid dividend of Rs. 0.02 crores and the related equity
shares which has not been transferred. Based on the information and records
available with the Parent, all these relates to the disputed matters with several
shareholders.

iv) {a)The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiary which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds {which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Parent or any of such subsidiary to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly ar
indirectly lend or invest in any other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent or any of such subsidiary (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b)The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiary which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such
subsidiary respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, ather
than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Parent or any of
such subsidiary from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Parent or any of such subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

fc) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and those performed by the
auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our
or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii} of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v)The Parent has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

2. With respect to the matters specified in clause {xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph
4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“"CARO"/ "the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the

information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issu
\?\aﬁkﬂ}&

ﬂ
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remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said respective
companies included in the consolidated financial statements except for the following:

Name of the CIN Nature of | Clause Number of i

company relationship | CARO report with
qualification ar
adverse remark

Cygnet U74900WB2015PLC206720 | Subsidiary Clause  (i)(c), ([iin)(f),

Industries {wiidb, (xvii)

Lirmited

| Gondkhari U10100DL2009PLC191466 | Joint Clause (iv), [(xvii)
Coal Mining Venture
Limited

Place: Kolkata
Cate; 11 April 2022

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration Mo. 302009E)

O] BJI

LR

Abhijit Bandyopadhyay

{Partner)
{Membership Mo. 054785)
M: 22054785AGUABTS099
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AMNEXURE “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1(f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as
of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of Kesoram Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as
"Parent”) and its subsidiary company, which includes internal financial controls over
financial reporting of its joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India, as of
that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary company, its joint
venture, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control owver Ffinancial
reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary company and its joint ventures, which are
companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Mote”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial contrels system owver financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls owver financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk., The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstaterment of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditors of the subsidiary company and joint venture, which are companies
incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary
company and its joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the
Other Matters paragraph below, the Parent, its subsidiary company and its joint
venture, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system owver financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,
2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates
to one (1) subsidiary company, and one (1) joint venture, which are companies
incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of
such companies incorporated in India.
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Qur opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
{Firm's Registration No. 302009E)

LLT}M&N

Abhijit Bandyopadhyay
(Partner)

{Membership No. 054785}
UDIN: 220547 85ACUABTS099

Place: Kolkata
Date: 11 April 2022



Kesoram Industries Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at gist Mareh,sozs

(Al amounts in Rapees erores, unless otherwise stabed)

Particulars ; Notes, Ar-Mar-zs Ai-Mar-z
ARRITH
(1} Non-current assets
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Kesoram Industries Limited
Consolidated Stalement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Nolé No, - wosimoss
1 Revemie from aperilions 21 s B 2.h52.,77
] Other ineome ag ab g T
I Total Ineome (T+10) 042,47 2,724,093
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Hesoram Industries Limited
Consolidated statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 315t March, spas
(AL amounts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

Z1-Mar-zo F1-Mur-21
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Kesoram Industrics Limited
Consolidated statement of Cash Flows for the year-ended 3151 March, 2022
(A smounts in Rupees crores, nnless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

31-03-2022 31-0-2021
Cash and Cash Gguivalents comprige :
Cash on hand 006 05
Balances with Banks on current aeeount 10383 7349
Balanees with bauls on Cash Credit Aceoymle 2.9 .
Depositwith eriginal maturity for less than thies mooths 15.71 2303
Caeh eradits ot theead of the vear = (10741

121,040 H5.71

Amount is below the reunding of norm adopted by e Group

Notes:
L The sbove cash Mow statement has heen prepared wnder the Tndiveet Method de setout in Ind A5 - 7 "Stalement of Cush Fliws”,
2 Misclosure for non-razh transactions Fl-ng-soms 31-03-201
Irsue of Fauity shiares for settlenient of loqn . 14444
Tzsue of Optionally Convertible Redeemahle Prefevence Shaves for settlement of loan [Tecognised ol ;
fair valie of Rs 74,07 crores) 4487
Lssue of pquity shaves to Manav Tnvestiment & Trading Co Lid againgt loan recelved 54015 b
Total 513 593-41
Interms of our reporct attached For and on behalt of the Board of Direclurs
T A
e e e
Fer DELOITTE HASKINSG & SFELLS v Manjushree Khaitan
Chartered Acconntants Chadrmae |
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Abhijit Bandyapadhyay Suresh Sharmu P Radhakrishnan
Partnier Chigf Financial Officar While-tirme Direcior & CEQ
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Raghuram Nath

Cornpzy Secretiary
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Kesorwm Drdustiies Limited
Conneliddaled notes e Finaneial Statements far the vear ended 215t March, 2022

1. Gronp Information

The Conaalidated finansial statenients contprises of tee Nnancial stateesents of Kesaram Tolustrios Dimiteld [the Helding Company)
il juint venture and s osubsidiary feollectively referred fo as the Group’l The Conselidated Financkal Statmnzits have been
prepared In accardance wath the Lisdian Accountiog Stamdard (Ind A5) 110 Cansnlidated Fimmeinl Stitemenis’,

The cotselidated foancial stalements as at 31 March 2022 present the financial positen af the Group,
Thacansoliciled financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 were approved by Hie Board ef Birectors and authorised
For dssie on 118h April 202

2. Summary of significant acconuting policies
2.1 Basis ol preparation

(1] Gompliznee wath ind A%

These cunsalidated Breaocial statements havs heen preparec-in accordance with Indian Acconnting Srandards (Lo Ak nanfied
under Secton 133 of the Sempantes Act, 20030 The conaolidaled fGnancial stalemeels have slso been preparsd inacoardanss
with the relevinl prisentition resprivements of the Companies Act, 2015 and presentation réquivernents of Srhedule 100 La the
Companles Act, 2004, {led A5 compliant Schidule 11, wesppelicable ThieGroop adopted g &5 fram 1 April 2007,

Up o the sear eided 31 March 2617, U Groop prepaesal it consalidased findncial stabements in aceerdance with the
requircments of previaus Genesally Accepred Accounting Princlples [Gaar), shich includes Staodocds nolified ander The
Connpranias |Avcouiting $endards]) Rules, 20060 The date ePtransition to Ind 8595 1 Aprit 2016,

rst enmveniian

i) Flistoers

The consclidated Rranclal statements bave beph preparmd onder tee bistaricel codt convention with the seeeption of certin
asseds end Eatlities that are requined te be carried at fasr values l}.‘.' i

Fair value 15 the price that wesld he received §oosell anoasset or paid totransfer a kabilite in an erderly wansacien hetwiesn:
market participants at the measuremenl date,

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The conaolidated Miancial statemeis incorporate the finenvial ssatements of the Groap and entity eontralled by the Graup e,
itz swbsuiiare, Iv also includes the Srowp's share of profits, net assets aed velained poat aoquisition resesves af jole arcagermaee
Lt e vonselidated uaing the ety methad af consolidatizn, as applicable

Coptral is achiewed when the Groop is exposed te, or hag dehis po the variclde retorms ol te ety sl U ahzlsiy o alfiecl Lhies:
raturis terdugh ils poseer over the entite,

Thes resulls ol subsidiarg amt jrink armaegement acquired orodispased of duning the pear are weloded tn the cogselidated
statement of profit and less fron: the effective date of acquisition ar ap b the efective date of disgesal, as appropriate,

Wherever necessary, adpstments are made te the inanclal statemets of subsidiavies and jolel izangamanls U bring tieir
aceounting palicies D line with those waed by olher membaees of the Group,

Intra-grougp wanszctions, balaness, income: and cepenses are eliminated en conseludation,
2.4 Bosiness combinations

Aziuisition of subsidiaries and businesses are accownted for using the purchase et Toe considecation leaslerred in ciach
business combiration: i maasoead el the agpeegsite of the aequisition date faur values of assers mven, labilitics incurved by the
Grinap o the former owners of the acguires, aid equing interests isaued by e Groep in exchangs fee contrsleP e res

fwisilion related costs are recogngsed in the conselidated statement of prodfitand loss,

Gaadwill arising o acquisition i recopnised as 2 asset and measured al cost, being Ui exeess of tie considecatin tnansferre)
in ke Luziness combimation over the Gronp's interest in the net firvalue of the identifiable assets acquired, labilities assumed
and centingent labilities recognized. Wiere the fah valug of U identiliabie el and Gabilities exeesl the cest ol aceuisitine,
after re-assesning the faie values of the net jssets and contingent labilitzes, the excess is recomised as capltal reserve on
conselidation,

Dee control as been achiered, @isy subsequel acquisitions whers the Groupobees net ariginally held handeed pereent nterest
in o subsidinry are treated a5 an acquisitian of shaves from: nen-controliing shavehalders, The idenlitialle el wsels are il
:{I:lb_IE{‘l o Further fatr value Edju:-'llnl.ulL-\. aciel ke dillerence hetewern the cear of acepisition of the nan-contrelling intecest and
the net haals walue of the additional propoction acquired is adjusted. b equity. Tlhearmaunt of pos-conbrotling interests in Ge
acquirse is messored either ol the noneeonteelling interests properien of the net fair walue of the assers, Habilities and
contingent labilities recognised o &t fals value,

Buziness carphinations ansing from transfers of interests i entities that are wider the cotmnon control are accounted Far wsing
the podiee of nberast metlcd Tae dilference belween any cansideration transferred and the aggregare histarical carrying
values of assots and labilttics of Hee acquared ennbyare receized in shareholder's equily.




Fesoram Dndustries Limited
Conselidated notes to Financlal Statements for the vear ended 3 150 March, 2022

Wlsena transaction or plher event does nobmect the definition of a busiess combination due to the aseet or group ol dssels nol
meeting the defintion of a business, 171 ternied an‘asset acguisition’, In such circarmstinees, the acguirer;

= identifies sod moocgnises the individual identifiahie assals acguired

ealinetes the cost of the grovp of asseis aod Hokilitics to the individual identifzble assats aod Labilivies an e basis of their

relative toir valoes at the date of purebase

such a traisaction aF pyent daes niol prve rise Lo paacdasl prssin ona hargain perchase

24 Goedwill

Goedwill avisbee oo e segquisitien al @ subsitizne represents the excess of the cansideration Bansforved (6 the buginess
camhination over the Croup's mterest b the e fair value of the ideilifiabhe assets sequired, labilities assomed and contingent
labilitivs recopnivent ol thae date af aeguisition. Goadwall is intialily rocognized as anasset ab cost and is subsequently aesasured

atrost less any artumilated Inpaininent losses,

Far the purpese of impaizment testing, goodwilt is allocated weosneh ol the Growps sash penerating units or graups of cash-
seaerating unils that are expected o benefit from-the synecgies of the combinatien. Cash-generatiog unils toowhich guadwill has
been allocated are tested for hnpairment anoually, b mare resuently when there s an indicatizn that the-units value may be
impaired 1Fthe recoverable ameunt of the cash-menerading unit 12 less than the carvyitg vialue ol te nnil, the immiement s is
alipeated figst oo ceduce the vareving value of any gomdwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assers of te unit Ly
proportion mo she carryving value of each asset in the winiz

Ancimpatrinent loss recognised for goodwill is nob reversed io0a subsequent periad. On dispesal of a subsidiary, the st lable
amount of geadwall is meluded di Ure detasnination of prafit ar lass on disposal,

2.5 Interest in joint arcangements

A juinl arsingemnent is o contracteal arrangement wherehy the Group and eother parfes undertabe an eeopeinis activity swhere
the strategic financial and operating pelicy decisions reluting 1o the aelivities of the jainl armngement reouire the aranimoes
wamsenl ol the partics shanng contral,

Iaint arrangements that toeahve the establisliment of a sepavate entity in which sach venlorer haean inberest ane refereed mooas
jeint wventares. The Groop reporis 95 inferests injaint ventures using the equity metheg af acceunting wherely an interest in
iine wenmure 35 inthally pecorded at cost and adicsted theresler for pusi-mequisitioe clanges in the Groaps shire aof net assers of
b jarirel venture. The conslidivied statement of profit and loss roflects the Group's share of e results of opecations of thejoinl
venture

2.6 Propevty, plant and eguipinent

a) Propesty, plant and eguigment ars stated az acquisition cast, net of accumelated depreciation acd accumulated impairment
Iosmes, iFany The cest comprlses of purchase cost, borrawing easts if capilalisalion critera are met and ather dineetly
attributzble cost o bringing the aseels fa s working condition far interied use, The cost also comprises of exclange d:Ferences
arising on translation fsettlement of lJog tevny forelgn curvensy manelary ilsms pertining b aspisitian o such depreciable
ansels, Ay rade discaunts and rebates are dedocted in arneing at the parchase price

L) Sulssguent espenliture related teoan itern ek property, plant and cquipment s added to its carrving amaunt andy 10
incresses the future heredits frany tue existing assets evond il previously gasessed saandard of peelarmance

) Capizal wotk o progress s stated al cost, [inceding bormewing sl whers appliceble and adinssment far eschange difference
relerred twin Mate 218 belew] incorred during constractlon Snstallation period velating to iteins w projics in pragreas,

i) Loesos ansing from the retivement of and gaiies ar losees arisiog Irem disposal af pragerty, plact anid cquipment which are
carriee b st are recagrised in the Statement of profit and loss.

L‘_] Mepracieiian medhaly, aabimeied asefid Wees aod residuod aloe

Frepreciatian is caloulated ysing the straight-lioe methed to gllocate their cosz, et of their vesidual values, sver their eslionaled
useful Hves as follows:

afazsots e mpated visefl Wile {in years]
Enildings A-60 Years
Flant and Equipiment 1400 Vs
Furniture and Fires [
Orfice Eguipitenl 120 Years
Vehiclas H-10 Years
Taril vy Biding 15 Years
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Conselidated notes to Financial Statements for Uhe vear ended 3151 March, 2022

2.7 Intangille asxsels

Intngible propecty, phintandl equipmentare capitalised where iU es exgectmd to previde Ritre endoring economic baiefits aod
amortsed o a straight ne Lasis Cag i cost inclade license fees and the cost ol implementatenf sestem inmegratian
servives, The Cosks are capitalised inthe year in wlhich the selevant imangille msset i im plemenned for nes,

sited sl Fife i ¥
= 1e

Anftware

48 [mpalrment

Praperly, plantand equipmentand infangible aszets are tested for itpairment whenever cvents or changes (1 clicimstanses
Ind:cate that the careang arcunt ey ool Ge recoverabls: & impairmant lass fs recognisad G the amumunt by which T zes0t's
varrving amaanl geceeds ks reeoscerable amount Fhe recoverabile winoent is the higher of an asset's falr valoe lass sasts ol
disposal and valuz I use. For the purpises ol assessing impairment, assets ave g oupsd at e lowest Lovels for which theee are
separately identifiable cpshinflews which are largely independert ol the cash inflows frem otherassels s groups sl assees (oush
Fenarating units]. Nonb-fimncialassets that suffered ap impalrinent are reviewssd e possibls reversad af e impatrment at the
erid of eich Teparting pened.

2.9 Lease

Effective April 122014, the Sreu p had acapted Ind A5 1164 - Leases using Hee modifed retraspestive methad; Ender mcdificd
retraspective approach, e Greap had recorded lease iabilite ot the present valus of the rematning lesss payments,
dasenunted b the iicreten il horowing mte antl the right of use asset at an antunt el to the Iease liabilivy, adjusted Ly
theameunt ofany prepaid or accreed Lease payinen s related i that lesse recegnized under lad A% 17, The waighiog avarape
feerernental berrowing rate for leases initially recognized wpen the Frst-cine applisation of Tnd A% 118 was 13215, LThe
Graup applicd a single discount rate to a parthelc e leases weth reasenably similar characterdstics. The sdaption of Ini A5
116 did nol hadseny material impact en Statenzent of Urafitand Less and eaenings pes sharsin the previeus year.

The Lroup, as & lesses, receguises 3 right-ulnse asset and 2 lease Habiliby for (s leasing arranpenients, (Fthe cansract Convers
the rght to cantrol the nse ofan jdentified assen The contiacl eonveys the ripghs o central the nse oF 2 identfied asses il il
Involves the use of an identified asset ol the Granp has susmntially all of the scenamic benelits from use of the asset and
his zight to direct the useof the identified asset. Tlhe cost ol the vight-af wee asset shall conprise of tee ameecunt of th indlisl
measurenent of e lease liabitity adjusted forany fease paynienss made at or belare the commencenent date plus any fntkial
direst custs fnearred. The right-cl-use aseets s subseguently measered at cost Jess any accunalated degrecatian,
accumialated ingasicment losses, iTany and adjusted for 2y remeasurentent of the lease liakilite, The right -of-use assets 5
deprecised vsing the stratglit-Lize pethod feam the commencemant date over the shorter of laase termn or useis it of right
ol uEe asseL.

The drowp measures Hee fease liabilicy atthe prasent value ofthe lease paynients Usat ace ool paid at the commeneement
e af the lease, The lease payments are dlacounted sing Lhe inlerest rate implictin the Lease, if that rate can be seadile
determined. IFthat rate cannul be readily determine, the Growp psesdncremaintal borowing rate, For shorttorm and law
withue leasis, the Group recopnises Hhe lease paymeits as an operating expense on 3 straight-line basls oear the leass tern,
‘When the lease lability is renreasured due te change in contracs ferms; & correspanding clange is mide f2 the cairdne
amaunt af right-nfyuse asset, or 1= recorded in the pralitand loss acconnt iFthe carrelog amount of rght-al-use aseal is
reduced D zara,

As i lessor: )

T vesprenct ol assls gven B operating lease, the leage rental income is recepniset in the Statersent of Frofic and Loss ana
straight-line basts over thie lease term unless the reecipts are stractired to aierease in line with expeeted genesal inflation te
vaanpensits ferthe copected indlationary cost increases Tlhece isono chinge in acceuning as 8 lessor due to adiplion el I
A LLE Leases

2.0 Tnventories

Ieenitorics are stated sUlower ol easzand net realisable value Costis determines s weighsed arerage S first-in, frst-eut {F1150]
hasis, as considered appropriate by the Group. The vt ol Trishe:d ponis and wark o PrOEress cam prises rae materials, direct
lanour, ather direel sests and related production overheads. hec realis lue ix the estimated selling price 1 the aedisany
course of bustness less the estimated costs necessary tn mzke the sale, Prevision 15 mats Tor absalste ixlow movingfcfoomve
.‘hl‘.(ll.'k\C, wrheroer e bt

2.17 Financial In¥lrumenits

Financizl assels abd fnaecial labilitizs are resagnsed when the Group becomas. a pacty o the eontractual provisions =f the
instrumert, Financial assets and Lab:lities are initially messered st fair viee, Transactisn costs Lataee divesty asritmshle ta
the acyuistlian ar e el financialasscts and financial Labilities {otler tha: Gamncial assets and financlal labilices at fievaloe
thretgh profit and loss] ave added G oF defucte) frim the faie valie measared o inital recognitian of rmcial asses or
fiznenzial liability. The tranpsaction cests directly atteibutalle wotle scquisition o francial assets and foancal Lialilities at G
value througl: prafitand loss are imnmetin ey recagnised in the statement a2 pratitand s,




Keseoram Indusiries Limited
Conselidated notes to Financial Statements e the year ended 3158 March, 20232

Effective interest methaoed

The effectve interest method is a methed ol caleclating the amartised cost of a financial instrwment and ol allaciting interest
liezeie of expense over the relovant periad, The effective interest rute is e rate that exactly discaunts fusire cash vecelpts or
pazments theovgh the expected life ol Ui N instrument, ar where approptizte, a shorter pariog,

{a] Financlal assots

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and casl equivalents includes cash o hand, demand deposits with banks, ather shartteem Righly lguid investiments
with crigeal maturities of thres months or b Eank oeerdeafts are shown witllin borrawings in correnl Gabilities in the
Linhrmoe skl

Other bank balances

Uther bank balances inclute deposits with maturity less than teelve nionlls bul greater than theee menths znd Balances and
depasibawith binks that are restricbed fer withdrass Land usage,

Financial assels ab ammortised cost

Financizl assets are subsequently mueasured ab amartised cost of Hese fnancial assels aze held withic o business mode]
el objective is techald these assets in order te collect conlmachzal cesh Aavs and the contractual terma of the fibwn cial
asset give plze on specitied dales o cash fSows that are sslely payments ef peincipal and interest an the prineipal amoist
arlslanding,

Finandcial assats measuraed at Tiirvalue

Financial asgels dre massured 2 Fair value throagh obler coimprehensive income (FYOCT §f these financial assets are Leld
within a business model whese phjecive is Lo hold these assets in arder to coliect contractual cash Nows ar e sull these
financial assets and the contrzctial terms of the francial asset ive vise an speeificd dates mo cash Aows that are solely
payments of priscipal aied interest oo the principal amonnt entssandiag

The Growp in respect af equity investrents {sther than in sabsidlaries, asseciates aad joint ventures) which sre not heid for
Leacding bus el ancirrevocable slection to present in sther comprehensive income subsequent changes In the falr value el
sUCh equily insTrutients. Suck s election is made by the Sroup on an srwnent by instruoment basis at the Hme of jnitial
recagrition ol such equity investments.

Financial asset nat measured at amertisad cost o ab ir value threngh ather comprebonstve inoome is caried at Fair value
throwgh the statensent af prafitamd sy [FYPL],

Impitirment of financlal assets

The Group assesses an i dorvard Iocking hasls the ‘Expected credit fusses (R0 avsaciated with its asscfs carvied at
amertises] cost and FYCLL debrnstewments. The Srenp recugnizes |oss alloweance for expected credit lasses o linanei
asset

il Instrismends, whick

Fer trade recelvables anly, the Groupeppling the simplified approacl pecmitted Ly Ind A% 109 Bz
reguines expected lifelime lossos to be recognised from isitial recognition sfrhe recsis

Da-recognition of Muancial assets

‘the Group de-recognises a lnancial asset only when the contrasteal vights Lo Une Gesl Fewe From the agset expice, or 1t
transfers the Francial asset and sulstzetially all dsks aml rewards of swnershap of the asset o anether entite, 10 the Grone
netther sislers nor setaing substantizlly all the risks and rewands ol ownership aed centimges te conrel the transferred
asset, the Group recagnizes its retained interest in the avsctzand an assoclated Hability for amaunts it omay Inee o pay.

Wtha Grenp retains substantlzliy all the visks and rewsards of veenership of a transferred financial 256t the Group conlinues
o recognize e lingnsial asset and alsa recopnises a collateralized borrowing lac the groeecds receied,

{b]) Financial Labilities and equity instruments
Classilication as debt or equity

A ety instromnent 35 aey contraet that evidences a sesi nterest in the assebz of the Company after educting all af
itz labilitics. Equity instramenst s are vecorded ot the procceds received, net of divset issue aoats,

Equity instruments

A Uity instrument is any conbract that evidences aoresideal interest L the assets of the Greap alter deducting all of jts
Hialzilizzes, Fouoity instroments ave recorded at the procesds received, net of direct is500 costs,
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Flaancial Liabilitics

Al fiineial hakdlitics ave measuved sulmsgeentle st pmorised cost veing the effeetive ftenest methog orat FYTEL.

Firaneial linbilities at FyVIPL
Finanvial Hubilities ave classified as at TWTPL when the financial labilily is (1) contingent eonsideration of an AEAULIEE i
& business combintion, i) held for trading ar (i) il s desigreated se ot FVTRL,

A finavwial Tabiliy is clussiticd nz held fov teading i

+ i has bern neouired prineipaliv fs the pepiss of repurchasing it in the nears
+om inttial reengrition it is pert of o portiolio of tdentified Goancial ind rments tat e Group manzees g snd
b a recend actual picttern of short-term prelit-laking ar

» it iz 2 derivative, excepl for s derivative that i 2 financial guarantes sontact sy dosignited and effecsve Ledging
inatrurmenl.

101 01

A fioaiseial lakilise other than a finaneial lakilite Sl foe trding or comntingent considersd i ol am sogirer ina
bpsinvss pombination may b desigrined as ut FVTPL upon initial ceeogiilion if:

= such desigiation alinvinites or signiticantly Teduees a messorement o reeeznition ineonsistensy it woadd atherwise
Arine

» the Enaneial Hability fazoes part of o group of finaneial asssts o financil Habilitics or both, whizh i= managed and it
perforinee i wiluated on o fairvaloe basis, inseenedamens with the Groop's documented visk iamagzrens o
irepstment strntery, and fmadion abot the gronping is provided interaally on that hisis or

+ it Forms part of a eontmet sontaining one or move embedided derivitivis, and Tnd A5 100 permils the eatise cormbired
cutleart 4o he designated as at FVIPL.

Fisarcial fiahilitios at FYTPL aze messsured at fuir valor, with any gaing o logsas arsing o changes in foir valoe
recagnised in profil or lass b the weent that they ave nob part of a designatied hedging relationghip (see Tadps
aceountiog police). The net gain or loss Tecogiisad in proft o loss incorporates any inlabagt aid on the: fnsoeial
linhifity and i ineluded O he Tiance cost” line itom (note 270 0 profil o s,

Thivwever, for finaneial Hobdlites that are designated i ot FETEL, the amoant of eliaies in the fue wilie of the Snansisl
Lukility that s attrilutable s changes io the eredit risk of that Lahility is recognised o other eomprehensive ineoime,
unless Wi veengnitiun of the cffeets of changes in e Hahility's crodic rsk in other eomprehangive incom: wonld ercate
s enlarge o accsunting oismeleh in profis or loss, The remaining amaont of chanee in the St value of Bability is
recognised in profit orlies, Changes in foir valoe acteibotalde fo b Giancil Habitite's credit rigk that are recogeised in
olligr omprehimsgive ingome are Tecognised inoetined vrmings,

Financial Habilities at pooertised cost

Fimimzial Bahilities that ave nol () contingent consideration of an acquiter in a bustoes: eombination, Gi) held-faz-
trading, or (iiit designated as ot TVTPL, arc measured suhsequentiy st amortised cost wsing the effaslive infeas
el lingd,

Trade and other pavaliles are initinlly meassured at fair value, nel of Danseslion coety, and are subsequently measured at
anertised cosl, asing the sfectve interest mle methad where the time value of mones is sleadlicans

Listerest bearing Eank laans, overdrafts and issued delare initizly messired st fie value and are sabsequently measaeed at
amerieed cost weng the effective interest rate method, Any difference between the prececds (et of ransaction vaals] anid

Use setiennint erredemprion of berrowings is recugnized peer the rerm of the borroyines e U slatement of prokt and loss

De-recognition of Moanclal Babilitles
The Growp de-recagnises Erancial Babiities s, i only when, the Graup's sbligations are discharaed, caneelied or thoy
pEIre.

Derivative finandial instroments
In the ardinary caurse of business, the Group uses corfzin derivanve fimaneclal istremesls g redace hasiness tisks which
arise frone I8 exposure to fareien exchange and interesl nele Bustnations, The instrunents ave coslined priccinalle b
drrweard foreign exchanme contracs

Bervivatives are imitizlly accaunted for and wneasured st Birvalue from the date the devivalive contract is entered inbe and aze
subsequently Te-measased o their faor value at fhe end of sach reporting perind

Uftsetting financial inslruments

Binanclal assels and fiabililics are offser and the nel amaunt is repocted incthe balance shiser wiere tiere is a lepmlly
cnforeeahle nght to offsel the recopnised ameunts and there ls-an istentian Wosettle or a net basis o7 realise the assetand
settle the tability simolaneossly. The legally enforvealle right must net be centingent oo fulure weenly and must be
enforceable o the nornal course of business and in the seent of defaoll, insivensy or banlouptey of e Gempany o the
cotinlerparty.
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Defined contribution plans

Payments o defined contibution glans are charsed a5 an expense as ey lall due, Puemests nade te sate ranaged retivenenl
benghic sohemesare dealt with as payments o defingd contnbilion schemes where the Gro up's atiligetioes end e the sehiones
are enquivalent to thoge ariging inaodefined contributien ronrement betedit scheme

Defined benefit plans

Faz delized tenefit rearement schemes the cost of praviding benefits is determined osisg ths Prajeetad Dagt Credit Meshod, with
actuartal valuation being carrivd sot ar each balages sheet date, Ke-measarement gains and losses of the nel defized Benedii
lishility/ Jasset) are recomnised inmediately in ulhue comprehensive tneaime, The service vt and net interest an the net
defined Lenelil llabilily S [asset) is treated 25 3 net espense within e pleyoment costs

Fast servlee cost s recagpised as an expense when the plai ameridment o curtzilmensoccies ar wlen any related restrushgring
casts or termaanen beielits are racognised, whichewver is parlicr.,

The retiventent beiefit sbligation recagnised in the balace sheset représents the present value of the delined-benslil hligatian
e rediced by the fair valve plan assets

Compensialed absences

Arcumulated compansated alsences which arc expected to be availed ar encashied within bwelve menths fear the vear end ars
Lrestend s chart term employee Lenefits, The wldigation tevards the sane 18 meastied at the oxpected cost of accunalating
compensated absencos s the additienal amount expected to be paid asa cesult of the unused ensitlenente @ the vear snd;

Avewmalated compensated abeences wiich are expected 1 he availed orencashed bevond twelve menchs from the year end are
treated as other long Lesm emptoger benefits, The Group's labilite i actearizly determined {using the Frojected Uil Crodin
et b b the end of each year. Actuzital loss/gains are recognized in the Statement of Profitsnd Toss it vear in which ey
arlse.

Shortteem Emplayee benefits (e benelits pagihle within one yvear] ave recognised in e periad inowhich smplevee senvices
are Pendered.

Ind A% 1% - Plan Amendoeent, Cortailment or Settlement:

Tl amiezdmest reguine an eptity to use ppdated assuwmptions te determing current service coste and et interest Far e
rematnder of the perlod aftera plan wmenhinent, cersilment or settlenzent, apd Lo recognize in the Statement of Frofitand Liss
as parl ol pusl service cost, ur gain or Leas on settleneel, anyg reduction in a surples, even U that surpges vwies nas proviausly
recopnized because of the ingact of the assel csiling The adeption of thie stamtart did nat haee ane material Dopact o Uee
finEncial stlemenis,

213 Government Grants

Crants front the goveriment ane recognised at their fir value where Giers is o reasanabln assurance that the granl will b
receivend und the Group will comply with all atbsched conditions,

Caernment grants relating tinzwme are deferred and recognlzed b Uze prelil o loss seer the pertad necagaary Lo maleh Lhiem
with thervests that thew are intended to cenapensate and prosented withi other inooma

2.14 Frovision and Coontingent Lialilities

Provislons: Provisions are vecugnised when there i 3 prozent chligation asa resalt af a pastevent and it is probablbe thatan
cubllzw ol resanrces embadying economic berefits will be requined o serle the abligation and these is: reliable estimate of the
amaunt of the abligatioe.

Proviainns are measured st the present value of management’s hest estimate of the expenditure nequited tosctte tie present
obliganen atthe end ol the reporting periad, The discount rate ssed fa determine the present value s & p‘r:—t;gc Fate Uil rellects
surcent warket assezzments of the Lnse value ol maney and the risks speciflc to the lLabilite. The insresse in the prevision due o
the passage of Lime is recognis as interest expense,

Frevision for restorafivn evd en vrsnmaen ta) sovey

An ehlipstion for restoration, reliakilitition anf envirenmenal costs arises winn énvinsnmental distirhance s ransed by the
developingil or oo going extraction from mines. Gosts avising From restorstion arclesure of e mices aod olher g prepaTaEtion
work arg previded for based on their discennted net present value, witha cosresponding amonnt being rapltalised at tee st af
vach project The amount provided for Is pecognised, as soenas the ohligation e inee such easts arises These costs are rharged
o the Btatenent of Praliland Lass aver the life of the speration Thraugh the deproviation of the zsset aid te unwinding «of the
dizcaunt on the prosasion. The costare reviewsed periadically and are adjuszed Lo cellect knorn develeaments which may have
an fmpact an the cost o life af eperations. The cost of the relats) wsvet isadjosted far changes it provision dig b fickars
stick as updated cost estitnates, new distarbance and revigiens ta discount cates, The adinstel cost of the asset L5 degreciated
prespectively pver the lives of the assets te waicl: they relate, The anwinding of the discount is shown s a Eianee cesf in the
Staternent of Prafit and Loss,
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Brgnanon Jor parra e

Thie estimated Habalicy far wartanty i recorded when products ave sobl. These estimates are camablished ceing historical
infuriistion one e watiree, Feaquency and avelzge cost of abligations ané managemenl estimates regarding possikle fnre
incidence based on corrective sctions on product fure, The tning of autflows will vary asand when e obleation will e -
Etinng twpically wp ta fve years

Contingenl Liahilitics: Contingent liakbilities ane dischsed when there 15 @ possible sbligntion arsing from past events: the
entstence of which will be saalivmed wnly by the coomvence or nan<oeenrence of ane o mare gooerEin uluee svents tet
whally within the rentral ef the Group oea present ablisatizn that arises from past seenls whereitis cither not prabasle that an
ol ol resourees will ke renuired toosettle o & raltable pstiinate of the amount cannat be inad e

215 hon-current assets for disposal gronps) held for sale

Man-current assers {or disposal grougs] are clssafied as held for sale O theic carreing smount will be recsvered pelaelpally
theewgh asale tansaction rether fan througl contiveing wseanl @ sa0e is considered Tiglaly prabibde. Thew are nessared ab
the lewer of their carrylog aimouat and faie value loss costs t0 s2ll, excepl lor assels soch @5 deforred tay assens, assels arising
Trass ernplecee benvfits, Arancind assess and contmctual rights ander insurance contracts, which are specifically ssempt from
thiz requirenent

Anitnpairment loss is recepmsed for aur ieitial o sabseuenbwrite-down af Hie asset (o dispessl group) e Ricvalue fpss casts
toseil. & gali s recognised for any subsenqoent increases I far value hes coots a scll of an azsset for disposal giaup), butaat in
xenss nlany cumulative impatrment loss preciously cecognised, & g or loss wet previcusdy recranizel by the date ef the sale

cf the pon-curraitt agset (or divpasal group) is recagitiaed ab Hie date of desrecegnition

Her-current wsels [inchuding those that ave gart of a dispasal graup] are nat depreciated ar @anurlised while they are clssificd
as held forsale [ntevest and other expenses shributable to the lizbilities ol a dispasa] group classfied as held for sabe colinue
Ao b recognised.

Hen-current ssets classificd as held for gale and 1 monf e dispesal group classilied as helid Far osafe are presented
separately from the uther assets in the balance sheet The labilities of a dispesal proop classified as held Fis sale are presened
separately From ather liabilizes in the balance shaed.

214 Taxes un hwcome

Thie bas currently payable 15 based on table profit for-te vear. Tagalle profin difters from ees profit as reported s prolitar lss
biesausee it excludes items af income 9t expense thal wre sy ar deductible in other yeos and it firther eeeledos tems that
are never taable or deduetifie. The Greap's liabilicy for currecl s is cdleolated using tas rates that have been smcted ar
substintively wnscted by the end of the veporling perioc.

A prowision s recopenised for these nrattens forwhich the fax detorminaton s Wacerain bul it is congidered probablbe thas there
will be a fumire cutilew sl lunds taa tax anthorice. The pravisiams sre measired at the best estmate of e amaunt spected
hecame pavahle, The assessnient Le based pe-the judzement of tax-professionuls within the Groep suprarted by previcis
experisioe b raspact ol such ctiviti s and i certain cases bised an sperialist independent tax advice.

Defeered See i recagnieed on temperary dilfercnces betwess the carrying aneunts of assels and labilitios and the amonnts
used for Ao pirpses (G bive], o che iy rates and tas taws enacted Gr substantelp enacked by the end of i repuorting
periad. Teferred e assets are recognised fae the futues sy consequences to the extenl it is probakle that future syable prodits
will be available 2gainst which the deductible temperary differenses can b utilised,

Leferred ey is ol accaunted fur iFitarises from uizal recenilion sl an asser oz lakihby I 3 transelion other tin a business
comhinatien that at the time of the baitsaction allects neisher accounting prolit norfagaile proficCtag foss)

Incame tax, i 5o far as [t relates Leitems discloscd under 2ther cotmprehensive iceeme ar cquity are disclosed separately under
ather camprehensive income ar squity, as applicaldle

Delerred tax assetsand lizkilities are offset when Uiere s lepally enforceable rmght o slfsel currens tax assors and lizkilitics and
when the deferved tax balancos related to e same Bxation autharitg Cureent f2y assete and tax Habilbies ase afisel whise the
it degally enferceable Pight Lo oflael and intends sisher to-settle o nex basis, or bo realize the asset and settle the
[ esly.

enlity
Lileibicy

Deferred tax assets inchade Mintnane Aleroadive Tax (MAT] patd i docordaneewitl the s s in ngia, which (3 Hicely to ghee
felire seonnie Beaclivs in the fame of availability ol secaft against future tnoome tay lability, Accordingly, MAT isrecoenised
a5 deferved tax asset te the Dulanes shees when the asset can be measured reliabby and it is probable that the future econmni
bieneht issaciated with the asser Wall be vealtced.
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217 Revenue Recopnition

Rrvenie shall be recogiised o depict the transfer of promised. gouds prservices fo castomers iinam amaunt tial rellects the
snsidesation beowhich the entiy expects b be entitled tn cxchange for these poadsand services.,

{a] Sales of goods

Reweaue fram contract weth custamers s recognised when the Company salislies periormance nblpasion b beanstarting
promized goads and services tothe costomer, Vet fakinanoe dblignioes may be samsied ab a peint of e o sver s period of
time Perbirmanee abliganons satisfied oeera periad of tme are recogaised as par Uie lennoof relesant coniracsual AEresmanls S
arrangentents: Fertorimaner ohlipations are s2id o be satieliad @0 o paint of Hme when the custonier ol ntrals of the
astiet

Reernue i recagnised based on The price specificd in the contracy net of the estimated walume discannts. Accumn b fed
experience s deed Lo estimate and provide fethe disouils asing the expected value methed, and sevaiusis only recepnised to
this wtent thab it s Righly prolable taa significant seversal will ol gocae, A contract Tiakility is reremized fae spected
volime discounts pavatle @ocustemers in relation lsabes madde until the 2rd of the reparting perioml

Areceivanie  recegnsed whenothe goods arve delivered e this is the pointin Hme that the sonsidembion is wneanditiopal
becanze enly the passage af thue is reguired befors the pavnient (s die, whizh are otherwise reeorded a5 contract assets.

(1] Tnberest inoeme
Interest inconte is acczoed o time properten basts, by relerence b e principal oatstanding and tie ellective interest rate
applicabie,

[} Dividend income

[ndend income frontinvestmenlsis recognised when the shareliolders rights te reeeive paement have beei estallishad,

{dy Rental income
Rental ineomme fFom Sovestment properties and subletting of propectivg is recogmized on & tme propartion Lasis weer the teem af
Ehe relevant hsyses

(] Unfulfilied performance olbligations

The Group provides certain benefits 10 costomens fer perchies g producss frons the Group. These provide = materal right 1o
rustemers that they would ool receive without entering Iote a contract, Therefare, the promize ta preslde such benelils L the
cusbiner i semarate performance abligation. The trnsacten price is allocated Lo the product and the bencfit tabe provided
on a celative stand -alene selling price hagis Manzgenient estiniates U stand-alane selling price per point o Use basis of the an
Use bassis eFproviding cost ofsuch benelils These extimates are established using bistoiml inkrmation anthe nature,
frequency and average cost vl ahligations and managerment estimates regasding prssible fimice Incidenice. To e extent these
benedide are nel sebtedfdisburaed Gl che end of o reporting period these are racorded.

Acanibract fiahilitg is recagniaed untl the benefit s provsdeg

LA Borrowing Costs

Bormowing custs include Interest olher eosts incurred i connection with borrewing amel swehange differences ariging fram
foreign currency bortowings to the extent that they are regardes s anoadjustment be e interest cosl. General and speciic
bareswang casts directly attributabile Lo the acquisition, constrectlen o praduction of qualifving assets, which ave sssels Uit
necesgarily whea substintial period of tme ta ger feady lor teirintended wse or sale, are added U tie cost of thase assers, wil
surch time as the aseets are substantially resdy for their intended gse or sale. Premicm in the Somm of foes pald an refimancing ol
Leans are seeenled for as an rpense over the ik of e loan osicg efective interest rate nethod. Al lher barewing costs a1e
recognised i the Statement of pridil and lass in she pened in which thay ars ineureed,

219 Forelgn currency Lansactions and translations

Functinan! aud presen pation cug reney
the consalidated financial statements of the Growp are prosecled in Indian Tupees [JHI), whhieh s tee fenctiosal eurrency of the
Gy peand the prosentation cerréncy lr he conselifated Arancial statenients.

Transactiang and fatances

‘ransactions In foreign currensy are accoonted for atthe schange mes prevailing on the date of ansactions Minstary assets
anid-Hakilities related o forelgi curtency ansactions remaining unsetted at e end of the year are tianslated at ve: ol
exchange rates. Gainsiesees arising it of fuctations e te wechange rates are recaznlsed g the statement of arelit and bess m
the perind in which they arise.

220 Research and Development Expenditure

lievenue Expenditure on Besearch and Developiment i chargid o the Ssatement.of Frofie and Less i the vear in which it i
inewrred and Capetal Expeeditare relating Lo Research and Devéloprient are inclusdab in praperty, alant and equlEment.

2.21 Earnings per share

1) Basic cornings per shiere

Rizsic arnings per shars is caloulaled by dividing:

= the profit atteibulalle e pwnaers of the Groop

» bar the weighted avermge iombier of ity shates ootstanding ducng the financial venr

it Diluted eornings peeshave
Nituted earnings per share adjusss the figeres wsed an e determinatian of basic carnings per share ta take inbe acesunl

» thefter incame tax effect of intevast aed ulher Snancing costs associated with dililive patential equite shares, anid

» the wasightod average mumber of additionul cquite shares that weald Tuves Seon ootstanging assiming the eonweaesion o
all dilitive polential ity shares
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2,22 Segment repoerting

dperating segments are reported ina manner consistent with e iiteenal vegorting provided e ke chief nperating decision
miaker.

Tl Bosrd ol vtz bis beer identified s the chicf sperating decision maker. efer wobe 38 for segneat inlarinaticn
presenied. The company accounts Fer intersegneatsules aud amslees al vped,

2.23 Use of estimates and critical aceounling judgements

I pregavationel Uy copesodichated Bramenn statements, the Groep makes judgemaeite, eatinabes and assimptons aboul the
carrying values of assets and lalbilities that are not readily appazent from ather saarees, The cotimates and the associated
snmplions ace ased on histerical experienee and ather factars that are considered o e relévant feleal resatls ray diller
from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlzng assuimpliong are revicwe! or an engoing basis. Revisons te accounting estimates are
recagnizad inthe periad in which the cammate s revized and Futire pereds allecied.

slgntfeant ludgements aid estiteates relating ta e sarrping valuss of gssets and labilities include useful loves of prapezty,
plantan pepaipmicnt and intangible asscts, impairment of property. plant and equipinent, intamginie wsels and investments,
provislan Fe empleves benefits aid ather provisians, recaverability of deferred tax asses, commiltiients ané contiagetcies,
mastanrement efieasc liahilite and Right to Use Asser

Z.20 Recent pronouincemnenls
Ministry o Corporate Affairs ("MOA") nonfics new standard o anteidinzn s e the existing stndsrds snder Companies
Clidlan Accouting Standayds} Bules as isswed foon time o time, G March 23, 2022 KA emended the Cemipantes (adian
Accnunting Standards] Amendment Bules, 2022, applicabla foim Apeil Lsg, 20EE, us belave

Ind A% 103 - Reference to Concephial Framewaork
The amendments specify tal wogualily Br recognitian as part of applying the scguisition methed, the identifiable assets
acgpwired and tliabilines assumed mst meet the defiuticie of asgets sued Lalilities in the Caneeptual Framenek for Financial
Reparling vnder Indian Accounting Standards [Conceptial Framework] isaued by the Tostitote of Glaartered Aocountanis of
Inidia at the acquisition date. These chanmes de ot signilicantly Chitnge the requirernents of Ind A% 183 The Groop does not
expich L unmendenaent b e oy signiFns timpast in its finapcial statenents.

Ind A% 16 - Procecds before intended nse
The amendments matnly prehibit an entity ony deducting eem thecost of prapesty, nlant and coipment apeents recefved
Frakn selling itens produced while the company @ prepanne the asset for s jotended use, Lislaad, anentity sl reeeenise
such gales procecds and related cost o prefitor loss The Group daes net expect the amendments tahave any impact in its
recogrition ol i propecly, plant and couipment in its francial statements:

Ind A% 37 = Onerous Contracks - Costs of Fulfilliog a Contract
The amendments specite that that the “cost of fulfilling a contwact comprises the ‘chsts that relate directly e the cantract’
Costs. that relate directly tooa contract con either he ineremental costs of falfilling that contracs fevamplae would be divest
labwmar, materinls) or an allocaion of other costs that relate divectly b fallilling contrics, The amendment is csscensially a
clarilicatian @ Ues Growp dies not expect She amendment ta have any slgnificantumpact io tke finaneial stateinents,

Ind A5 104 - Anpual nprovements to Tod A (2021)
Thessmembmenl clarifies the Treitment oF any cost oy feos iIncurred by an entlby i the process of derscaguition ol linaacial
Lataliry 2 case of repurchase of the debt isbament by the issuer, The Group dees not expect the amendment bo have any
significant imgaeclin it lnanrial statements,

Ind A% 106 - Annoal lnprovements to Td A% (2021}
The mnendments remove the illustration of the reimborsement of leasehold improvernsits by the lessor in order b resalee
any potential cenfusion regarding the treatment of lease inceatives that might arise beeanse af how lease incentives were
describad in that illustration. The Sreup dacs pat expert the anendiment 1o have any sigeificeul bogact in ils lnancial
statements,
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Mutess Formming part of consolidated fnancial stalenents
tAllamaounts in Rupees croves, uinless otherwise stated)

Mote 50 Eguily aceonnted investneenls

Joint ventire:

(i} The Group bolds 45.496% of the: total eguity shave capital wnd witing Fights in Gondakar Coal Mocing Liriled, The decisions i s
of activities whicl sipnificanthy affeet the risks and vewanls af thase respertive aotities, Towever reraine i onimimons consanl o all
anarcholders. These enlitivs have thorefare been accaunied for as joint ventures,

(i) The Growp Tas ne matevial joint sentoee as a1 g1 Mach 2022, The summarized finanzial nfnalion in respe of the Graug's
fmmateria? feind venture thil is acoomwnted for sing the equily setlhoed is s bl

Particulars 1 March 2ozs 31 March 2021
seviing vadie of She Droup's inleees i beinl venlung -

Parlicabrs Year ended Yizar ended
41 March zoos 3iMarch soz1
e share ot proficlose) o ol ven bz - F
Litegs share of ather comprehensive ineome in joictwenture 2

Group's share of 1otal comprehensive income i joint venture 5 4

(i) Share of ovecopnised Lo in respeet of equity accowiled joint ventore pmconied 1o Bs 0,01 etan for the year ended 51 Masel
agui [@oao-i: B ool coo). Comulative ghares of uniecognised Tsses in respest of equite aeeonnled joint vwntores o ot =1 Basel
oikis Be 058 crove (31 March 2020 Be 057 erove).

(i Tl Gy has folly inspaired its equity accounted joint veoture,
Financial Agseis

Note & Investinents

Particulars Faee vitlpe 1 March zoan 51 March 2021

A Investments carcried s Bair vadue through other
comprehensive incomes:
Investmenls in Fognity shoves
i) Qhvated
: 10 o © oo o
A0, 100 |30 March, 2oa1: qabana) shares of HO1 Industeles Lid, §
A ofa O n Manch, 20200 3,69506,086) shares of Kesarpm Teutile @ anaH 20,18
Mills Linsiled @
2048 win I8
jaid !.-'n.e_,ll.m.lrs:l’
i . L AB. a0 e
Aogano (3 Mazel, 2021 30000 <hares of Birla Buildings 1ad ; =
woono g Mavel, 2021 10,000} shates of Coromande] Stanpings 10 a.ngr * o
& Btobes LLd 5
iqgo00 (g1 March, 2ozt (43,0000 shares of Kesoram Ssrvives 10 1Lt 1
Limited {Erstwhile Eesisran Tnsnmnes Droking Serviees Lid)
venans {1 Marel, 2aa100,456 1 shares of Caleutla Slock Exehangs 1 - -
Agsoriation Ld
16 51 Marel, 26212 101 shares of Meghdool Ca-apertive Tansing 100 aon * o.on *
Hoeiety Lid 5
. m 33 G
TEE 30 March, sozrt wagn) slares of Padmavati Investmant Lid Hi 33
. . 5 5] .z n.5
18,500 (1 Masch, 2021 18,800] shaves of Yasmaubats Semdees Tid al 54
G305 57-23
H. Investments carricd at amortized cost:
M savings certifeala @ i U1
[N} 01,01
Todal Investments 4,84 T4

LI The earmving value and mackel vl of quoted and unagestad tastments aee as belowe

() Quobed
Carrving valus 200l 0,18
Mt vplee 2010 2018
{h) Uminpuoted
Laavrying value Rl frad

+ onarket values b sases of some quated investments ave ool available, horee the fair value Tas hesn eonsidered 0z market salues [nsach
F oot of these equity instramentz have beer congideved as aw aperopriats cstincate of fair valus becauss df @ wide Tange of possibila fai
value measarements and cost mepreseots the best estimete af Grir vilue within that T2npe.

* pleslusl with goat putheorities,

* Amnounl 25 beleay the rownding of sosadugtesd b the Grang




Kesoram [ulustries Limited
Mates furming part of consulidufed Aoancil sknleinenis

LAl nunts in Bopees crores, unless sitherwise stabed)
Nate 7t Loans

ch 20%3 31 Mardl

redated padies 1
Lz Adboneance far predin oss 7111

CEiLesim to otbers [Befer o o e
Leszs: Impairment Lees eo Loan i Bedy Cnrpareze

B, Chirveny
soverend povskhmocd goes!

Ly Laan T ey s a5 (it}
[ B e T T T 14405 I
13545 1a0d

Muate;

(2] Loen has been provitled ta lidateres Lirnated, a Body earparane, pursiant 1 e sehess ol aaanganint g pos deimepger’ i repayalile en demand and carming an
interesd rate of R DAL Burng Ehe 2urment woar, the parent eocnpany Das acsointied B Be 5648 ciames as inkael inoore o this kg w=ich has been prosteed faren
praders hasis 25 the marticnlar assct i aleondy Iepeined. '

Lh: Leans & Advanoes granied e Frameteis, Dirsveea. KNP & Rela] Tai s

Aaiwountof boon ot dyioee Blae | Perceatape 1 iR il
Type of Borvower natnre of loan outstanding bomim-and advances i
e remina of lipns

Hasl
M‘:“_uh Hast Marcl,
e ¥ Eaie ]

Rl Partles
) Lad TEn Rt e i 21 wleal speeifying any lerms or -
ekl of repaymienl

=il g vt any

bt Laan e ele e imte contadlag Ly B3
Wwins e periad ol g pausent,

L2 1ac ERTEY BREE
i

® Loan ol Be 200 emcis glvis 1 LW e e has base Tolle pogyiled Fn

Mot H: O e finaeeia nnsels

Ldwncnrrent
Lepasitwith ocgimal mar:
Sacurity dupusils

binterasa) gaiserpesd o clequoesfs

w ror e rhan 12 e s ™

Larred

Seeuribye deposits [RiE]

Faalane with Ty poopcrles KK

Lae: Alknnars T dana il ad e [Laby)

Interest permzed nn drgess 0

Chers 1200
ELin]

*Ra g1 erars |FY uns1-0088), 307 avie (Y 00e0-2000h, repoesenis e dupoails wedpe? for DERA forserored bormowings
Sheten e 130, Balange 5old gaien b brob agaias) besk poaraniess

* Hreld as loon by Bank ageiner Lank gianenjis

Pt a; Diher pssels

Tipn-airri

sapenl advaness TR 5} ey

Frepesd expenses 1G5 171

viLH G-

Lurpenl

Balana wil s plciyyd poesmmeal authariles ol

Frepal experas &

cdvanoe 1o vwenidors: 119.57

Lamse: Alkn i Tar donlefs iedvanoes: [EFSH

Teznrivp s Tesnt Geatiily Fondd {Refor Male 231 [ERc]

claim Besepvakle © G000 i

Jth ] o0&

Laass Ak e Ty donl sl recengibles JreH ois)
158,00 e

* Pursuant trenlnr oo efund 7 elano arongem ) of the
with the o raaral Eocal Raitess iee s perkelod §aes s, &
Ferbwbe of 42 5 prares inder Claims ey atie T FY @29 i-20,

vl Bailwas, the Campany had exteced amic 2 Long Tean Vasff Consract 11T
S L Gy bes vornplied wiks the terme of she Cordrct, i has aooreed ighi




Kesorwon Dnduairies Limileal
Purbes fornring part of consclidated fuancial stafemeits
A in Rpees croces, unlesy othervse stated)

e i Dievenlarics

Particulors

Faw enatemals g
Wi - RS ]
Finisha! garsls Mz
Srack-in-lade :
Fzares and Spm pants et |
LY 137.21

Licladed alsave, gonds do-transh:

materials T 144

il grals (] 5.4

|stores and spare pans [ore oA
FRInL] 1131

Tl Aores B spares invenbory balanee 15 et of provisoa of Be 502 evees (32 Mach 2091 Prvvizisn ol s, 05 eromsdawands sk moving, mos-

mevingand clonlems stock.

Mt ez Trsnde ivseivalales

Partiealnis

Trade Receivalles

i ecuned, congdernd good

ok e e, oo poodd

Ly AT e s Noe Repae s Cneclin Ty

i redis ampaired
Lema: Allcaabes ierermd impainsd

e Hocckeahlek

dlate nf Payonenty
Particulars Taces Qb G- | & i - Mare than
Hot tnie wnzslha 1 3er RN S B MENCS ik

1 =cdley o Tighs entivalies
I Secured - consdered poead il "y - - - L Fo ]
DL nsecured - consdened pood SFAT Aan 1.5 L0 gz g LR

Lizonied Trade Ercenables

o] Soriiod el et goon - - it 0.4 05 o
o D e d - cowdil imgeiog] | 186 0,86 4:15 Tl
“Tutal Deldors DA 2303 2.9% T 107 3.72 E1RT
Less: Alawanes for Lass - - - - - (1L}
[Met eors = a0 A P 7 a7 A7 | mmwoh

Dutstonding for follnwiig petbols feam due daie of Tavments

Tess iz & | 6 manthy - More than Total

ot Duae e T IZawarn 35 venrs 3 yoars
uzol .0 023 L - EF.dd
2RR.CF arsd b (LR =
uted Trade Receivables

penred - eenmdered good - LR wHr iz R .04 ERE]
s = grodit i pai sl - nat 979 L BN i Tl
Tudal Nelalory 27721 _miay .56 EN-T 29 | gigah
Lasss: fkr ance Sor Lias H s = g = B B0
et Debtors = il ik o Bl PR T

Fate i2: Cank ol sashb cguivabe

Partlculaos =3 March Eoaa g Marel @i

Cavsly send azsl copaivabents

Cashica hamd BRE o]
Ualances with banl

L CANTET Enenints & Ly Ea R

Tl Pl Credil A HEH
hlares

Ltepessil witk: nriginel matnrity ess than three manths 157 23.0%

AL 9743

# Inelindes oo Bank deeannt which S pensdizo o b Dessleod in Uhe ngme ol he gubsidiary, ewscer, dlosure for Phe same 5 oo prososs

Mule g Other bank balances

Prrbicitira i 21 March dokt

Gepesil wil= eripinal sraturits for murs thas thrse manths bt less chan A
Lwelve menths et 1
Dl idend pecaiingg a0 e
57.21 14.49
Dizpeesiis rmore than thoee months incodes: 8 March, woee - ga Maoreh, sea

- Dpresitg plalprad ok fAR e Las At haniLies & il

= LLedé as T by Bank againet Lenk guamnbess et ] 14:44




Resorain Industeies Limited
MNaotes fovming part of consalidated finnncinl statements

{AlLamgungs in Kupees crores, unless olbersise stated )
Note 14 Equity share capilal and ather eguity

Nute 14 (ah Eguity share capital

Authorised cquity share capital

a1 March 2n22 1 March 2021

G, eic Do enn Bquily 5’.'13;25-J| 2, 1o eacl

[Enzn-21: G0,00,00, 5o shuares] ano.nn SO0

B0 o, i Tauite Shares af Bs, 1o oech

[nsn-w dog oo, oo, oon slares] G AL
1, 24045 LH1 L EERTE AR

Issuecl, subseribed and paid-up equity: share capital
Particulars i March zoee g March w031

i g 16y Tapniky Shates of Baoao each fully
i
23 March ooal: e g Lty Sharvs aof Be
i eszek fully gaid npd

8 Bouity Sharca of Be, 5 each patly gaad
Lp

1as March 2020 Nil Brmity Skares of Be 5 cack
Fally paid upl

a3

i) J‘ﬂmwelrlem L eapiafto shiires ool

: g1 March aozi
Dpening balanee 1. Ep
Fresh shaves lasued i
Llosing balance 243,41

acTvzing, e Ananial wear 2owi-u, cabemipbion G Bphts sue ol 2a0,600,75, wpiheshmes of T each far eash atz premium of Be 40 pes souse copreeding L Hs
495,54 OO wag gpeed, B @ per shiare waes pepahlo anoapplizafiom and remnining Be 25 pec alave o st aed Snad call wdikin sy marths from ke dade of
albatiment. The isswe was avessuhseribed and allotment of the partly paid op equity shares of B sack was st an 2u Oeiaersns and the wading of the 22id parly paid
wp ity sharcs was pvailabile from 2B Gesoler, 2000 Lo 30 Hovezlbea 2021, .
The Grat and fnel vall for Uae alaresaid sty :.hp shires wits made g timezs and thelast date o pagibent was it March;, 2022 st and fingd szl maney fr

T AR A0 shures was reocived and the Alletment far 7o iz des was wade U0 2est March, 2022 amed for gee Sk shames or Gth Apnilzoza . Out of the alrsasals alloted
shares the trading of the 78635105 equily shacas comnmencer b guest March, 2oz and £,08,551 shares on ath A, 2022 and the belanes 4,500,700 s il ke pliss in
e sonme, Fov the pesiesining 360,005 pertly puid wp shares the Boord Comeittes as deelded Le pive a lust and Ll samindsr s she sharehsider pexmacnt of thair Arat
el meny

Faest andd final eall mocney o022, 634 Das bee receivesd which Ras been shown undersharc apoleabion rozney pecdiog alotent of T 1.oé mmoms.

Ulaene b nuer desiativn: incoge of proceeds fram she objeetives as stated in She (6fer Dot bar rights issee.

L Lie presious vear e Comgany issued e st Bavity Sharcs faoe value of B 1o each L Uie previocs becclers anoa prefarenfnl hasis 2n Sth Marek saat a the
]rln deterrined i azoardaneswdith she apphcib E‘]a'r'\- @ lis b ger aboes Dowluding secor ek premivm of Rs 55 per shate), Rofer Bete gaia)

. Uiilizatian of Proceeds from Hights Issne
The pricesds from the rights fzsoe [refer fad 2bove] have baan utilised lovazds e chiect stazed in e 027 Letteran the fallawing mannes

Achedled zart recemplion of MCDs L 51
Comversion ol 0D inclhuding interest lor Manay 5414
Treestinent & Trading Co [net af TES bz oquity

Fedemnplon ol Oplielly Comerile WAS.D0
Trheqiinizes in part

Genarpl Corporate Porposes * i 313
Lesue bupenscs Gncudiog 6T 1274
"Tartaal SO, 0

= The abeud fAguee inozides wiadilised & wircosved dooen of Be g7 crores as on 3188 Marel, sons,
B a3 '

Ternae amel righids arnchon b aguit) sha
Thes Gronap bas b classes of cquity shares having a saz value of Be 10 per share and partiy poid up shames of Bs 5 eaeh. Al shass
oo bovon vate per dliave and foe panily peid op shares the wetivg rghits eonsidens _Is,'rt in properion o L'.'].ea.:“ ua :
s diviclenid in Telar rapees: Thie dividens propassd te the board of direston |a subieet o e appnsal of e sharchaldens in snedivg Anaual General Meetlng ssespt L.
e case afinterion disidond. 1 the event ol Tiquida o, the eqily sharehohisrs ane Sigible 1 repsive she remaining assots of e Grean aller distibation ol 2l prefenmiia’
amsnda, by e progortioe: b Uheic shasshaldings,

aldiers for Fully pald up egally s ane

Tha:Greag deelares and




Kezorain Industiies Limited
MNuotes forming pact of consolicated finnncial statements

20 G STves i

(i} Detoils of shoreholders holiding more

31 March 20
Numhoer of 5 hedding

shares

Shareholder

LAl amonels in Rupees crores, unless atherwise stated )

31 March 2oz
Number of

ag i
shares % haldiog

Aacnre [nvestinent & Trding Ce Tad 545,149,450 23.36% 5000, R win %

Pilani Tnecssments and Indosirics Corparation

Lilted 3 s 048750 o 2,30 38, T LRG3

Suke Banb Liotiled L2 S 1T IO 7.75%
11084 4 G016 Al g Fadth B 151 4495

(o Drails af sharelaldings by the Propoieny Promeder Grasp

g Morch zouz %1 March 2oz T Charge
Promoter) Promoler Group iNane 1 ™ | &
Fromaoter
Savas Livestnenl Soladlng Co: Led E.415,10, 450 R e 00,66 0] 2 kL Fa2E
Tl Tovestines and Indosities Corponian )
T imitod dalich R, e REHEEN LA TR 1 56% P
Maneehres Khaitan (Chalnman 143, Ty IR PE 2,500,150 D 1B5%
Fromoter Group
Cesilaery Tesiiles and Dndistries Lid T, 0, 50 0% LR LI0% FLAFR
b R f et 3 F : "
Adtiva Marketing and Marefzetoring Pt B, ] i ST L4 i
LEE

Tadnsavact Lovestnaenl Pel. L, o8 a0l 1.10% L850, LIS Lir% FERA
Tick Istitute ol Technology and Seicoer L5, 15,804 0633 15,1680k a2 [NRETERA
Tirl ra Trast 054,078 s #5417 o5R% R
Prakash Bdveabional Sceicty PR TV R L 7% FRERT 055 0,0
Late Basanl Kumar Bicla 5,47, 808 0,25% A.00,400 SRR A4 505
Hirla Educibioaa] stlulion A A SRR 502,693 Fe 4 AR
IWVarula T LILAEL 0T 115,577 % 48545
Baaskrer T4rta R LEEATHE A HE0 ok 8.5
Vassvndutla Bajad Boge [EERE 5750 0.0k 18.51%]
Funar Mangalzin Bz dd5 D%, L] [RaLI A%

12,03, 23, B 4420k % 7,57:00,540 45005 S

=% ehinge during the yeas hos Been compoted on the asis of the no of slaed al e Bepining ol e veer,

Nobe 14 (h) Other Eguily

rticilors

31 March 2

1 March doa

Seciibes Prenus 109 q9Z3.45
Ui pibasl raserve

(3 Develapment grantfsuheicy .15 g
(bl Armalznmation mpEerer LR HED]
(] Capital resare o g o brsdness combinatio: ALEL ALSL
Carpalal sedemplicn Toserne ] AA6
Grnerg] reseres Q200 FRE
Tair witdue throngh ather eomarehensive income et B sl
(FVOCTY- cquity instramants

(hiers AL AL
Bretaimed camnings {1,900.52) (L226.5H)
Totul Cthaer Eq‘_ﬁli:l:_\- 205,14 3207

{id Secirilies Presdom

Particulars

Fi March 31 March 2o

Uzenbing HINIHY aE1A45 HoLz?
Ineresisseleerese] during the year | Refor Mate 1a02]] SR et ]
Closing halianee: 1. ETC G340

L) Capdtal veserve

{a) Development grant/subsidy

Particulars

1 March zoze g March 2021

Cizmeniiing balaee iR ;i
Toangler patsuant to dhe sehome of arvangement
Closing halanos .15 5

ih) Amalgamation reserve

a1 March 2oz

%1 Muarch o2z

: 14 aLce a4l 2L
waseederrese ] doring the wear - ~
Closing halanee EX -2 |




Kesoram Industries Limdted
Botes fomning part of consolidated Anancial statements
{AlLanounts in Bupess cooves, unbess alburwise stated)

() Capital reserve arising on business comblnation

Partivulars i March 2ngz a1 March 2041

ez belie A1E1 QLG
Irorease/ (deercase) during the year = =
{losing halanes 4151 41.51

(1) Capital redesption reseme

Particutars q1'March 202z

Crperitg talanee A5 w50
Trezease Tdverciese ) cluring the sear 2 e

Clsing halunes 159 3559

{iv) General rescerve

Farticulars #iMarchgozz 31 March 2031
Crrocming kalimee FrEEY PIFRT)
Taezesses Tdesease]) dadong the year =

Ullming Dralariee LG AMD PR

() Frir valoe throvgh ather compreliensive income (FWIOTE ity instroments
Particulars

31 Marchaozz g1 March 2oz

upening balanes Ly ECRT]
Clusigge D e value of TWOCT scuity instramaen ts net of Eayes LEREIF) an
‘Tratisles Lo equily : o

Clersimg, balamee 5480 G000

fvittHher reserves

Particubars 21 March oz g1 March 2oz

Dpenieg halimes: Azl S
Lrercasc, Cdeereascd duriag Qle vear £
Closing balanes ERL F:HE

(i) Hetained earming

Partlcilars qiMarch 20a2 At Murch £o21
Dpening balaiee {1, R0 (1,568,77)
it ool loss) for L yeas (77040 14010
Teaims of other comprehensite Deaie rectonived divectiy i retaimed eornimgs

= Bemieaguveaznl ol posl-smpliazent barelie ohligation, net o L K] ERE
Transler Le ity o £
Closing balance (30012 [1,zd, R

Wature and purpose of other reserves

IO Heurlties peenam

Securitics premine is nsed b recond preiem reesned oncissoe of shates, The resccie izowblesd o aceordanse with L prrisions of the Companies Ack wory (the
“LCompanies Act').

(i Cagital peseroe

{a} Carluin grants of eapital notore had been eredited b Capital Reserae

(B0 The Company hae recopnised prolil caaccomstal amiigpmatian v sapitpl rescmee

ed Capllal resesve arising un busitess pemzivabion being paineo bagain pucchase recigis

firectly inoepital reserec.

S Crpatol redeigmilon resaroy

Capi talredeoplion raserve was reated 2o aceoent af Teinstatement ol cerdats ivestinents aesd spares as eost.

i) Gengrnl reserve

Vinatker Ll wrstwdhiile Compamies Aet 1050, 0 poncral peservs was coaalsd tizzugh an amaa ] anster of net prefis et a spocifiod percenlage in aceosdanee with applieablz
regnlations. Consequantt b the mtreduction o the Companize Aot s, the requinement Ls mandaiory Lansier a specilied perentags of net prafit 10 geneal meces has
Leen withdimer.

(o Fai volie disag ot comprahenzize fmeame (FVEICT poity frestoumenis

The eumulative galns and losses azisiog oo fir value Smges af quite invcstmenls meascoed
equily anstounents reserve, The halanee of the reserss Tepresents such changes ssoapnized net o

Tabe walue sheovgls piter cranprehrsmae ireare are eecgnisad b FYOCT -
onite renlassificd toretained cavrings oo disposal of sucl e ments,

Fuil e reseres

el prananily buchude:

() dmeants anorapriated out o profil o less for deubillal debis sl contingrmeies
(2] Shorg buybas® regerve hae been crealed as per e Comperivs Act, 1556,

(ed Beaerve which haz azisen oo forleitire of shires.




Kesaram Industries Limibfee
Mades fornslng part of consolidated Roancial statemenis

[AIL amomnts v Rujiees ermvey, unbevss alherwise sbatedy
Financial Linhilities

Eorrawi

w1 Mareh 2nes Hi Marelyaoal
[a) Recured

At Aamnrtised dins
Term: Lanns:
P Bank

Do vuess luar [Bedfer Mebs ol belomn] fizan 4741
ks (b Eelow]
inr Eemared, Lised and Bated Redecmabos
verlie Tiehentires [Taze salie of Ty g,65. 500 each (as
i March, 2o By 16,060,500 eachl] 145354 1,464 56
[Hefer mnte (k] helaw]

F200 Besured Optiona v Ceipa Uble Delentpnes [f.:ne'-.'.'.".l.-o‘f
P 3,27, g ek Gas at cyast Manch, 2i2a) KBS i, an cai L84 Y7y
"Hefer mate (k1 helw]

Tonbaen rupsse Jusn | Refer Mule 2] hebow] LT b I

[h) Uinacieied
Al Falr Vale throuph Profil f Loas Avcount
A48 0505 Eero Cougmn Optinnally Canvertaie Ksdoeninle
Prodrrenae Khares [face valie of Bs o0 el ]- ecugnisad al fir QT .
wrloe {Reler Wote [0 el

189065 =, CH-N
Lesa: Curter] e i of g e AETOITS T e Relat {154.95] 5 1LgE)
AT Tnigs sl s e an foe e Geeesoiigs -
b e L U ARS1.0HT
| Current
{0} Secured:
cyprrent mtaribizs S satonally Convertible Delesiures 13649 Aran
Cussinl eialaiilics o Clher Lorg Term Lozns 10,54
working Capilal Luan
From Bank
trerdraft J dash il [Refer Xole (0 helow | ILFa
LERATRLT T, i H
Warking Capilal L
vreeriizafl f Cash Credit E LR
Fram cthers
Tner s eorane depelt 3.0 500
1.r:1.:ﬁ_ 6, T
Ak et ancrad oo St i Goresiings o,Bi Qi
10,15 LR

Net debt reconciliation

Thizzcetion sz ovlan analvals of debl and Uie sovernents innel dele (o theenrrent porind

Cash and eaab equivalents Vit aT4g
Sopn=eurrenl Bormovings [N ] (1,5:31.07)
Crrrent berrewings (o 1g) ettt}
Tartil {1,752 60} {1,020.88)

Diler asaets Liazhikities from financing scthvitics Tial
Cash and cash MNon-exrnent Current

egaivalents orrowings harrowings
Mt deht ps at 1 April 2oz o [L5q1.07; (77.a6) Lo R
Mot inarease in cash and pashequivalents ._';'-.j'_'jn,g'_he Wl 36.25 - i
Repayment ol Bornawing avad S5 3757
Teenwiph i Lhe Bormasiings - (3l {5u.85) (H4.E5)
Clamge in eash erodin eonsidered o8 casl and cash squivalent for , ;
slalemasnl o vash fows AT = 7
Inieresl expenses - [BE.Ra1 FREr) (4E4T)
Taereal paid - agqLT 19z wEEOn
Clemges o pomend mielusities nd'l-:-r{-:_-h:l?n Adght - 158,55 [15E.35) i
Nur-cash moveanenis:
Taave af cquily shares to Manay nvestment % Tadieg Co Lid B Ad-3 S04
g vivsl T -
Mot deht s at g1 March =g 12106 {1 731@) {11.2115} (1,772 6m )

b ageois Linhilities from finanelng setivities Tatal

Cash and cash Ku-vurrent Crarrenk
equivalents horrpwings Borrawings

MNet debt as at 1 April zozo i, 11414 65) thzE. i) (e
(L',iss'n :'I-::-.'s fe . geyad [g3.07) Z1450 Tafgaga
Chamgsin sk orel mnsiclered py cash ar i $
alatmirr,t-:x'raﬁ Aws FHACL AR RLRe (8758 - ufiz.6d -
Interist mpenecs (5771 {6a.77) (2150
Imierest paid - RECEI 15047 4R1z
Coarversian ofieen terest b Laan o (45.55] % (et
Lrnner el pineissinng cost charges] nff - Taguan) s {9721}
aoe | 3 'y i) W i }
Ejmcl:;. E;r:!:nl mazuri s ol leag-lena dell smd inberest s (BLGE] i
Maomn-viash mosenents: =
lagueof QURES srod Fouiky shares for Joan setilenipnl B0 Aty il 16054
Netdebt as at g March 2o 9745 {1,040.407 ) (77260 (1 e B




Resoram Industries Limited
Mates forming part of eonsolidated finoncial statements

(a) Wepapemicnl Wwems wnd palare oF securilies piven For Dadian rupee terod loans from hanks are as fedlows:

LAl amoumts in Hupees cenres, unless stherwise siatod)

Wature of Seenrity

Repvment Terms

Sukarch snes 31 Marclacal

Trsttialivd Pasik Ll 4946 A
Indrired Bank Lo 470 =z
(R 4740

Seoand Fhargs aver Current Asses ol
W B iy,

Pledge  on agyasans=  {frecl and
roesH IR ek m LIl go.cs sas1)
numiber. wl ke of “Dida Tvres
Lirni el by Manmc lowestment 2nd
£, omnpar Lin e

o Hutwidlary, Fledpe w
ol th of Girdu Tvrer Lim

LA FRITE TR mil,

A4 eaqual mendbly Lt menls 2fler s vear
mecaborimm, Bake of interest Sorsh,
Tinked taesterral berehmans [Repo rae

arge over Cnmrent Assels of 48 equalinstalmests payanle oo the st

Arrorthe mgial aller {khe 24Lh mend= of

f wlirsd aiilesenl. Bate of interest 8.25%
tnecstment  arel  TreAdieg nded foesternal Lenefimark [ oo rate

1h) Hepayment termns and natuee of seenrities gheen for bemrowings feom Cihees ace as Tollawe:

41 Manch Zoax 41 Moreh &

Nawmre of Secuarity

RBepaynsent Terms

e 4 tanveribs Tehentire L4555 LR EG
Ciptinnally Ceowestibie Drhentars 13540 57095
rra Lo COpsionally Cenvemible Bedeertinls Preference Shares QL0 40T

1,052, 72 fug.on

First pari passe charge neall freed
asacla, Mowea e asaels {ner-carenil

) and inlangilile assets of
v Additiarally seanmed by
et gl 250 LETT ity shares of
Lhe Compare keld W the prometrrs ;
Mo Plepaa’ Hnderiaklbag (40U AR
ublier secuily kel Dy promaoter;
prarantes by o promes il tethe
waline ol sares pledped e coder
MO e slate] aliove

Kedermaklein 12 insks menis by 280
Fearuany 202 slaricg Mrom Kovember
izl Tesare of instoument 4 years 11
=annths and 12 dass Tram Le déle of
allotimn e vt Maneh, 2, Cash
oo rtess 1 8moml s G0 e
gtz @i g% e 47-5caunths
L

EIRR of erumst cxelding add el
TelEiesl Land Lises, Tist instziment fer
K 5o croces was paid in keaembs znd
Ehe nesat st plnesnl s e Tn Augusl 25
Foir s S mrures,

18-

3

Aedermahlein Angas wne Fennr ol
skrament 17 mciis avel 15 s fram
e clale of allulmer: ek M
sy, Cash aompen rice T
Aapfcizhle; KIRR oF 50075% exclding
addricozl interest 1zl Laxes,
Ereoayment af B 50028 0o was
b Lll March'2oos,

Her
slari

mahlrin 5 equnl instalmente
& Tt FY ano-z8

(e} Kepayment terms unal nabare of securities given for Indian mapee term loans from otliers aec as Mllaws;

ch iz
wrst Bengal Tefrastmietions: Diewelapmacnt Finares Cerpecatiom 1L LT 12
13017 12h. 60

Fieal aiel eaclizie diame en 4l
moneslile arel im=wveabile fixed assets
af the Snbsdinre exeepl 1ha Domorane

n
Fra ulilling The BERA mquacsieals
Fased - Deposit [er an amounl
squivalznl te three manths mberest hes
o B neambsined wilh WREINDFS

By vy nf bl repayment
rernmenang from seeigane for a jeer
af wrwenra: Tkl fale 19.65% .

“The Grnnp has net defatted in the repayment of horrswings diring the cirment yran

) Repameent Werms and watiee of gecuriiles gleen foe shar fero buerowings
T Heot o Ly wedy of il i e ann Lhie S0 0men T pedels G0 1he whally svenid solsidiare,
2 The cash credil ars] werzing capital dermamd leacs e repavalle o demarel.




Kesoram Industries Limited
Notes forming part of eonsolidated financial slalenenis
(AL oy in Bupees croves, onless otherwise stided)

Note 16: Ovher finaneial liabilities

Farticualars at March cooz 1 March 2021

Mon-Corrent

Reenrity doposits Hp.at FgiaF
A7 727

Current

Capital creditors 1 1034

Retention & Enrnest deposita 175 .ol

Hher pavalles 27.70 20,19

Secarity dopnsits 054 17.85

U pirid clivicends * D o.nz

Unpaid matored deposits ond interest decrped theroen - -
B8 571

" Mote: Theve iz ne lisbilite due which iz veguived o be tsoesfeered o Investor Bdbagation and Froteetion Fouod ander section ez aned 125 of the Companies
Act, porg except for disputed cazes forshares hald in abesance wnder senlion 1246,

Nuote 17: Provisions

Murch goze 31 Muirch 2o
Mon-Current
(a’) Provision for emplovee beneliis
Provislon G Jeave eicaslonent Cunlonded) 1h,72 1A
(h} Others
Drepormunissioning obligations PLgf 10.31
Todal non-enrrent provisions 288 F
Current
(&) Provigion for employes henefils
Peavision for gratuity [Refer Nole 25] ot Rz
Frovieion for leave cncashment (wnfunded) 246 385
Cithers 017 =00
(b} Orthers
Provigiom for continpenries - 571
Frowisian e dlispated stabilpre dines 14.75 ugay
"Uotal current provisions 1748 34159

(i} Moueanent in provisione
Tireanants in cach elass of provision during the financial vear, are sel sut helow:

Provision for

Particalirs Provisgion for dasputed

comtingencies stalinry
tlues

As at 1 April zozl 10,41 1.71 2514

Cliarped Teredited ) to pralt ar Loss:

Additionz] provisien recopnized -

Unueed amounts reversed . Lzl 1

Antounts used during the vear - - -

Unwinding of Thszenmt 1.15 - -

A at 31 Mareh aoaz 1144 - LY.75 g

Movemants tooeach elags of poovision duviog thie pevsvicns year, are set ool heloss

Frovision for
Pacticolars Provision for disputed
contingencies statutory
ducs
As it 1 April 2oz q.2H 1.21 2365
Charged/ Teredited ) to profit or koss!
Additional provision recognised . - =50
Unnsed pmounts reversed . - -
Armonnts wsed during the vear - D50k -
Thwinding, of Drisaonm 107 £ =
As at g Mareh 2oz 1,51 171 E3.14




Kesoram Industries Limited
Moles forining pact of consolidated financial statenments

Neote 18: Deferred Tax Assets / Linbilitics

LAN sty in Rupasss crores, unless otherwise stibed )

31 March 2031

Dieferred Tax 1

Tiniing Tifferenes - Property, plant wed cgaipment 25154 chg bn
‘Tuming Differences - Investments 14,22 I
Tiasniagg Pilferenes - Aaocstision of Dabentun: nlepest 17.41 G238
Cither ) 1318
Gross Thefermed Tax Taahiline g s EL R
Beferved Tax Asscts

it beicrr e clesprecial b FI7 A a1y B8
Capital losscs $A56 RN
Business logses 14255 201401
Tlanss allowable for tax purpase on pament 1oFa 2254
Frivvisions ' 147,33 134 g
iMkoery Ee G777
Gross Deferred Tas Assel SO fi5,00
Mot THferra] Tax Assels 273,45 o ha

41 March &

The Parent Conapazy bis mecognized el delsed axasset consilering dhat 21 is poobabie tel Galaee Gixable profitwilD be smilable ogains

which the wmsed T Losses coe b utilied

Mote 1g: Other lipbilitics

Non-fureent
Actmrnee received] froan l-:.m;l'.»;l}m':s .41 0.7
[T 0.7
! nrr !‘.‘ﬁf
[teterred revemus: 14,56 FERL
Advanes from qustomers q87n .05
Slatubory ducs Lz 1k Lan.on
Advianca recedved fom Emplovees o560 [PEE ]
Cther paymbles 3200 3y
.21 ErA T

Note 20 Trade payables

Partienlars

s1March 2oay

March 2paz

Cab Tutal outstanding dues of e entevprisas and sinall 1845 Wi
clerprises (Refer Mole f41
(B) Total cmistanding ducs ol creslitors acher thim micro
cnterprises and small enterprises

L) Aveeplinces

L) iHhers i gullay
(o) Employes benefils payable Adan AT

shE.86 Gl B

Aglng of Trade Payahles Ason gist March boas i
Particulurs <1 T 1-2 veary B RCUrS MMore tham 3 Tatal
VOATE

(i MEME RS %.22 .l - R
(il &b Credilis #0500 2h.GN TR gl | soooag
(ifi) Thispatesd Pmes - MEML H - -
(i) Disputed Dmes - Cihers - - - §: 1] 1Ko
(v] Enplesee’s benefits payable lundispated) AT 5T n.gL 1.72 aH.92
Tutal Gab.44 A5-20 700 9.4 | gBR.80

Aging of Trade Pavahles

Anon Zist March 2021

Particulars <1 year 1-2 years 2= yEArS More than g Teral
Vears

{31 MEME LR - - - i g
(i) Other Creditors 457.84 5175 1E.14 437 -527.0
(2} Dspuated Dues - MEME - - - - -
{7 Drispuated e, - Ciluees - - n.ng 180 1.3
w1 Em pln:.-m"s; henelizs paya bl Cungizpated) 1954 (. 1.4 5.0 EITT
Total S5 R 14,43 11.47 | EHz.Hz

Mate! Aging kas beon eonsidered from the doio ol trpnsastion




Kesoram Indostrics Limited
fotes forming part of consolidabed fnancial statements

(Al anounds dn Rupees croves, unless olherwise stoted)

Kuote 21z Eevenue from eperatinns

Farticulars
Reverne frem eoatracts wilth customgrs
sale of Froduets 1544944 L7
Oller opaatig evenue EAS Sl
A.bog R EN T )

F The entine cevenane 15 being roecarded at a peing i 1ime.

Ao Rovemne from combracts wilh eoslaoears dieapereated w Ui Sasis ol geapropiteal region ang produet lines is presented el
Fear eided 51 Masch, 202z

Particubirs Trudis Outside Lindia
Ceinent 1TAE0.Z2 5 KT B
Farvem TP and chemicals fi.21 i1
50040 x ARS8

voar ended g1 March, 2oz1

Cartfoulkars Toieking Dartside Indlin Fatal

Cemeni e 102 - ZALEH
Lo, TE and elwnicals 97 Gk 474 TYEAG
2,6717.06 .71 Ehar.6y

T The Groug has reeegrisid thet falizwing revemue-ralaled eonivas Habililles sl receivables frioom canbret wish ensiomers

Particulars T AT T I P SR RO=S121

o 1 Muale 1a] 14,88 24,15
Coniract Hazilittes - Advano oo cosbonzers [Rale Bioe 1g) AHT0 AR5
[ [IRE

The change in Coatrc: Tiakdlitics are a5 Tolloss:

Tarticoltars EOEE R BORO-E02T

[§ ik Copemning An.ig qEo7
Adg: Additions during the vear, excluding amounls teeogidzed as i 468
vevenue duilig e vear

Less: Bevenue revapnisesd i L cwment pearwhict was inghadsd [ARAG] [P RoRE
tr Conbract T 513

Contract Tiahilities - Closing i h7 [T ]

Farticulars RO En e B0

Trade Reprivatlos- Gross IR A0.L5
Less: allowanoe for doubbul debe B E
R, 20 04T

1) Jievesiae recogiised in reliaton toomntn hilisioe

T nllawing tabio shios baw mach of the resenue reespilaed kthe covzenl sepoieg pedod meles 1o earried- Simened venera liahititics nng
b onuch redaties 1o perfaenance sibpalicas Ul weres ol satistied ina priar pear.

Particialars 1 -3 BT R CEV L =T BT

Hevemue resapnized that vas incieded 1o the eonivact Dalialy Balaoce oz the beginning

of T pericds

Cantrag Babilitics - Daeforred reveaue HERT .26

Caieae Dabilties - Advance Dot vesloress 4127 244
[ 3274

Nube 22 Other Incoma

Pariivtilars SNIN-FHEE 20I0-AMEL

Interas] bnoome:
O fisszdal instraments mensured af amertised oos) LN e AR
Om Iniame b Teend 0 1.01
Leag: Frosdson for Doubarul Inteses: Inommne 4 [ad45h -
Lt Diconme 0.0
Miseelaresms inenmy WL
350

= R Motz 7 [a)




Koesaram Lndustries Linited
MNales ﬁ:rnlin,g part o ennsalidnted finngnceial statements

Al mounts 11 Hupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Nole 29: Cost of Materials Consomed

Farticubns 20X1-T0T2 ZAOE-ZANZL

Raw Muterial Consomecd
5 14030 15y
w2508 21,7
Lss - Jrvventony @1 e eoid of 1 year 57 19k
Mutedz Lime slone miising cosl LTTHT 20035
xS 32540
(ir) Limestone raising cost include:
Salarivs. Weges, Bonus ot 1267
Contribution to Provident and other Fuods .53
Contribution to Grateity Fund (eefer wmle 28] [E- ]
Workrien and Saff welfare 029
Dead Bent, Rowalby ete. Qg1
TPooer and Fuel 1263
Srores and apares parls eonsaoed 3508
Machinery vepalis 4497
Oithe Pepaies 1 1T]
Tates and 1imes -
Tisussanee: g
Contractars-Transport 9.7
Mizcellancms 1497
17717

mote gq; Changes in stock of faished goods, work-in-progress snd stoelin fride

Livetibiaies ol Ui beyinntog ol the year
- Wark - in - progres Loz 20l
- Fimighed Gands 2a.5 AU
- Stack o trade RRaLE] 1L
Less: Lovcnmories al Uue end of Llie viar
- Wik - do - preoprdss 1750 e
- Finighesd Gronls TH.1% PR
- Staek i trade - o
Loz Transferad to Copital Joba 115 (IR
(1440 ERRL




Kesoran Lindustries Limited
Wobes foroning pact of conselidated fnancial stidements
AN aniouets in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stateld)

HNuote 25: Enipleyee benefils expense

Particolars

Salaries, wages and bonus L5H.8T 767
Cantiitution o pssyddent Luad E.B4 FEXTE
Canbr Eulicn w0 sapeaniuation dud (ea] (et}
Cabbelzuticn o lalsut welfare g - i
Crratuity EAyE] .20
Cantiboabicn uodee Bnplkovees Slale Insuzanoe Sehaeme Tl b ]
Vilenlary snrulion Sl d.27 SR
ALl wedlore exenses Foall TN
Tartial ennployee benelits expense 1R300 21555

Touerinig thie yeas, o Comprany recegaised anamomt aP RS, G.as trore (aooesens B8, 555 C00rss 1 e fernuneialion te ke naimngsriad peeieoie,
The details of such compneration is a5 holows

LLE e ik CALH e
Shurtserm employes aonefits

s congloamient Beacfits 0 h17
Tortal emplivves henefits cxpense [ 5.:55_'

{i) Comyumesoded ohserees
T Loz abligations cover the Greup's lobilite for sick abd eacmed leave,

(I8} Defined benefit plan

) larptarity

The Greap cperatos 3 gratuite plan through the *KICM Gezluily Fund®, Every cmployer is enlifled o bencft oquivaloat to fifteen davs sslary Tast deavan far 2ol
comploted year ol secdee L low walle e Payeneot ol Seaity A, gz The szane s poambls ab the Brc of separation fions the Greap s relivement, whichessr s el
Toe bgialits vestalier Gve e aleontineus ssrvice.

B} Providen! firned

Prowidenl Tunl oz comtain dligikie emploeers is manaped By the Graup theough the *BOE Bira Grsoap ol Companies Proddent Faed Insitation” and "Hirla Indestrics
Pravddent Furd”, in Fne with the Provident Fond and Miscelzipeous Provigany ail, 16052, Tha plin guzmntess interest at the rate notifed by the Poovidert Fund
Avthoritics, The conicbution by the emplover 2nd encplayee e beewill: the inteness accizmulated thessan are payable b emplovess at te tme ol Lhel seperation o
the Gurowp or etizaeenl whichever iseadier. The benelits vest immediniele an rendering of the sondons br the enpiavee,

Thwe oo s o alddigndion b faed ane shortfall or the yicld of the trust's invastzents over die adimioistead inleres tates o oan 2ol hagsis These administercd rates
azt determined annua’ly predominently sansidering the sodial mther tan eeaieike fotees and n most casss -t acbes] retern corned by the Gracp bas bocn higher i
the past vears, The sooare haa prodded aovaluation lor president Land liabitities on the Basis of phidanes ssucd By Actuarial Sceieby of Tndia and based gi (e Leloy
prcrided aasnmprions Ueee b v shortizll as a1 i March 2022 and 5 March 20z respocrivele,

i pay prieidlent furct pantrtmtions oo pekfiesly adniniatered loeal foed ag per e boeal veealations. The Greap Bus ne festher paement chlisations ones
viars have Boxn poid. The soctribetiens areaccouned for ae delined cootibulivn placs and e sontibatiens are reeapnised 35 empiovee Benciit exponss
whien thor aredues,

The detzils of fund and plan aesct posician arc given belew:

Particulars Treseank vl Fuir yahoe of plan

e Nl snonnnt

a3 At 41 barch 2o .44 AL R
a3 ok i) Mareh 200z il BH 2T 171

‘The plar asaets hove baen primazily veated i govenimeel seeusilies,

Farticulars § I 5 i March 2021

Drscnunl Face (perpnoum] f BE0%
Toacpectal Fate of Betuzn an Plan Assets [perannize] E.50% R

Thie Groug zactribc ks Beeog eree and Rs,Buie eroee during the vear ended g1 Mareh 2020 and 90 Maren 2000 sespectively o Fre find,




Kesoram Industries Lioited
Naotes formbng part of consolidated fnunvial stitements
CALL ety in Bupees crores, unlexs otherwise stated)

(i) DS inect comdribeetion glen
Superannuation Fuods The Canpoy kay defined antriboficn seperanruatian plan for the Leaett of B oeligible eonplovess, Tinplogms wihe ane memhers af the
detied conbibtion supsamnuatio plan are enfled 1o benesits deponding on the yeas ol seedee aid salasy drrwn.

Separne Imeaeable trisk is mairtained for eonplovess codered il entitel wo eceRis The: Comoore aonifbokes 155 of the eligibis omplovees’ exlavy o s, L lakh,
whichewer ie lower in ease of XPS partizipaleg ensplopees and 363 ol e hesde salanyin czse of Xon %05 particizating elizille emploves o e ioust every vear Such
contibations are recipnised as an experee as anc when incurned The Somzony dooz et bave 2iv Taher ooliza o bevasl this sonsibation.

The Granp contrintz] Rs. oo Crore ang e, ooow Crore duzsing Uee vear ended 30 March 2oee and 21 Manch 2000 respectively
{#ar) Berlernee sheat recagnition

R TP
‘Thie anouds cecugnised in the halznoe shoot and the mevements in the net detined benefu vhligatizn waer the year are as folles:

Purticuliirs Fresent valoe - Fair vmbhueof plan

of abligation Bssels S Anaguy

ol April zozt Gl Rarg 1.8y
Cupient service easl f42 . J4u
[ilereal Exklm!ub-:_-'li'.l'.-'.uu;u_l [ER L] [ faaT)
Total amount recopised i prolil or hoss Al {6.26] 4.45
MERRasnen !

Baturn an plan saeets, excluding sntorls inel inlsrest expense finmme) - 1) n.ia
Actuorial (alaliboes Dens changs e demogrphic assumplicns - -

Actuaeial fpaial/loss lraan change n e assomplicos [L26]) - [1.301)
Actuaal ::E,ji'.'l_l_-'bm ez unespekal experivne (4.35) I4.35]
Tobal arount recopnised in other comprehensive inceme (R} o R ) [EETH
Explover contributions, promivm pald - LE] [.853]

Bonefis payvinenis fa% G
Selement Loal = -
Awguisilica adiugtinenl s 2
31 March s o0, Bz G40 {er.GR)

Partientlars

L1 ApTil 2oz
Trimsterred prrmnt to the seheme: af smanssment .
Cment servi cnst [ - 5.9

Trlerest expense/lineame) 5 [4.84) g
[Tavtal amount recagnised in profit or lecs 11 [ERTTY] 567
enbasuremend

TReTari o plan asaels, aecluding a: inlzded ininjerset pxnensslincenc) - Aiig (8.0
Al e in)floss Toom cliange H L aRsEmTEans - 2
Avtiarial (painndf s om cliange iz Araneial 2ssumptiane Ly (1.46]

Acluzrial (gaind s from unespecied pperenes: [E} - B4
"Felal amount recogriized insther comprehensive income 478 H.otg {13.80)
Emplowar contibationa, presi g : PRy T30 )|
Benell payinents 40 1.8 E
Helllemeant Cosl - 3 +

151 March 2ozl QLG Hap33 1Rz

() Sigwifeant esfimeoates: ool ol assoamptisns
The signifiait actuarial assumplicis wess as Il
Particulars A March o2z a1 March 2o
Iscount rate T 6,503
Aplary growth rate Sk 5.00%
Atbrition rate 1.00% 100
TALM 2nia-2éug TATM 22y
LT.TIMATE TLTTAANTE.

MeTtalite ke




Hesorim Indostries Timitedd
Mates forming part of eonsolidated financlal stateinents
AN amounts in Bupees crores, wiless olerwise stated )

{3 ) Sensdivily anaiysis
Thesensitivity of the defired henefl obligatien L changes i e sselglied pringipe] assumplions s
Particulars

Impact on defined benefit obljEtion
31 March 2022 24 March a2l
Incrense BoCrease

Dt cale (=74 0.5%) Hyary
% charge cumngared te hase due fo senstivity “4.12%
Salary prawthenrme -+ 0.5%) Bl
% charge campared to hasz duc o sengtivity 443%
Attriziarorme {91 g%l ainAg
% rharge pumpared te hass due fosenstivity o
Lile expertaneyy mectalivy rale (=74 1) il
% eharge campared tehass due o senstivity oy

Thie e sensiliviv azitysis b haved en g change in2n zesempsion whlle balding albotler asciaptans comstzet, Tn prectics, this s enlike’y to ason, and thanzes in
The metheds and tepes of asauinplions Lied in prepaing e sersicyine anabeds didaot change camparcd L2t priar petisd,

(i) The mifor orfegoreivs of ploes axsels
I the abscnee of detailed Information regasdieg plan assews which is fanded with fesorance Companics, the composibzn o2 eash marvcalagee ul plaz assels, the

(i) Bisk sxposeire
Thvougly its dedived banetin plas tes Gavap s scposesd G vambaer o7 daks, the most siznifieant of which aze detaibed bilow:

Treorstenend risk:

Thie delized beveli plais are lunded wilh insuranse compenize of Inéin, The CGreap docs nes have aby Blecte wo ninege Uie fonds provitded B insnzsne companics.
Ireterest risk: .

A tlecthesane dn Ui Dinderest mebe on plan assets wall incmense the plan Hakilio.

Life copeciournecy:
Thie present g of the defined henefit pan Babaline is caloulated by salecance b best estiznne af the mertalitg of plan pasticpanes both during and ab the vod ef the
conployracnk, An incrcase fn e i expectaney o U pla partisipgn s will inorese the plan lahiliae

Saley groaetfdsk
The preszetvaler of the defined benedis plan Dabilite s calealated by selevence o the Sature salaries of plan participants. anincreass in the salaze ol the plae pacicipars

(ix) Dheflaeed bemerfit Hability omd engplogier contribetions
Expocted contributiors o post-emplovinent benelivs glang e le v erding 30 Marck sowyis B2 775 crores.

The weighted iversgy durativon of the defined Beneit ebligzticn is i vears (1 Mzich 2021 - 13 years],




Kaesoram Industrics Limited
Mutes forming part of consolidated Ananelal stalemenls

(A1 amvounts I Rapees eoores, unless otherwise stated)
Mole 26: Depreciation and amortisation cxpensce
Purbticulnes

AN21-22E RAVEG R

Przprociation on tangible aseets ahh Lon Ha
Aviatliga o ol intangitde & Right 10 ke aseols 15.34 10T
11176 1174k

MNaote 27 Floanee cost

Farticalars SORI-20HEa Eagegne]

Tmterest cxpenses qhRb.Hz #7141
Laderest an Lesase Liahilities LG A
‘Other borrowing eosta 1308 w5
F0L00 27000
Legs: Interesl caplialised (L1l
SiFL.F0 27580

The capitalisilion sate used by the wholly owned subeidize te detezimioe e amaunl ol barmowing eosts to be :3pi‘.a_'|[ser_'| is e wedghted averge
imterest sate applxable lo the Group's peneral borTewing duting the vear, i this cass s w505, (31 March 2000 10.50%)

Nute 28¥: (hher exponses

Particulars BEORl-Zass e E L EE T H |

Conswrplion of shores and spare pacts bz 474
Fenl 19.25 [{y R
Rapoirs and Mamlaoanes

Barilding fr13 448

Plang and Machinery 5705 4510

(s 345 Rl
lnEance EBs 700
Rates nnd Taxes LR B S04
Tirerkrrape and Thiseounis 26,11 L3
Cmniiasion e selling aganis 4.5 240
Sales Fromotian Aza w18y
Tiitertors' Focs LR 10
Dl Advimenss ) Thepesis witlen of 0 147 G085
Lizpal & Professizna] Expenses zh.3 Ho8G
Provieion for doubifal delits 2,47 2,28
Trryisdear e donkthal sidvunees - 020
Lioze an properly, plaol and sgnipaent seldy disearded (net) 15 [0.u7)
Payments o the auditor [Teder Mole (a) el ] =7k FRE |
Fareign eorrency transiation doss (net) - .4z
Heeurity Saivices 676 L5
Miscollaneons expenacs [Teder Mole () Delaw] A0 Hen1s

SE0.7 244.34

[a) Tretnils af anditers” remuneration and cal-cl-pocket aogeases aneas helow

Akt Feses {Tnaloding Timited Revdews) T =35
Tax Audll Fees o5 k4l
Fees for issuing varicus cerlificates * 2. 1.31
Reimharsement of BExprosee 0.411 .07
‘Lotal 4.7 4.2

* Tle e Dz inchades Be a3 ecores for Bigbls lsue certificatsa wirk laeslermed e Sanzrities Premiom aod not eharged to Profil b Liss,

{b] Miscelanenus expeses iclade
(i1 Cnnswemptizn af sieres and spates parts ] Bk}

dek Lepal & Prodfessional expenses include
131 Paymen! laeost auditor o8 oo




Kesoram Industries Tamited
Maobes foriming part of consolidated Roancial stalements

(A1l amounts in Rupees croves, unless otherwise stated)

Maole 0 Ewceplional items

Partlculars BORIE0EE BOSD-2021

Tritterenae doe so Faiz Value ol QCRPS net of settlement cost | Befer Xote (a1 helaw] - 2774

Vilubibary retiiement sebeme [Reler 2ole () Balow] ’ [ 50 2

[mpairment Less on Loan 10 Body Corporate [Rafer Mote (o) helow] "~ | qipli gz
(a.35) [z, HE)

n} Dring the previcus veor, & Besolution Plan (Mthe Plan™ was approved by the lendeis voder the Baserve Bank of Didle D ricdestial Frooesark
for Besolution of Stressed: Assers) Diteetions, soy isseed by Reserve Bonk of Indis vide its elienlar 7ihoJcse zoug, Posssand b che Plai, (e
Ceznpamny ki enfered into s Senlement Apreemend vhe Agreemcnt ™) with the leoders dated woth Sebovarny, posy, which was forther amended
i igkh M, 202 The Apreement colails sen lement ol the existing, Omsy debt pggregnting to 218081 crores 6s of g1 Jamuary, 2oL in the
Cesllevwitn, nener and divided ot three e

il By issuance of 2,202,260 auabers of Bigeliy Slaves of See valwe of T 0o0each o Lhe Seocdess onon preferentinl asisom 8th March, 2o
al the price deterntined i aceordance with the applicable Jaw 60 % 65 per shave leluding seewdlivs presiom ol T 55 pee share).

it Ty Resomes of 4,48 w7005 nombers of Zero % Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPET of fee valie of 2oon
caeh issued to the lenders comvertibie with prior consent of the holder aod at the option of the Company duvdip the period of 18 montbs
fron thee el of alivtmeet, wnd redeemnkle ot par saee the pericd of froe years stacting 3151 Marcl, 2028 io five-equal tranches.

it Upfeant repaymend ol Exigling Gecilitbes b e et ol T LATG G cmores 1o the lendors,

The Compauy during the previous vear ended gua Marely, 2oz lad dsoed OCRIS bas beencinilially reeegnised af Bie v in the banks. Thie
vesuitont net pain of % a7rpd croves, oet of settlament costs, as at the date of maplementation of e PLoe Bitvaen e caemying smpimd ol T
focility before settlement and oo foir valoe of GCRFS 0 Equity was tecopnized in the Statement of Peaft sl Loss™as an exeepliomal D

B Phacing June 262y, de Lo eontineing resiriction i logistie acivitics of nonecssential zeads on the onset of the second wave of Covid-1
ks, Uhe welaelly ovensd Selsidiery ol The Company bad deciimed temporry suspengion of wors st ifs Baven Flant, Chemical Division & 7.5
Flant aiwated al Keoliglat (Disizel Hoogldy, Wesl Beitgalloeilecive Tnom coanmmencesent of ' Shil, i Gogo A0 of eeod Tune, woz ontil
further notise. .

The paid Company bas exeented the Werkers Sepatation Scheme dodiog the Lleapedarny suspens s okl az0 eonpeeees o availed e Seheme
nmionting to Be, w245 croros wpda gist Moreh wozs, which has Beon eharped winder excentianal flams b Profitand Lass Account. Tl lamgosmyg
suspensivn ol work at (he said Company vas lifcd with effcs from "A7 Shift (950 am) o geed Deecber, aoar,

i The Conpamy poreseuent to demerper had an cxpesare beyeswsge of lean 1o o oty corparate as on 518t Macch, 2oe1 The Compans Las
seepgbsecd i prosisioe e ampairment an the ozl exprsure of Bs 39820 crares during the previons year, a5 the s bady corporate was going
threagll @ Nesolutvan Pracess il D aoteome ol e e was depensdent oncimplementition of e Reselation Frocess, This impoirmant Jess
was conaldarad as an excepbicnsl item.

1E°1‘|Ir

i [:“"“'Ul" 1




Krgirins Industrics Linsited
Mabes Frrnuing part of coselidutal Gl stade

Call mnamenta e Bupees crorcs nodees atherwlar staded s
Ml 5z Incuns lax cxpeise

il inengeity ared Boee les tas e

Tk it pvrvilis w anndyeds of e S, anin: T et i mneands o w nvgaiaad
Lo it byt psseeabie aned mocdealitibb: flerie,

A PR jaun 3 A Boe)

ak ineme fax erpenec
et iy

TeAnlnrrront thy caprnas

hafereca!

Iheonmer safua il law ety
© o] it B Sotermed do zhiltes
Valinl E}:m-& It rxp il **

Tt Ink v W penan [RIERY] TGt

sasinay]
i E4N

= Agjualments for suveed ea sl prier periels sepresenls write ek of reees privsden Sicicaoe Seaelearlier saranilipesal ol perdieg ligalin,

Paribelars
Ty e, maacls barnn
[ L liakilifies LERLH
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Stateanent of Profik
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kesaram Indwsteies Limdted
Mokes formsng port of consolidated fmancial statenconts

AN wimounds i Bupees coores, unless otherwise stofed)
Note 301 Farnings prer share

Partivulars

411 Basic
PFluniher ol egaily sleores al L L az, o e wear 11,547 L4,35.60,075
Bluanlen ol eyguily slecres sl Uw e of the yeer . LFER R ST 14,48 14,541
Weighied waerape cuziber ol eguity sheres oulstanding during the vear (7] () BO,01,37,405 1585, G700
Wurniztal value vl @ch eguiy Share (Bt w0 Ly
Erufit ¢ {Lass) for Lhe viser [Re in crore)- Conlinuing Qpecation 15 77343 FEEST]
Earmiizigs per shize (Busicy (Es.] TRIAD [3.86) A.Rq
lii) Dilated
Weighted iverage number of equity shares catstanding dirieg the vear () 00,00, 5040 L, iy
Earnirgs pes share [Dilated) ks [1.86] ERLE]

* Gz il diluted sarnings/Tloss] pes share for she arevicos vrer have heen rebraspectively sdinsted for the Sarme elewent in respeel of he Kiphils Disoae mads
duzivg, the corrent v Reler Nobe 24 (1)

Note 32 Conting linhilitics

TERT Particulirs a1 March 2oaz  giMaich sosi;
L) Luaranlees gleen -
1 L encise aulhonities Ll i

(L) Claims apainst e Groop mod ackaeyledyed as debts o

(i1 Paaley, Taxes, Dules e deenarsded by varioas Aathosiiass 114 21549

(LY O bers 0,01 eial )
{e) Ineome Fax maticra 5.0z 1543
1HG, 15 EEL R

In the pinicn mumagEmEnt, o revdsion 1% censidened neecssary fr the dispetes mertaned ahoe an the grovnd tdat shers 0z G dmeces uf swovesstul aubeame of apprals,

FMoate s Capital and ather commdtinents
] ; Particulurs 31 March 20 g March 2o2i

Capital Comanitingols
Eatitnated value al conitracds o capital aocount remnainizg Lo bie sxecuted | et afadvances WLy .60
Tieom0d coone 151 Masch 2021 B 0.2 crora)]

TOTAL wh.ny J-0

moate 34 The Group hoseertain dues b suppedlens cegisteved adee Micoo, Siseall and Medivmn Entecprisss Develupment dct, 200
RSN ED At Thrdisclosuzes prsiment so the said BMEMED Act ar as fllows
Fartivalurs

A March Ziosa T a ek 2o

Trimeipal anteonit die toseopiiors vegisered ander o MEMED A aixd aran ugai
el uapaid as at vear end

Tisetest due Lo suppdlers tepisleved disder tie BEMED At and TRIEsining 145 a1
waipsdaiil as 4t vehn end

Prrivecipal goneuants paid we sapplisss registered comdes the MAMED Act, - -
hevarad Lhe appsinted dav ducing U vwear

Interest paicd, clher thar aeder Sectior 16 af MEMED Act. e supplicss 5 -
rezgistered under the MEMED A, beyend the apprinted iz dusing the

s

Imterest paid, nadet Srctien 16 af MERED A baseppliers ropistored - (RO
arder the MER D Act, hrvond the appainted day duericg the vear

Ingesst e and payatle toeeards supplions registered vncsr MEMEDR -
A for pogente already made

Furiber inlessl remmatatnp dueand payalle o saclior veas F -

The abave sefmonatico regandivg Micro and Small enterpsises hay been determined to the catens sush pamics havs heen
identfed ae the hesis of informatar aeailzhle wath the Grogs

=
Nl




Kesoram Industries Limited
wotes formdng port of consalidated Hrancial slatements
LAl amarunts in Bupees crnres, umless otherwisc stated)

Nute 35: Loease Disclasure

L The [ellawing i sk break-wp af cusrent znd nom-corrent lease Babifities.ne al, Mareh 31, 2022,

Particulnrs HE-aR BRI
Currers Lease Liabisty 5.4
HMnn Current Lease Liakility 1% 5.7%
a5 1T

2. The lellowing is the movement i Irzse Tkt -.'1||ri:|g,ti1r_ wearendsd BMarch 31, 2oen

HOE-33 D=0

Particuliurs
Dpening Bolans:
Ackfitians daring the wear
Fisanee coal avosued dudng U perivd

Drletions

Baynienl ol leass habililes

Clasing Balnnee | 745

A Feeperse peripindig 1o beases whicl s besn ideisitisd as Sher Tena TR 7.00
4 Bxpense pertpining 1o leases which las been idenifed as Los Value: ol o]

5 Cenbrpeiva) natunbes o lease Tabiities as ot March 1, 2 anan undiseonntsd hasis
The table kelow pmevides details regarding the eanivactual nmatirities o baae Jalalivies as a1 Masch 33, 2022 on ar andissoanted hosis:

Leas Lhan ars sean
Vet Fve years
(M Lan Lve veacs




Kesoram Tmdustries Timitod
Noles forming pact of consolidated Ainpneial statements
(Al aiounts in Rupees crores, nnless otherwise stated )

Nobe 360 Capital management

L p Risk mamagaament

The eagitad structure of the Growp consists of debt, cash and cash eguiiva eend enuity astribwable to eoquity sharekolders of the Graup whicl comprises sl shame capital Gnelading
premivmn ) and aocomulated Teserves disclosed in the Statement of Chiinges in Fyuite,

The Growp's capital management cbjestive iz to achizve an pplnal weighted sverage ooz of eapital while sontinuiog to safepuard the Groep's abilile 40 meet it Hquidity roquirements
Cincluding its eornmitmeonts o reapect of capilal expewditure] aud repay lims as thee fall dus,

Note 37 Fair valoe measurements

Thiz section gives an overview of e sgeificanee of Brancial instroments forthe Gronp aé peevides adéitional ieleoatime on balans shees items Tt sontain financial instrumends.
Thie detacls of sienificant avcauntiog pulivies, inzloding the eriteriz for Tecognition, e basts of passeuremnens and the basis on which incams end expeoses are recoghized In vespect al wach hizs
il linbilite und comity instrument are disclosed o Mate 2 Lo il Gnaneial sttements,

nf faneial sl

Financial Instruments by ciolegomy

31 March 2oz Tolnl
Farticulars TR P Seliing Total Fair
e ; g e norkise 4
FVPL PO Sat NValue Value

Pt nssets

Cosh and eazh equivalents - - 1249906 1LY 11606
Crther bank Balances - - e | 7L 5721
Trade receivablas - - o0 ah Y, 2h b
Laans = = 13540 1545 545
Tnvestments - 383 0,61 784 Tahd
Oither finaneinl asselzs - - 400,74 4079 AT
‘Fobal Anancial assels . T8 O75.0H 4051 244.51
Fingneiel Robilities )

Ginrronvings LT - 1,805 05 1,899.45 L5405
Trade and other payvalles - - 52586 589880 RHEAG
Lensze Liability - - .45 7oA 7.35
{ither fingneial Lo bilitics ‘ = 1603 g LT
Toabal Fnamcial labiliiies QT - &, 560,10 = G50 .8 # by, Hy

21 March aox: Total

Particulurs ; 5 Amoriised O Carryiug
FVPL YO o Value

Total Fair

Yk

Finuracicl assoels

Cashoomad eash equivelents - - 0745 Q745 L5
Crther bank balanees - - 14400 14 44 1434
Trude receirablos g i 0403 306 oz
Toiins - 5 132,08 132 08 R
Investmants -] I ] TEad Free
Crther inaneial assets - - 0. 20 B 20,87
‘Total financial assets - 771 Sk Bt 047,24 64724

Finarnciol Habilities

Brrrowings F0T - Lo 2h 008,39 FRUERE]
‘Trude and cther pavables - - Sila Rz sEwds 82 By
Liaer Linbility 1771 17,71 1771
¢ rher Brnmsial Babilisdes e - 131,8E 121,58 14188

‘Lcebaal onancial Hahililies F i - a hThRT 220074 2, 75007




Kesormm Industries Limited
Motes Torming part of consolidated financial statements
(AL sumeunls in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

(1) Fair value hieravehy

The following table provides an analysis of finaneial instroments that are measured subsegquent to initial reecgnition at faiv valve, geouped into
Level 1to Level 3, a5 deseribesd belows:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1) This level of hievarehy includes finaneiil assets that are measured By referenee b gquotol prces
(unadjusted) in setive markets for identical aszets o Habilities, This catésory consizts ol investinent o gueled eguity shapes,

Valuation techniques with ohservable inputs (Level 2): Thiz level of hisvarchy ineludes financial assels and lalilities, measured nsing
inpruts other than quoted prices incheded within Tevel 1 that are ohaervable for the aeset o lHability, either dineclly (e, oz prices) o indireetly (i,
derivedd from prices). This level of hierarehy includes Group's over-the-counter (OTC) derivalive conlrets,

Valuation techniques with significant unobservahble inputs (Level )z This level of hictarchy includes fingncial assets and lahilities
mesnTed nsing inputs that are not hased on abservable market data (unabservabic inpuls). Fair vilues ane determined inowhele or in part; nsing s
valuation maodel hazed on assumiptions that ape neithet supported by prives fem obsernable currenl market trenesaetions inthe same instromient
nor are they hazed an available market data, This Tevel of hicrarchy ineludes Geoap's investment in cguity shares which ave unguated or farswhich
quatad prices are not available at the reparling dates,

31 March 2022

Particulars

Taevel 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assels:

Investments 78 .83
= 2 T35 TaEg

Financial liahilities:

Horemsings z 90,70 i 9070
- G070 - G0.70 |

g1 March 2oz

Particulars
Levizl 1 Level = Level 3 Total

Financial assels:

Tnvearments 3 = 7740 7741
* o T74 7741

Financial liahilities:

Brrrruwings - T4 00T : T4 0T
- R = T4-07

(ii} \_Fajuqu:-n technigue used Lo delermine fair value

() Derivatives are fair vadued using markel observabie cates and pablished priees together with forceasted cash ow information where appticable,

(b} Investments carried at fair valoe are generally bazed on markel price quotalions, However in wases whene gquolid prives ame not available the
managemnent has involved valpation experts to determine te Gir valoe of the nvestments. Diflevent valudlion teehnigques have hoen nsed by the
waluers for different investments, These investinents in equity inslraments ace ool held for rading. Instead, they ace held for leng term strategic
purpnse. The Group has chosen to designate this invesimenls in equity instruments ab FYOCL sinee, it provdes & more mesningfel presentation.
Cost of certain investments in equity insteuments bave been considercl as an appeopriate estimate of faivvalue heesuse of A wide range of possible
fair value measurements and cost représenls the biest estimate of ficwalie within that renge

() Fair value of borrowings is estimated by diseounting expected futureeash flows. The ecarcying amounts of nther horenwings seth floating rate of
interest are considered to be close to the faievalue,

i) The carrving amounts of remaining financial assets and liabilities are considered to he the same as their faiv values,

(o) Management wses its hest judpement in estimating the faie value of its financial insteuments, However, there ace inherent lmilations in any
estimation technigue. Therefore, for suhatantially all financial instuments, the fair value estimates presented above ace nol neeessarily indicative
of the smcunts that the Compeny could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respeclive dales. & surh, Gair valoe of finaneial instruments
subaeguent to the reporting dates may he diffavent from the amountls reported al each reporing dale.




Kesoram Industries Limited
Muotes forming part of conselidated financial statements

(All amounts in Ropees erores, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 28: Financial risk management

Tn the comrae of its business, the Group is exposed primarily to inctations in foreign enrvency exchange vates, interest mtes, aquily prices, liuidiy
and credil risk, wlich may adversely iopacl We Gaie valoe of ils Gaaocial instnaneots, The Grong has a csk maonagement poliey which not only covers
the foreimn exchange risks but also ather risks assnciated with the financial assets and labilities such as interest vate rigks and credil tisks, Tl risk
pagerenl policy g approved By e Poand of Direetors, The mislo management frumaswork aims b

(i} ereatea stahle business planning envivonment by veducing the impastof corrency and inlerest e Bucinations on (e Group's business plan,

[ii) nehieve grealer predistabilite Lo cacoings by determiving Qae financial valoe of the expected enrnings in advanes.

{A) Credit risk

The Group lakes on expoanre o credit visk, which is the qisk thal counterparly will defanlt oo #s contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Granp. Maxtmum cxposure to credit risk of the Gronp-has been lated belowr:

Particulars s1 Murch 2022 i March 20231

Trade receivables P 404,593
Linin 14545 17208
Other financial assels E A w07
Tealal 450,60 457.88

Cther receivables us atated ahove are doe teom the parties under normal cosese of the bogineas and as sueh the Gronp helisves exposure o credit risk
to be muindmal,

i) Urade and other receivaliles

Customer credil visk is managed by the Geoup theough established pelicy and procedores aod control relating t customer eredit risk management,
Trade rereivables are non-interest bearing and ave. generally caveving upto g0 daye credit terma, The Group haz a detailed review mechanism of
weerdue custormer veceivaliles al varous levels willin orgaaisation to cosure proper atteotion and foons for tealization. Trade receivables are
conaiating of 4 lavge nmber of costomears, Where eradit visk iz high, domestic trade receivables ave backed by securile Jeposils, Export receivablos
are backed by ledlers of credit,

T determining the allowanees for eredit losses of frade receivables, the Group has weed a practical expedient by compotiog e expected eredit kiss
allorwamer for trade receivables bused o o provision matrs The provision matmix takes into acesunt historical eredit loss experience and is adjusted
for forward looking information. The expected credit Inss allowance is based on the azeing of he receivables al are due aond mtes wsed in the
TITERisIon ks

The Group's expostee Lo customers 16 diversified aod there = oo significent ercdit cxposuce oo aecount of any single enstemer as at 51 Maveh 2022
and 41 Tdarch wpu,

The CGroup is muking previsions v trade reectvables based on Expected Credit Loss (FCL) mndel. The reenneiliation of FCL s as follows;

Particulars ;

Cpening halane: WS 8.7
Apcquired in business comnbination - -
Charpe{ Kelense) (o statement of profil sl loss 247 FERTT
TTilized during the year [R52] [G.32)
Uliwsing Dalance [ ] ]




Kesorim Todnst ries Timited
Notes forming part of conaplidated financial statements
LA ammonnts in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

(1) Ligquidity visk
Liguidity risk refors to the visk that the Company cannot meet its Soancial ahligations. The nhiecivie of goidice sigk management s to maintain sutficient liguidity
aml enstre st Tl ane aeniladsde Qe ase s per regoirements,

Tl Group Las obtaived Tond and non-fued basesd working capelad Tines Trem srions banks. Fucthermore, the Company bas access to funds fom debi sreekel s
through commerzial paper programs, non-convectible debentures and other debt Distrument s, The Conipaoy inests s saeephs fonds inhank feed deposit and in
bl Sonads, wliicld caey o o Tow noockel rsk,

(8) Maturities of Tinaneial Babilities
Thie Ll Bl aralyse He Geoop's Bisocial Tabilibes mto relesint maturite proupings based on their contractoal masurisics

The gmonnts disclosed in the table arethe contractoe] podiseounted eash flows, Balances due wilhin 12 awnthes el Geer serying balamees as the impaet of
cliseiantiog is not signilicant.

Contractial maturities of Ainancial liabilitics Less than 1 Morethan's’

31 March gogs yoar Lo years L ik yiars Total

Non-derivatives

Tiorronings Cincluding interest oldipgations) yag.ah 005.45 1,718.ha LR R LT
Tense Liability 5,22 .88 SR 7.21 13.71
Cther financial liabdlitics Huha - Brun b B
Trade payables 55886 - - : 588,80
‘Total non-derivative financial liabilitics 1, (i 906,33 1,704, 0 G481 4,300,592
Contractual matwritdes of Moancial Habilites Lass than R Morethan g

H1 March 2o@1 yrar 1 aaERIE VOGS

MNon-derivatives

Borpovings (including interest obligations) quifg 1,07H.07 2220.44 S50 L AT
Loz Linhelite 1300 A.45 .31 730 2578
Clier nancial Tiahililies GH.IF - F4.87 13244
Trade payahbles Rho Rz - - - SHez R
‘Lokal non-derivative financial liahilitics 1,00 5740 1,082, 52 0TS G740 400K .26
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Kesoram Industries Limited
Moebes forming patt of consolidaled Ninuncial statements

(Al amvounls in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)
(i} Interest rale risk
Interest rate risk s the visk thal the fic value or futuce eash flows of o fineocial instrmment will Suetiate becise of changes in ntarket ntersst stes, e

Croup's cxposure to e visk ol shanges inmarket interest rates velales prinarily to the Groop's Jang-revm dell oblizalions with toating interesl rates.

The Gronp's main interest rate risk arizes from horrowings will variable matos, which expose L Group to easa flow interest tare s, During 11 Mareh
zome &nd 31 Manch 2oz, the Group’s horrowings at varfalile rule vaere mainky dencminated in 14K,

Tl Group's fixed rate borrosings ave cavied ol wmertised cost. They ave therefons ot subjeet to foterest rate risk as defined in 1nd AS 107, #ince neither
Ui carvyving amotmt nor the futore cash ues will fuctoate beeause of o change i macket interest rates,

(o) Inleres role visk exposure

On Financial Lialililics:
The-expasire of the Group's financial abilities tointerest cote risk iz as follnws:

Particulars 31 March 2oz: g1 March 2oz
Wariahle rale bovrowings 16 4741
Fined rate horrowings 1L B26.60 147036
Total horrowings 1,803.45 2.0017.77
{b} Sensitivity

Frofit or loas is serisilive be higher/loveer interest expense fom burrowings as a resnlt of changes in inderest rates s helow:

Impact pn profit before tcfegquity

Particulars

31 March 2oz A1 March 2oz21
Interost cxpens: rates — incrense by 50 bosis points (50 bpsle [4.54]) [o.24)
Interast EXpeEnas Tates - decrease by 50 busis points {50 hpeis .94 0.24
# Holding all ather varzhles constant

(1il) Price risk

{a) Exposure

The Company’s exposure o equity seearities price sk arises from imdstments hald Iy the Compaure and elazsified in the hatance sheel al fuue value
thronph Q0L To manage ity prive risk arising from nvestents in equity seeurities, the Company diveesifies its portfolio. T seneral, ese Dvestments ane
nirs held for trading purposes.

(b} Sensitivity )
The table below sunmarizes the impact of inereases/decreses of the shure prives on the Greup's equite,

Impaet on cguity

31 Muarch 2oz 31 March zoz1
Share price - Incraase 5% KR RS
Share price - Decrease 5% 5.60] {387




Kexoram Industries Limited
Naotes forming part of consolidated fnaneial statcinents

(AN amoments in Rupees crores, unless atherwise stated)
Note Ju: Sepnient repoiling

The Group's orgaasetional struetore and poveriance pracesses ane designed 1o suppeel effective manngement of Coment and Tavear, TP amed chemicals, the twa biisbees
segmerts af the Group, witly egual Geeus a2l The bes Segments lave been teported in gmanner consistent with He internal repgrting provided Lo U Buardd of Tirestars which
i U Chied Opirating, Deeision Maker (CODM),

The zmannts vepesled o CODM ave based on the accountiog peieizles wssl in the prepacation of Geaocial statements az por ind A5, Sepients seclarmamer i ovaluated hased
an segment revenye and segmenl resull vig, prodit or lass from operaling activilivs hefere evooptional dletns and fex. Aceridingly, finanee cosls [ iroatne, poa - apeTiting,
expenges and exeeptinnal items are not allzcated 1o dodividun] segment.

Seanenl assels ¢ lzbitites comprise assets fliabilities direcly manaped by each scpiment. Seprnent assels primarily inclode receivalies, progerty, plant and squipniect, sight of
use azsets, capital wouk-li-propress intangibles, non-curtent juveshoents, inventerics, each and sash exquivalents, irtersepmient ssels, Seeaent Lahilities primarly meude
aperating liahilitics, Segment caplial expendivare eomprises additions o property, phintand equipment aod ntangille aases,

The regarting segments of the Group are as below:

Cement: This covers the sale of ceruend. The G spernies its coment Business wuiler the name, "Birla Shakl Cenent’,

Wayon. TP and chemicils 3 Thiz eovers sale of visvise ravar, tranzpareot paper aud llament v, The Group operates tis Insdnes wnder the name, Fesazam Hayon!,

summary of the segmental informution for the year endied aocd ns of 31 Marelh 2022 ix s follows:

Buyon, T and

Purticulars :
chemicals

Sepment Revenne
Rovenun Rha0E0 fif. 12 460 44
] BEHD.A0 [ 3605 A
Aeginent Besults [ Profit/ {Loss) before filevest aed ix and -:'m:-:‘::-tinual tepns] ARLET {48 42) 423,55
Finanee edsl {448,410
Taeeplionnl ifems (refer note za) - [T
Lrofll{Loss) Belore Tax [B7.21)
Sepment Assels ahsan BhT.RZ 445408
Sppmment Tanhilitics s.510.6] 0T 202297
Sepmient Capital Expeadilure 408 2.4 1563
Seprnent Tepreeiation and amotisalion 00,79 10y 1,7
Mon cash expenditure sther thun depreciation and amoctsation ineladed in (1515
FCEment Hpenae

Summary of the segmental information for the vese ended snd ns of 21 March 2024 s ax follows:

Rayon, TP and

Particulars m
K chemicnd

Sepment Revenue
Fevenue #1521 2.ﬁ5.2.?|_?
=,415.21 24750 = G577 |
Aegmient Resulks [ ProfitCloss) belee Uilarest and 1ax A60.7E (54480 ey
Fiuanee cosl {are.ak)
TFxprptianal itoms (reler nole zo) : o [ BAS
Profit| Loss) Befiore Tax {166.04)
Bepnient Assels PN G PG 123150
Srpment Linbilitics 2,705 E 2617 LR I
Supnent Capitel Bxpenditers 2057 g 2784
Sopmient Deprectatlon and woartisition TR 9173 11796
Man vash rependiture other than- depreclation and smortization indoded in 2.4
sEgueil papense

Geu'lg,mplli:ml infurmation
fal Revenue ot external customers:

Furticulnrs

Trkin 3 ERERER
Cthers - 9271
3, hes. 88 2,652,057

Rune af the customers of the Groue accounds for smore than 1ok of fhe veleniies e of 70 Mereh 20 ond 52 Marck sost,

Mote g0 The Groop hns songidered possibde efficts that muy reselt from the ovgoiog COVIT g in e preparation of these Qoaneial statemends including the recoverabitivg of
easidag asuunls of nancial nad nonfinaneial assels. Lo Jeveloping the pssimptions relalog to the possible fiehire oneertainties i e econanie sanditions heeavse of COVIT
T vRriants, the Group bus, ol s date of Spproval of thee fnaneial stalements, wied intemal and extevns] spurses of infarmation and cxpects tal te carrving amennt of the
atssebs will he reeovered, The fopact of COVID 15 varients ancthe Growp's faocial stalements may differ from thalestboa led as at the date of approval of the saine.




Kesvrm Tndostries Linited
Noteys furming part of conselidnted financial stntemients

Noke 43: Related party Leansactions (Al amonnts in Bupecs eeores, unless olherwise stated}

List of Helated Parthes ot relationshin
A deint Venture

Gndzhan Caal Mining Limined
B Fost Betireovert Benefit Plan

BB Bl la Growp of Commanies Fridders] Tand Tisticalicn,
Birla frdustoles Provicant s Tistilation:,

KICM ramity Furd

Eesargm Straranneaticn Furd

1 Key Mangpement Personnel/Iirestors

Stk Manjishioes Klalien {Chairmen]

e 1 Hadkakcehnan [ Whiete Time Triveco & CE0O|

s soresh Shaoma TCHiel Fiiandal Odtce]

S akpsh Ghiwaiewals Tosmpany Secrelary] (oesimoed woel g2tk fune, 2a21]
Mo Kapghnmm Wath [Comeany Seeretary] fapeonied woel 1500 Tune, 2oe)

M Mangala Radhakrichna Prathi [Independent Mivcetor] (apocinmead woed Lotk Bk, 2o
Mr Satisk Karen Eadan [Additional Tarcetar] Gppeinied woel 12t Aupust, 2oo)
M Lee Seow Chwnan | Indapencdent Dizemor]

e dikvecng Eaog | Tedepeedent TEmeekar ]

o Kazhe Prasad Eraadelsal [Ticleseodent Divect i)

Mr. Bhasksr Mecsi [PoEdaee Direclar blrasigrsd s vtk e, 2nas)

dr Sudip Benerice [Independent Direcio]

By Hhers
A, Eatity Controlled, Jaint Ceatmlled e Ko Managemens Persoone]

MEK Trvela and Troues Lid

Sditsz Markeling & Matafaetusinge Private Limited
Arbela‘Trading and Hepdces Frivate Linited
Usinora Troding and Borviees Frivate Linuted

Wirla Tere Badials Limited

T e ety B an asediabe ol she ether ertite [or an aasosiats of & prowgp of whicl e vaber
bty is o meraber]

Manaw Invastment fColradine Co Lid b ba sobsidisies

{AD The: follvwing transnctions were carried oul sith e velated parties in the ordinary conrse of hosiness.

Larasaisy Claimed - T I
Pt Retizament Bengtt Far =S Gt | 4.t
CGratuivy Conizilalion I |
Posl Retizensand Bensll Flan = | 174 | T
Saperannpaticn Contribuzion _ [ |
Past Retivgment Berefi Fla | .o | oz
_ﬁﬁéérﬂ_l-:ll.r\'lr.ﬂ_:jlm Jaenzrator Gl | |
Dlers o | o2 | B Y
Lo & Trave) Sorvices | ] |
Uthers _ | 0,57 | G|
[ Repasd | |
|—licre. i 1 408
| Lo Givean == = | S |
L Dilhiezs | - | Lt |
[Roeaint r [L0 = | [
Utz = | 5o | 0,30
| Repiwement af [CT) F | |
L T —— | ; | S0
Adjusinent of ICT o Rigals Dene | |
s = [ oo | .
In7ezst Erens: T | [
[ I 1.58 | 17
__|Il‘.ﬂﬁr Inpnimie + |
T | oy
Tigecost Beveived = | |
LT e | l.'t.-.’:lﬂ =
Interost Havment = = ] |
thhels = | | LT
Auliizstrment of Inferess Rability against Kights Issue (ineloding TEs | = |
Chihrs — I ECH| z
Ependluie-Diler Serices = | [
et = I 60 | 0,57




Kesaram Indostries Limdbed
Motes forming part of eonsalidated finanelal slatensents

Mote 31 Betated party transactions CAlLamounts in Rupees crores, unless stherwise stated)

[y Oartstanding balanees
Forthe yeéar Far the yéear
endled 31 March  ended 30 March
Natore of Transaction Relationdhip 2002 EoEi
Fayvable ] 1
ithers = 1.4 142
Past Betiromenl Benebis Mar — (ool .28
Lterest Tayalile: = [ I
Gilhrs ) | -
Laun Receivahle T 1
il Ventupe ** | [RE f1T
ihLiers | 111 111
Interest Reavivihle
' = OLG2 gt
L ey
Advanec Receivable- | [
dnint Ventiare £ [ i | R

*tutstanding balance of Be wn crecaes seeervable frem Joint Mentere has boen fully prosidad tor, Befer Kabe 7 (b
(U} Comperisation of KM of the Company
(12 The fodkwlig Lasacians were carzied g with the KMPin the nlﬂi!{a'.',-o'_.u_r* ul bizsizess.

Tl deksils ol reznuzerativn paid tekey management perscnnel B provided in 2ae 26,

P Y |

Farticulirs
SiHing leses bz Taneckss ™ i 0,72 153
Reambuzsemen nf'ﬁ!cp.?ﬁ';:s x 0.05 (R
Reqizmans of Toan from 1hirtos - 2T

[} Cnsstanding halanees

Forthe yeor Forthe vear
eoded 31 Mavch  ended g1 March

Particylars SnaE szl

1 n.rjlt.?rEm J.'i'ro:tﬂ'

= ameant isbelaw the rounding of noren adapled b e Grong
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NEHA BOTHRA & CO.

(Chartered Accountants)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CYGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying slandalone financial statements of Cygnel
Industries Limited (“the Company"), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and its loss, (including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audil of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audil opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

mphasis of Matter
Covid 19 Note
We draw attention to Note 38 of the standalone financial statements, as regards to the

management evaluation of COVID — 19 impact on the future performance of the
company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

9D ANKUR APARTMENTS, 10 LORD SINHA ROAD, KOLKATA-700071



NEHA BOTHRA & CO.

(Chartered Accountants)

We draw attention to Note 39 to the standalone financial statements regarding
preparation of the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis. The
Company had losses during the previous year and has continued to incur losses during
the year also. The net current liabilities are Rs 17.40 crores as at 31st March, 2021 and
the net worth of the company stands to Rs 315.86 crores as on 31st March, 2021 against
Rs (81.60) Crores as at 31st March, 2020. These conditions, along with other matters as
set forth in Note 38, due to lockdown during COVID the revenue of the Company has
come down significantly, thus has caused uncertainty. The company ability to ramp up
its business to normal levels is important to continue as a going concern.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report thereon

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these
standalone financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income, cash flows and
Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards(Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

9D ANKUR APARTMENTS, 10 LORD SINHA ROAD, KOLKATA-700071 b '
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NEHA BOTHRA & CO.

(Chartered Accountants)

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
ovinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

9D ANKUR APARTMENTS, 10 LORD SINHA ROAD, KOLKATA-700071




NEHA BOTHRA & CO.

(Chartered Accountants)

» [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
nianagement.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e LEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effeet of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including anv
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirement
. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Aet, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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(Chartered Accountants)

(b)

(e)

(d)

(e)

()
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In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheetl, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in “Annexure A”. Qur report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and
according to the information and explanations given to us:

(i)  The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at
March 31, 2021 on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements — Refer Note 29,

(i)  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2021,

(iii)) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the period
ended March 31, 2021.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016, issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act
(hereinafter referred to as the "Order™), and on the basis of such checks of the
books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.




NEHA BOTHRA & CO.

(Chartered Accountants)

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the best of our information and explanation
given to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the
current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For Neha Bothra& Company

Chartered Accountants

FR No0.326938E

NSOl

\Z) Neha Bothra

o) Partner
Mem No— 067036

UDIN: 21067036 AAAAAR5359

Kolkata
Date:13™" May, 2021
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(Chartered Accountants)

Annexure A to Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 1(f) of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the
members of Cygnet Industries Limited on the standalone financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2021.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Cygnet
Industries Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the period ended on
that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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(Chartered Accountants)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
system over financial reporting,.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,
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(Chartered Accountants)

Opinion

[n our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Neha Bothra& Company
Chartered Accountants
FR No0.326938E

/N Oolly,

Neha Bothra
Partner

Mem No — 067036

Kolkata
Date: 13th May, 2021
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(Chartered Accountants)

Annexure B to Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Cygnet Industries
Limited of even date.)

i.  Inrespect of the Company’s fixed assets:
(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets,

(b) The company has a program of verification to cover all the item of fixed assets
in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regards to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed
assets were physically verified by the management during the year. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and records
examined by us the title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note -3 on
fixed assets to the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the
Company, except for:

Total number | Whether | Gross block ‘ Net Block
__Q_f_(:ascs | lqﬁscholdffreqhold (Rs. In lakh_a_i)____ N ( Rs IE!‘E‘IE]___ _

| 42 deeds for
| - freehold land

Remarks

48 " Frechold 13,660.27 13,660.27 : and 6 deeds
‘ for office at
- Surat.
[ 1 Leaschold_ 234.92 ‘» 210.66
ii.  The physical verification of inventory excluding stock with third parties has

been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management during the period.
In respect of inventories lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
inventory, as compared to book records were not material and have been
appropriately dealt with in the books of account.

iii.  According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has
granted unsecured loan to a body corporate, covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act in respect of which:
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(Chartered Accountants)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest
have been regular as per stipulations.

(¢) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

iv.  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security
in respect of any loans to any party covered under Section 185 of the Act.

v.  The company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent
notified. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent
notified, with regard to the deposits accepted from the public prior to the
commencement of the Act.

vi.  Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company
is required to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the
Act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of
the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed account and records have been
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of
the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

Vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident fund,
employees' state insurance, goods and service tax (GST), income tax, duty of
customs, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income-tax, goods and service tax (GST), sales tax, service tax,
value added tax and duty of customs as at March 31, 2021 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable, except the
following:
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|

Nature of the statute | Nature = Amount Period to Forum where the |
of dues (s, T falhis) which the | dispute is pending I
. amount relates |
' Central Excise Act, 1944 | Central 115 September 2015- | Commissioner of
Excise | June 2016 Central Excise
_ | (Appeals-1)
Harvana Value Added | VAT 0.58 2017-18 ETO cum Assessing |
Tax Act, 2003 Authority
| West Bengal Value | Entry 153.32 April 2016 — Calcutta High Court |
Added Tax Act, 2003 Tax June 2017 [
| | |
L i _ |

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings to any financial institution or bank or Government or dues to
Debenture holders as at the Balance Sheet date.

ix.  According to the information and explanation given to us, no money has been
raised by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer (including debt
instrument) and term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they
were obtained.

b3 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the period, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management.

xi.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Act.

xii. ~ The Company is not a Nidhi Company andhence the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of
the Order and Nidhi Rules,2014 are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the
company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transaction with the related parties and the details of related
parties transaction have been disclosed in the financial statement as required by
the applicable standards.

9D ANKUR APARTMENTS, 10 LORD SINHA ROAD, KOLKATA-700071




NEHA BOTHRA & CO.

(Chartered Accountants)

Xiv. During the year the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement for shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 is nol applicable to the company.

XV. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the
Companies Act are not applicable.

xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Neha Bothra& Company
Chartered Accountants
FRNo. 326938E

N-fo t1x
Neha Bothra

Partner

Mem No:067036

Kolkata
Date: 13" May, 2021
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Cypnet Industries Limited
Balance Sheet as at gist March, 2oz
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Cygnet Industries Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 151 March, 2021

Particulars

31 March zoz1

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2020

I Revenue from operations 1 . 23,755.79 31,607.97
1 Other income iy 624.00 1,245.42
i Total Income (I+11) 24,379.79 32,853.39
v Expenses:
(@) Cost of material consumed 21 8,723.43 12,270.78
(b} Purchases of stock=in-trade 42.80 .49
{e) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in propress und stock-in
trade o 686.97 380,20
(d} Employee benefit expenses 23 7432.06 8.560.81
() Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 2,186.64 2,146.18
{[) Finance costs a5 6,254.97 7.005.97
(g) Other expenses 20 9,130.65 10,776.35
Total expenses 34:457.52 31,765.68
v Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (111-1V) (10,077.73) (8,912.29)
Vi Exceptional Items =
Vil Profit/(Loss) before tax (V+V1) (10,077.73) (8,912.29)
Vi Tax cxpense: a7
(1) Current tax charge / (credit)
(2] Deferred tax / (credit) =
Total tax expense - -
IX Profit/({Loss) for the yvear (VII-VILI1) (10,077.73) (8,912.29)
4 Other comprehensive i
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post-emplovment benefit plans 175.79 (411.46)
Fair value changes of investments in equily shares (53.37)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) 175.73 (464.83)
X1 Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (1X+X) (9,902.00) (9,377-12)
X1 Earnings per share 28
Basic (Rs.) (1.69) (2:.07)
Diluted (Rs.} (1.69) {2.07)
X1 Notes forming part of the financial stateciments 1= 40

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stutemens,
This 1s the Balance Sheet referred in our report of even date

For Neha Bothra & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 326938E
Chartered Accountants

N. doflve,
Neha Bothra
Partner ;
Membership No.: 067036

Place: Kolkata
Date : 13.05.2021

Bisv _|'il Sen
Chief Executive Officer

Declbat  kmzmar Shaz??a

Deepak Kumar Sharma
Director

DIN: 02555564

§1¢Mw Ao A
Sneha Kajaria
Director
IUN: 08311230
L B o = !

Ankita Agarwal
Company Secretary

1 ﬁll }\a-x.-.p]?::‘::-“ .

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Cygnet Industries Limited |

Harsh Bajaj

Chief Financial Officer
Shémila Nath
Director

DIN: 7041021
/

Kashi Prasad Khandelwal
Director
DIN: 0748523




Cvgnet Industries Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021

A. Equily share capital

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Description aE Notes Amount

As at 31 March 2019 43,005.00
Chinges in equity share capital 12 (0}

As at 31 March 2020 43,005.00
Changes in equily share capital® 12 [4) 49,648.69

As at 315t March 2021

92.653.00

*Loan Converted to Equity

BB, Other equity

FVOCI - equity instruments

Retained earnings

Total other equity

Balance at 31 March zo2o0
Profit for the vear

Other comprehensive income/{expense)

(51,165.50)
{10,077.73)

176.73

(51,165.50)

(10,07

17573

Total comprehensive income for the year

(9.902.00)

(9.902.00)

Pransfer within equity

Balance as at 31st March 2021

(61,067.52)

(61,007.52)

FVOCI - equity instruments

Balance at 31 March 2019

Retained earnings

Total other equity

(181.92) (41,606.44) (41.788.36)
Profit for the year - (B,912.29) (B,912.29)
Other comprel i /(expense) (53.37) (411.46) (464.83)
Total prehensive i for the year (53.37) (9,323.75) (9.377.12)
Transfer within equity 235.20 (235.29) -
Balance at 31 March 2020 s (51,165.50) (51,165.50)
The above st t of changes in equity should be read in conjunction the accompanying notes, )

For Neha Bothra & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 326938E
Chartered Accountants

N Do e
Neha Bothra
Partner
Membership No.: 06703

‘ia). 3 ¢ i
JIED AGGOW,
Place: Kolkata

Date : 13.05.2021

it en

Chief Executive Officer

Deelpaic kmmar SAaPDA

Deepak Kumar Sharma
Director
DIN: 02555564

i s
Sneha Kajaria

Director

DIN: 08311236

o]

Ankita Agarwal
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

o

Harsh Bajaj

Chief Financial Officer

Sharmila Nath
Director
DIN: 7041921

Industries Limited

\}w\{%’*

[ 10 | hoaatts

Kashi Prasa
Director
DIN: 0748523




Cygnet Industries Limited
Cash flow statement for the vear ended st March, 2021

Particulars

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit/( Loss) before tax

(All amounts in Rupecs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated
Yeu
Aast Mare

Dividend received
Tnterest received

(10,077.73)
Adjustrments for: 4
Deprecution and amortisstion 2, 186,64
Provision for bad and doubtful debts/advances and others 74-55
Finane costs 6,.254.97
Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign currency fuctiation {o.a5)
Loss/ (gain] un sale of property, plant wd equipment (net) (.o1) :
Loss/ (guin) on sale of nvestments (net)
Liabilities/ Provision no longer vequired wiitten back (net) (27.66) (67.84)
Dividend Income
Interest income (460.48) [L013.56)
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes -2,049.87 124.21
Chunges in Working Capital:
Inerease / (decrease) in trade and other payables 155113 (17.24)
(Inerease) / decrease in trade and other recuivablos {460.43) 1oy2 Bl
[Increase) / decrease in inventories 1132.40 1,318,945
Cash Genersted from Operations - -
| Direet taxes paid (net of refunds) 148,06 411
Net cash generated/(used) in operating netivities 313.19 2,522.34
B. Cash flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets/Capitul Advance given (728.89) (1.142.70)
Proveeds from sale of property, plant and eyuipiment 0oy -
Sale of equity shires and units of mutual fund - qu8.67
Luan to body corporate (B BoLosz) (21,738.44)
Repayment of Loan by body corporate 27.23 18,084.90

50187 1,015.46 |

Net cash generated/(used) in investing activities

(4,000.77) (3,377.10)

C. Cash flow from Financing Activitics
Finance cost paid
Payment of Lease obligations

Proceeds from
- Short term borrowings
- Long term borrowings
Repayment of
= Short term borrowings

& [6.696.60)
189.18) (56.25)

41,244.38 1525157
17.741.00 -

20.803.43) 130L779.51)

- Long term borrowings 112.21::.1:8] (2,812.50)
Net cash generated from finuncing activities 18,368.97 (6.066.30)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash eguivalents 4,680,709 (6,921.06)
Cash and cash equivalents ut the beginning of the year B47.15 qa.85
Less: Cash oredits ut the beginning of the year (10,840.44) (3.314.08)
justed cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the yvear (io,202 30) (3.281.24)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (521.50) (10,202.91)
Non-cash financing and investing activities
Shures issued for conversion of Inter Corporate Debt (1CD) from pardnt compiny futo equity 49,6449 -
49,649 .

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise :
Cash on hand

.20 0.25
Balances with banks on current account hiqy.88 G401
Cash eredits at the end of the perod (107158 {10,844.44)
Deposit with original maturity for less than three months - -
(521.50) (10,202,30)

Figgures in bracket represents outflon
This is the Cash Flow Statement referved o in our veport of eoen duty

For Neha Bothra & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 326938E
Chartered Accountants

(R0 1omacge| < wcr Shazrra
Partner Dg,;*.ﬂ.l'_ e o

: Biswaji
N 60 rLVTT \ll - | Chief Executive Officer
Neha Bothra
Membership No.: 067036 Deepuk Kumar Sharma
Divegia
-~ - LN e

Place: Kolkata
Date : 13.05.2021

Director

MGy, KAap/

Sneha Kajaria

DIN: o8g11230

Aecc o]
Ankila Agarwal

Compainy Secretuary

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Cygnet Industries Limited

N 2
Harsh Bajaj
Chief Financial Officer

Sharmila Nath
Director
DIN: oFog1021

| 1 RKgu~olt L‘-. -
Kashi Prasad Khandelwal

Director
DIN: 0748




Limited

Cygnet Indust
Notes formis

vt of finaneial staten
(AN wmiounts in Rupees Lokhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Cygnet Industries Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Cyvgnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

Note 12 Equity share capital nnd other equity

Note 12 (a): Equity share capital

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Authorised eguity share capital
31 March 2021 41 March 2020
eich) 1,00,000.00 1,00,.000.00
1.00,000.00 1,00.000.00

Tasued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital

31 March 2021 31 March zozo

; 92,653.60 43.005.00
92,653.69 43.005.00

3t March 2

31 March 2020

43.00.50.000
49.64.86.876

43.00.50.000

92,65.36,876 43,00,50,000

10 per share. All equity shareholders are enti
Annual General Mesting except in the case of
v their shareholdings.

led to one vo

are. The Company declar
o

ad pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by t
e event of fi Rl «

+ equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaiming

assets of i

:han 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company.

51 March 2021 31 March 2020
Number of

shiares % holding Number of shares % holding
;S.Cﬂ'ﬁu.noa
92,65.36,876 100% 00, 50,000 100%

rher than cash

%1 March 2021 31 March 2020

4,62 86876

| nter Corporate Debt (ICD) from Kesaram Industries Limited into equitv

pany has converted loan of Rs 496.49 crores from §
or 2020,

ding company into 49,64,86,876 equity shares of Rs 10 each at parageregating to




Note 12 (h) : Other Equity

{All minounts in Rupees [akhs. unless otherwise stated)
31 March 2021

.00

Total reserves and surplus (61,067.51) {51, 163.51)

(i) Retained earning
Particulars 31 March 2021
[ e b (51

o

Closing balunce (6r.o67:51)

{ii} Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)- equity instruments

31 March 2021

e nf FVIIC o

| “losing balanee .00

Nature and purpose of other reserves




t Industries Limited
Notes form

% part of financinl stat

enls

(Allamounts in Rupees Lukhs. unless otherwise stated)

Note ug: Borrowings Cnvasiced atsnartised cost)
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Current borrowings
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¢ e | 1% st et
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63715 [7.668.06)
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Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 14: Deferred tax liabilities

The balance comprsies temporary differences attributable to:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Deferred tax liabilities

Timing difference w.r.t Property, plant and equipment 5,068.58 5.742.10
Others 70.87 10.98
Gross deferred tax liability 5.138.95 5.753.08

Deferred tax assels

Unabsorbed depreciation -

Capital loss 636.46 6:36.46
Business losses 4,080.29 4,427.01
Others 422.20 680.61
Gross deferred tax asset 5.138.95 5.753-08

Net deferred tax liability 5 ;




Cygnel Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 15: Trade payables

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises (Refer 1,021.25 50.07
Note 31)
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and
medium enterprises

(i) Acceptances

(ii) Others 3.365.28 3,195.92
Employee's benefits payable 746.76 613.46

4,112.05 3,800.38

Note 16: Other financial liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Non- Current

Lease Liabilities 41.42 39.69

Current

Retention & Earnest deposits 78.54 89.65

Current Maturity of long term Debt (Refer note no. 13) 696.31 4,687.50

Other Payables 2,126.84 1,335.19
2,001.69 6.112.34

Note 17: Other liabilities

.ﬁl-’zu'li('ulm's 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current :
Advance from customers 22.85 24.02
Statutory dues 293.65 400.55
Others *
316.50 424.57

(a) There are no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at Balance Sheet Date.

Note 18: Provision

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March zo020

Non current
Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for gratuity )

Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 480.64 171.74
Total Non-Current provisions 489.64 471.74
Current

Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for gratuity 36.74 600.89
Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 34.26 37.41
Total current provisions 70.99 638.30

Refer to note 23 for disclosure on employee benefits.




Cyvgnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 19: Revenue from operations

41 March 2021 31 March 2020

Revenue from contracts with customers #
Sitle of products $,564.77

Other operaling revenues 1310

31,607.07

# The entive revenue is being recorded at a point in time.

The Company has recognised the following revenue-related contract Hahilities

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Contract liabilities - Advanee from customers 2285 24,02
Total contraet linbilities 23 .85 24.02

Note 20: Other Income

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(a} Liabilities no longer required weitten back (aet) .0 67.84
(B} [nterestincome
on fnaneial instruments at amo-tised cost 59.01
o loan and others Q7454
(¢) Miscellaneous income 164,04
L) Gain on fnvestments earvied at fair vilue throngh peofit or loss
e Profit on sale of Investments{net)
b2g4.00 1,245:42
Note 21: Cost of material consumed
Particulars 31 March 2021 3t March 2020
Opening inventory 1,0601.54 1,585,009
Add: Pureliases 8.250.15 11,755.2"
Less: Closiing Stock Fah.260 1,060.54
8.723.43 12,279.78

Purchase of stock-in-trade comprise :

Amount (Rs.)
31-Mar-21 31 March 2020

Quantity

articulars Base Unit

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Rayon Yarn 12,560 41.76 6.08
CTC Tea 1.04 1131
42,80 7.39

Cost of material consumed of Traded Goods

31 March 31 March 2020

Opening Inventory 373
Adel: Purchases 4280 7.49
Less: Closing Stock 617 3.73
40.35 3.06

Note 22: Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and Stock in Trade

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening Stock
Work - in- Process 520.01 GH:
Findshed Goods 1.654 188642
Stock-in-trade
Less: Closing, Stock
Work - in- Process Thi.u1 BR0.001
Finished Goods i8] 165891
Stowk-im-trade 6.17 1.7
686,97 I 389.20

P




[All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Net amount

Particulirs “ - l’n-.».'m?l \-.n_Jue Fair value of plan
of obligation assels

o1 April 2019 T
Current service cost

1.0k
Acguisition Adjustment

Interest expense/(income) ETIT] (i1 .40

ARG (191,21} 1By.42

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

#

WIS

Ratuirn on rlan assets, el

el oty i | in interst exponse/(ingome) BihHa

Actuarial { s from change on plan assets
Avtuarnl { flogs From change m financis| sssumptions
Actunriad | gain )/ lassfrom obligations J7.al
Total amounl |in other comprehensive income {RO.8y) 411.45
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Benefit paymemis 146.11 S ETUR §

March zo20 368685 RRULERT v B
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il statements

(Al amounts in Bupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March zo20

TRA.6
Contriliutitm (o Provident Fand
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sk lrom wnespeetiod expenenee

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive i

LR RY 37287
Emiplover contributions) preminm paid oty RG LT T ]
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Cygnet Industries Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 24: Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Depreciation on tangible assets 2 07¢.85 a,065.61
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 87.81 66.26
Amortisation of intangible asscts 18.98 14.41
2,186.64 2,146.18

Nole 25: Finance cosls

Particulars 31 March zoz1 31 March 2020‘:
Interest expense 6,367.83 7:.707.49

Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs

6,367.83 7,707.49
Less: Interest capitalised 112.86 101.52
6,254.97 7,605.97

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the entity's
general borrowing used for capex during the year, in this case is 10.50%, (31 March 2020: 10.50%)

Nole 26: Other expenses

Particulars 31 March z021
Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 1,810.88 1,g88.70
Power and fuel [Refer note (a) below] 1,539.19 5.583.67
Rent 27.63 19.46
Repairs and Maintenanee | Refer note (b) below|

Building 38.97 29.35

Plant and Machinery 651.45 665.19

Others 101.28 78.95
Insurance 100.67 62.30
Rates and Taxes 30,34 25.00
Brokerage 10,07 6.1
Packing, Carriage and Shipping 361.52 16552
Director's Fees 3.00
Commission to Selling Agents 152,73 213,72
Sales Promotion 202.86 321,66
Management Services Fee 947,22 378.70
Foreign currency translation loss (net) 11.86 (4.80)
Debts/ Advances/ Deposits written off 4.99 148
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment sold/discarded (net) (0.01) =
Provision for doubtful debts/advances 19.57 (39.86)
Payment to auditor [ Refer note (¢) below| 24.5%
Guarantee Commission 33.81 13.09
Miscellaneous Expenses [Refer note (d) below] 658.10 §11.095

9,130.65 10,776.35

(a) Power and Fuel includes consumption of stores and spares (coal) 4,806.45 4,806.12

(b) Repair and Maintenance includes:
Salaries and wages 506.51 450.93
d
(¢) Details of auditors’ remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses are as below:

As Auditors :

Audit Fees (Including other certification fees) 21.33 19.45
Tax Audit Fees 2.50 2,95
Reimbursement of Expenses |~ 0.70 .65
(d) Miscellaneous expenses include the following: y
Payment to cost anditor 330 3.08




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 27: Income tax expense

This note provides an analysis of the Company's income tax expense, shows amounts that are recognised directly in equity and how the tax expense is affected by
non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in relation to the Company’s tax positions.

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(a) Income tax expense

Current tux

Current tax on profits for the year =
Total current tax expense

Deferred tax

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets 614.14 (425.98)
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities (614.14) 425.08
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) -

Income tax expense - -

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit before tax (10,077.74) (8,912.29)
Tax at the rate of 29.12% (2019-20 — 34.044%) (2,934.64) (3,114.31)
Reason for differences to be documented below
Tax losses for which no deferred tax was recognised (156.88) 3,269.10
Tax on permanent differences 7.65 1.26
Exempt Income - -
Others (including difference in tax rate) 3,083.86 (156.04)
Total income tax expense/(credit) - -

(¢) Tax losses

Particulars

31 March zo21 31 March 2020

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax has been recognised:

Tax losses

Business loss 29,504.38 22,066.95
Capital loss: Short term 11,795.10 11,795.10
Unabsorbed tax depreciation 21,136.23 18,415.30
Potential tax benefit @ 29.12% on Business loss (FY 2019-20 @34.944%) 14,746.54 14,146.12
Potential tax benefit @ 17.472% on Capital loss short term (FY 2019-20 @17.472%) 2,060.84 2,060.84

(a) Unabsorbed depreciation does not have any expiry period.
(b) Business losses have an expiry ranging from 3 to 8 years as at the reporting date.
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Note 28: Earnings per shares

1] Basie
Numiber of equity sharves a the begmuing of the vear

P4 UOLE0,000
Numbr of equity shaves af the end of the v

V05O, 000
Weighted avernge number of eguity shor 5 ovt=tanding during the veay LA} A0 )
N Ividue of ench vouity Share (Ks)) 10,010 10,00
Profit [ [Loss) for the vear (R in lokhs) (B} (el B ag)
Earmings per share (Basic) (Rs)) (B/A) [T [ERT ]

(i) Diluted
Welghtod average mumber of eauity sharves cotstanding diring the year 50,46.98.800
Eanmings per share (Diluted ) (Bs0)

(AN [t

Naote 29: Contingent liahilities

Particulars 31 March 2021 g1 March 2020

authorties

550 S0
(h) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis
(1} Banes, Taxes, Duties ete, demanded by varions Authorities 174 T
(i) Others s A
(e} Income Tax mallers
il 11,48

Pt apitnon of the managemient, no provision is copsidered necessary for the disputes mentioned above on the ground that theve see T chances of siecessiul onteome of app

Note qo: Capital and other commitments

Particulars

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

pital acceonnt vemnining fo be exeented §Li
41 March zosao: By a8,

Gl.02 50,07

Note g1 The Company
remaining uoipaid o v

s certaim dues to suppliees registered under Micro, Small and Mediom Enteeprises Development Aet, 2oo6 CMSMED Adt') The «
il

it o the sad MEMED Act o

TUs purst

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Principal amount due o supplier registerod voderr the MEMED At and remaining aipald
o at the vear end

R Iy RELON

st dhue o suppliees registir

Pancler the MEMED Act ond remnaining LR T |
L oso year end

Praneipal amounts paid 1o sapplices regstered under the MEMED Act,
Beverd the appointed duy during the vieas

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MEMED Act, 10 suppliess
repistered under the MEMED Aet, hevond the appointed day during the

LT

Tnverest pad, ynder Secti

U of MEMED Act, to supplicrs registered
vnder the MEMED Act, beyond the appoimted div doring the vear

Enrerest due wd payable vowards supplices cegistered under MEMED

A, for pavanents already made

Further mterest semmmming doe and payable foe endier vears

&




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

Note 32: Capital management

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Risk management

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
which comprises issued share capital and accumulated reserves disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

The Company's capital management objective is to achieve an optimal weighted average cost of capital while continuing to safeguard the
Company’s ability to meet its liquidity requirements (including its commitments in respect of capital expenditure) and repay loans as they fall due.

Note 33 : Fair value measurements

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet
items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2 to the financial
statements.

Financial instruments by catego
31 March 2021 Total Carrying

Particulars :
Simfapars FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost Value

Total Fair Value

Financial assets - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 650.08 650.08 650.08

Trade receivables - - 2,996.54 2,096.54 2,096.54
Loans = : 13,037.85 13,037.85 13,037.85
Investments - - 0.70 0.70 0.70
Other financial assets 1 . 449.89 449.89 449.89
Total financial assets - - 17,135.06 17,135.06 17,135.06

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 30,996.83 30,996.83 30,996.83
Trade and other payables B - 5,133.30 5,133.30 5:133.30
Other financial liabilities - . 2,943.10 2,043.10 2,943.10
Total financial liabilities - - 39,073.23 39,073.23 39,073.24

31 March 2020 Total Carrying

Particulars

Total Fair
FVOCI Amortised cost Value tal¥a ant! g

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - 647.15 647.15 647.15
Trade receivables - - 2,707.20 2,707.20 2.707.20
Loans - - 4,264.03 4,264.03 4,264.03
Investments - - 0.70 0.70 0.70
Other financial assets - - 480.94 480.94 480.94
Total financial assets - B 8,100.02 8,100.02 8,100.02

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - = 61,625.66 61,625.66 61,625.66
Trade and other payables - - 3,868.45 3,868.45 3.868.45
Other financial liabilities - - 6,152.02 6,152.02 6,152.02
Total financial liabilities - - 71,646.13 71,646.13 71,646.13

A




Cygnel Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 34: Financial risk management

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest
rates, equity prices, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The
Company has a risk management policy which not only covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risks associated
with the financial assets and liabilities such as interest rate risks and credit risks. The risk management policy is approved
by the Board of Directors. The risk management framework aims to:

(i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations on the
Company’s business plan.

(ii) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.

(A) Credit risk

The Company takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the company. Financial assets that potentially expose the Company to credit risks are listed
below:

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Trade receivables 2,096.54 2,707.20
Other financial assets 449.89 480.94
Total 3:446.43 3,188.14

Other receivables as stated above are due from the parties under normal course of the business and as such the Company
believes exposure to credit risk to be minimal.

i) Trade and other receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company through established policy and procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally carrving upto 9o days credit
terms. The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at various levels within organisation
to ensure proper attention and focus for realisation. Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. Where
eredit risk is high, domestic trade receiavbles are backed by security deposits. Export receivables are backed by letters of
credit,

In determining the allowances for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by
computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes
into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss
allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix.

The Company's exposure to customers is diversified and there is no significant credit exposure on account of any single
customer as at 31 March 2021 & 31 March 2020

The company is making provisions on trade receivables based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The reconciliation of
ECL is as follows:

Particulars € 2019-20
Opening balance 174.43 188.58
Charge in statement of profit and loss (6.24) (14.15)

Release to statement of profit and loss = .

Utilised during the year :

Balance at the end of the year 168.19 174.43




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(ii) Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1):
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from
prices).

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions
that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based
on available market data.

31 March 2021

Particulars

Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Investments - - = -

£ 31 March 2020
Particulars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets:
Investments = 2 = -

(iii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

(a) Investments carried at fair value are generally based on market price quotations. However in cases where quoted prices
are not available the management has involved valuation experts to determine the fair value of the investments. Different
valuation techniques have been used by the valuers for different investments. Equity Instruments carried at fair value through
other comprehensive income. These investments in equity instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for long,
term strategic purpose. The Company has chosen to designate this investments in equity instruments at FVOCI since, it
provides a more meaningful presentation.

(b) Fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows. The carrying amounts of other
borrowings with floating rate of interest are considered to be close to the fair value.

(¢) The carrying amounts of remaining financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values.

(d) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent
limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all finaneial instruments. the fair valine estimates
presented above are not necessavily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in sale
transactions as ol respeetive dates. As sueh, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may b
different from the amounts reported at cach reporting date.

., =




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient
liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements,

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Furthermore, the Company has aceess to funds from
othersources. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and in equity shares, which carry no or low market risk

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analysc the group's finaneial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:
« all financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Less than 1
year

Contractual maturities of financial liabi
31 March 2021

More than 5
years

1-3 years 3 -5 years Total

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 14,088.22 4:370.50 4,874.19 7,700,000

Trade pavables 5:133.30 =

Other financial liabilities 2,908.09 46,20

Total financial liabilities 23,029.61 4,416.76 4.874.19 7,700.00 40,020,56

More than 5
years

Less than 1
year

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

31 March 2020 1-3 years

3 - 5 years

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 10,312.50 - - 69,157.08
Trade payables 3.8968.45 - 3.808.45
Other fimancial liabilities 6,120.41 41.64 - 6,162.45
Taotal financial liahilities 68.833.49 10,354.44 - - 79,187.88




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(C) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Company deals with foreign curreney loan, trade payables ete and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk associated with

exchange rate movement.

The Company operates internationally and portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently the Company is
exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales in overseas and purchases from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. Foreien
currency exchange rate exposure is partly balanced by purchasing of goods, commodities and services in the respective currencies.

Foreign currency risk exposure

The company's exposure to foreign curreney risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR (foreign currency amount multiplied

by closing rate), are as follows:-

As at 31 March zoz21

Particulars

Financial assets
Trade receivables

Derivative Asset

Financial liabilities
Trade pavables
Borrowings

Derivative liability

Usb

Amount in foreign
currency

Amount in local
currency

0.73 52.94

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

EUR rpie

Amount in local |
currency

Amount in
foreign currency

Net exposure to foreign currency risk

0.73] 52.94

As al 31 March 2020

Particulars

Financial assets
Trade receivables
Derivative Asset

Financial liabilities
Trade pavables
Borrowings

Derivative liability

usD
Amount in foreign
currency

Amount in local
currency

95.89

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

EUR i
Amount in loeal’’
currency

Amount in
foreign currency

Net exposure to foreign currency risk

95.89

Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments,

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Impact on loss before tax/equity
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

USD sensitivity
INR/USD appreciates by 5% (31 March 2021 - 5%) (2.65) (4.79)
INR/USD depreciates by 5% (31 March 2021 - 5%) 2.65 4.79

EUR sensitivity

INR/EUR appreciates by 5% (31 March 2021 - 5%)

INR/EUR depreciates by 5% (31 March 2021 - 5%)

* Holding all other variables constant




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates

The Company’s exposure Lo the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with foating
interest rates.

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to eash flow interest rate risk.
During 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Company’s borrowings at variable rate were mainly denominated in INR.,

The Caompany’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.
(a) Interest rate risk exposure

On Financial Liabilities:
The exposure of the Company’s financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-z0
Variable rate borrowings 31,518.91 64.341.532
Fixed rate borrowings = -
Total borrowings 31,518.91 64,341.32

(b) Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive Lo higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as below:

Impact on loss before tax/equity

31 March 2021 31 March zo0z0
Interest expense rates — increase by 50 basis points (50 bps)* (157.59) (321.71)
Interest expense rates — decrease by 50 basis points (50 bps)* 157.59 321.71
* Holding all other variables constant

(iii) Price risk

(a) Exposure

The Company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Company and elassified in the balance sheet at fair value
through OCL To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Company diver
are not held for trading purposes.

s its portfolio. In general, these investments

(b) Sensitivity
The table below summarizes the impact of increases/decreases of the share prices on the Company's equity.

Impact on equity

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Share price - Increase 5%
Share price - Decrease 5%

ns




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 35: Segment reporting

The Company's Chief operating decision makers viz. board of directors examine the Company's performance as a single
segment, viz. "Rayon, Transparent paper and Chemicals business".

a. Geographical information
Revenue from external customers:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Particulars

Total Segment Revenue Total Segment Revenue

Rayon,Transparent paper and Chemicals business
India 22.768,21 40,130.27
Other countries Q7111 1,434.50
Total Segment revenue 23.739.32 31,504.77

b. Two of the customers of the entity accounts for approximately 17% and 16% of the sales being made for the year ended 31
March 2021 (Two of the customers of the entity accounts for approximately 18% and 14% of the sales being made for the year
ended 31 March 2020)




Cygnet industries Limited
Notes fi ing part of fi fal

Note 36 : Related Party Transactions

List of Related Parties and relationship *
A) Holding
Kesorim Industries Limited

B) Post Retivement Benefit Plan

B.K. Birla Group of Companies Provident Fund Institution,
Birla Industries Provident Fund Tnsitution.

KICM Gratuity Fund

C) Others { With whom transaction has taken place)
MSK Travels and Tours Lid

Arbela Trading & Services Lid
Kashi Prosad Khandebwal

Nature of Transaction/ Relationship

Rent Expense:

(Al amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Holding

R el | 17.42 |

Management Service Fee Expense:

Holding

|
sazaa | 3780 |

Tnterest Expense:

Halding

3.266.91 | 4,743.67

| |
|

Other expenses through reimt

Huolding

= | 2.6 |

Conversion of advances in to equity shares

| |

Holding

49,648.69 | = ]

Interest paid (net of TDS)

| |

Holding

| 420543 |

Laan Taken

Holding

19.185.17 | 388415 |

Loan Repayment

Haolding

r
6.377.47 I 30,530.76

Sule of Transparent Piper

Holding

A

iB.yq |

Tours & Travels Services

]

Cithers

|
85 | sz.0q |

Provident Fund Contribution

Past Retivement Benefit Plan

1,294.47 1,411.35

Gratuity Contribution to KICM

Post Retirement Renefit Plan

b Hg #3065

Reimbursement claimed

Powt Retirement Benefit Plan

49785 | 1411 |

| Lon Taken

l Others

| - | 709.50 |

[ Laan Repuyment

| I |

| tithers

1 A0H.gh ] 290,00 |

Interest Paid (net of TDS)

Others

2R.48

Loan given

Others

l 110,57

[ Interest income

[ Others

| saa |

[ Director Sitting Fess

| Others

[ Interest Expense

| Others

| = ]
|

l 30.79 [ 32.73




(B} Ouwistanding balances

(AN amonnts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

d as at 318t

hip

Nature of Transaction/ Relations

Payable

Port Retirement Benefit Plan i - - ]_ 164
Payable-Lown: o F ]
Halding | \asnag | VLT
Receivable feam Holdi
Sales of Materials

Payahle :
Tours & Travelsservices

Payahble-Loan

Others

] Receivable-Loan

! Others
! Receivable-Tnterest (Net of TDS) ] ]
[ Others | |

Payahle-Intere

ihhers

* as certified by the managemaent of the company

Al pefer notn 13 Fegarding gustanteo pedeived from holding campany waninting to NTL likh (previius vear By 25,000 lukh) for bormowing /finacng obligation.




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

Note no. 37: IND AS 116, Lease Impaet
The estimated Impact of ind AS 116 on the Company's financial statemonts as at 315t March, 7021 is as fallows:-

Balance Sheet: The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases’ effective 1st April 2019 and applied the Standard to its leases: This has resulted in recognising a Right:
of-use assets of Rs. 112.03 Lakhs and a corresponding lease liabllity of Rs 112.03 Lakhs as at 1st April 2019. This has also resulted |n re-grouping of Leasehold Land
of Rx 220,37 Lakhs under erstwhile lease standard to ‘Right-of-use assets’ as at 1st April 2019

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
1. Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31st March 2021
Category Of RoU Asset

Land Building
Amount Amount

215.52

Particulars

Balance as-at 01-04-2020

Additions during the year

Beletion during the year
Depreciation

Halance as at 31-03-2021

2. The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021,

Particulars
Current Lease Liability

Nen Current Lease Liability

3. The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021:

Particulars
Balance as at D1-04-2020

Amount

Additions during the year
Finance cost accrued during the period
De

tions
Payment of lease liabilities
Balance as at 31-03-2021

4. Expense pertaining to leases which has been identified as Short Term .
5. Expense pertaining to leases which has been identified as Low Value |

6. Contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 on an undiscounted basis |

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease llabilities as at March 31, 2021 on an undiscounted basis;

Particulars Amount

Less than one year 64,60
One to five years AE16
More than five years

7. Total amount of Variable Lease Payment, 93.89

B. Nature of lessee's leasing activities . Warehouse/Office aase

9. Any future cash outflows to which the lessee is potentially exposed that
are not reflected in the measurement of lease liabilities.




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

NOTE 38 - Effect of COVID-19

As per the directives of both the Central and State Governments in the wake of COVID-19 pandenic, the operations of the Company were impacted, due o shurdawn of all
plants and offices following nationwide lockdown by the Government of Indi The Company has resumed operanons m a phased manner as per directives from the
Government of India. The Management has considered the possible eftects, if any, that may resull from the pandemic on the carrying amounts of current assets afier
considerme mtemal and extermal senrees of nformaton meluding the possible futire uncertainiies i the plobal economic conditens as at the dae of approval of these
financtal results Given the uncertamties associted with pandemie’s nature and duration. the actuals may differ from the estimates considered in these financial results The
Company continues 1o closely montton the rapidly chamging sitnation.
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ety hae losses dormmzathe preseons e aad s comnimeed 1o mcmy losses dueme e

o s, promnnby e e lser solumes wineh hiveooesabid m
GO e st o thic presiines v eis and st e Xlaich, 2020 The det ciirrent Tabilities s w STt A lech, 21 were Bs 17 dhedores Fugtlier, e
o i e Comply witlneet i Brandl debt Covammusdunng e vear sdeloecd daiepay mgm, however, the s wilssabsegqienty vepand a0 il aod conmplic wil

il Lt S e 2020 The sdebin s oy anlsed dise B oty pesannehe Pl £ Obpais stimeds s be regubar i aveeting s obdigationas on 3 0 Sl 2000

I e Rened of Breectons s es abmted tiese conditmms amd i advrsed sgapenent to ake measimes wooamprave e Daadaocepndimmpnd the © ompamy T Uy s
takiie medissaes st i o bopelil o semmg Sk Capial Faclimes fomn @ Temders, whngh will gl tho € ampstinn 1 <gale g it oparatiogis mmd msdt e
semting B cbbimions Lhe Compansts als i e coiiimie as i pomp coneant s depamdent an succoss il suteanme o i e enhoned maagsenent plan
Al e Promten Virege. e comsistenthy demmanstianad b Boapese commmmen i e ©ompumy and saomld contintie sl it sepport i e s aid when
weeessitry Aesonlmaedy e tmseslonfrmaton bieve Deen preparcd o the Disis et the Conipany sollgontmus as o pomeconeem Sales e wome diawn sremicinly
e vorthe Towkatosencirme CON U oree wases et thint sl B reseoeted ool nonmal Tevel

Note 300 Previous veass tisure bas bovn veoggronped n

] whime exer sy ook 0 eompaeahlewithe enment vears e

Foe and on behalf of Bonrd of Direc
of Cvgnet Industries Li

N 2

Harsh Bajaj

For Neha Bothra & Co.
Firm Begisteation Nomlwp guhg sk
Chortered Advimmtants

wajit Sen

IN G the,

Chitf fapentive Officer Clief Frteered g

Neha Bothra bhharrmic
Fooy Sha |

Pty D K
Membership N oo Deepak Kumar Sharma Sharmila Nath

Iheeiton Tt

JHN At TN e 7

VIEUIO: | g iy et MW‘I—J—’ Lpd===
B -

Pliwws Kolkaty Sneha Kajaria Rashi Prasad Khandelwal
Pnite sy Diteton vt

FHNG (oSt bt THEN s

A‘ L..""f":_l A,q(-'\. -qn.,
Ankita Aparwal
Conpiibly Seergtnvg




Cygnet Industries Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements

1.

Company Information

Cygnet Industries Limited ("the Company") is a public company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company was incorporated on
15th June, 2015. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing Rayon,
Transparent paper and Chemicals at Kuntighat, District Hooghly, West Bengal with registered
office at Kolkata, West Bengal.

The financial statements as at 31 March 2021 present the financial position of the Company.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 were approved by the Board of Directors
and authorized for issue on 13" May 2021.

Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

(1) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(1i) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the
exception of certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair values by Ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

a) Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises of purchase cost, borrowing
costs if capitalization criteria are met and other directly attributable cost of bringing the assets
to its working condition for intended use. The cost also comprises of exchange differences
arising on translation / settlement of long term foreign currency monetary items pertaining
to acquisition of such depreciable asset. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price.

b) Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant & equipment is added to its
carrying amount only if it increases the future benefits from the existing assets beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance.




¢) Capital work in progress is stated at cost (including borrowing cost, where applicable and
adjustment for exchange difference referred on Note 2.3 below) incurred during
construction/installation period relating to items or projects in progress.

d) Losses arising from the retirement of and gains or losses arising from disposal of property,
plant and equipment which are carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of profit and
loss.

e) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Class of assets Estimated useful life (in years)

Buildings 3 to 60 Years _

Plant and Equipment o 51040 Years

Furniture and Fixtures o 3 to 10 Years ) 1
| Office Equipment 3 to 10 Years - _ o

Vehicles 8 Years o ‘

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
asset's useful life or over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

2.3 Intangible assets

Intangible property, plant and equipment are capitalized where it is expected to provide future
enduring economic benefits and amortized on a straight line basis. Capitalization costs include
license fees and the cost of implementation/ system integration services. The Costs are
capitalized in the year in which the relevant intangible asset is implemented for use.

Class of assets
Software

Estimated useful life (in years)

2.4 Impairment

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.




2.5 Lease

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 — Leases using the modified
retrospective method. Under modified retrospective approach, the Company has recorded
lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the
incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease
recognised under Ind AS 17. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate for leases
initially recognised upon the first-time application of Ind AS 116 was 11.89%. The Company
applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristies.

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing
arrangements, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. The
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an
identified asset and the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset
shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs
incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operaling expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. When the lease Liability is remensured due to ehange in contract
terms, a corresponding change is made o the carrying amount of right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in the profit and loss account if the carvying amount of right-of~use asset is reduced
Lo 2010,

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance lease. Such assets acquired are capitalised at fair value of the asset or
present value of the minimum lease payments at the ineeption of the lease, whichever is lower.
l.eases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred
Lo the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payvments made under operating,
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit orloss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to inerease in line
with expected general inflation to ¢compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost

INCTCases.

As a lessor:

[n respeet of assets given on operating lease, the lease rental income is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipls are
structured to inerease in line with expected general inflation Lo compensate for the expected
inflationary cost incrcases, There is no change in accounting as o lessor due to adaption of Ind
AS 116 Leases,




2.6 Inventories

[nventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on weighted
average / first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis, as considered appropriate by the Company. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labor, other direct costs
and related production overheads. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Provision is
made for obsolete/slow moving/defective stocks, wherever necessary.

2.7 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
instrument and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(a) Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Other bank balances

Other bank balances include deposits with maturity less than twelve months but greater than
three months and balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and
usage.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.




Financial assets measured al fair value

Financial assets are measured at ‘Fair value through other comprehensive income’ (FVOCI) if
these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures) which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments. Such
an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial
recognition of such equity investments.

Financial asset not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income is carried at ‘Fair value through the statement of profit and loss’ (FVPL).

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the ‘Expected credit losses’ (ECL) associated
with its assets carried at amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The Company recognizes
loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial asset.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from
initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition of financial assels

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to

the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.




Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method where the
time value of money is significant.

Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of
borrowings is recognized over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recngnition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company uses certain derivative financial instruments
to reduce business risks which arise from its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate
fluctuations. The instruments are confined principally to forward foreign exchange contracts

Derivatives are initially accounted for and measured at fair value from the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each
reporting period.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of defaull, insolvency or bankruptey of the
Company or the counterparty.

2.8 Employee Benefils
Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments
made to state managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined

contribution schemes where the Company’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to
those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.




Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each balance sheet
date. Re-measurement gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost and net interest on
the net defined benefit liability/(asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs.

Past service cost is recognized as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment oceurs
or when any related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognized, whichever is
carlier.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheel represents the present value
of the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value plan assets.

Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences which are expected to be availed or encashed within
twelve months from the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation
towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as
the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlements as at the year
end.

Accumulated compensated absences which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond
twelve months from the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The
Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the
end of each year. Actuarial loss/gains are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
year in which they arise.

Short-term Employee Benefits (i.e. benefits payable within one year) are recognized in the
period in which employee services are rendered.

Ind AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement:

The amendment require an entity to use updated assumptions to determine current service
costs and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement, and to recognize in the Statement of Profit and Loss as part of past service cost, or
gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously
recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling. The adoption of the standard did not
have any material impact to the financial statements.

2.9 Government Grants
Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable

assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached
conditions.




Government grants relating Lo income are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and
presented within other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

2.10 Provision and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions: Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimalte of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.

2.11 Taxes on Income

Taxes on income comprises of current laxes and deferred taxes. Current tax in the Statement
of Profit and Loss is provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
period using tax rates and tax laws enacted during the period, together with any adjustment to
tax pavable in respeet of previous vears.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrving amounts of assets
and labilities and the amounts used lor taxation purposes (Lax base), al the tax rates and tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
are recognized for the future tax consequences to the extent it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deduetible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is nol accounted forif il arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or

cquity. are disclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as apphcable,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same taxation
authority. Currenl tax assels and tax labilities are offset where the entity has a legally




2.11

enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax
laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set
off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in
the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future
economic benefit associated with the asset will be realized.

Ind AS 12 — Income taxes — Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to
the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over the income tax treatments under Ind AS 12.
According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax
authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have
used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most
likely amount or the expected value of tax treatment when determining taxable profit / loss, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and the tax rates. The standard permits two
possible methods of transition — (i) Full Retrospective Approach — Under this approach,
Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,
without using hindsight and (ii) Retrospective with cumulative effect of initially applying
Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting
comparatives. The effective date of for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual period
beginning on or after April 01, 2019. The company will adopt the standard on April 01, 2019
and has decided to adjusted the cumulative effect of in equity on the date of initial application
i.e. April 01, 2019 if any without adjusting comparatives. The adoption of this standard did not
have any material impact to the financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12:

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall
recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or
events. The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact to the financial
statements. It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where the
entity pays a tax on dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to the taxation
authorities on behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid or payable to taxation authorities
continues to be charged to equity as a part of dividend in accordance with Ind AS 12.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue shall be recognized to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers

in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services.




Sales of goods

Sales are recognized when control of the products has been transferred to the buyer, the buyer has
full discretion over the channel and price to sell and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the buyer’s acceptance of the products per the terms of the contract and no significant uncertainty
exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. It
includes excise duty and excludes value added tax/sales tax/Goods and Service tax.

Revenue is recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume
discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts, using the
expected value method, and revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal will not occur. A contract liability is recognized for expected volume discounts
payable to customers in relation to sales made until the end of the reporting period.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is

due, which are otherwise recorded as contract assets.

Interest Income

[nterest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
the effective interest rate applicable

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s rights to receive payment
have been established.

Rental Income

Rental income from investment properties and subletting of properties is recognized on a time
proportion basis over the term of the relevant leases.

2.12 Borrowing Cosls

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred in connection with borrowing and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Premium in the form of fees paid on refinancing of loans are accounted
for as an expense over the life of the loan using effective interest rate method. All other

borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

2.14 Foreign currency transactions and translations

i ion curren

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is the
functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements




Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions
remaining unsettled at the end of the year are translated at year end exchange rates.
Gains/losses arising oul of fluctuations in the exchange rates are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

2.15 Research and Development Expenditure

Revenue Expenditure on Research and Development is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which it is incurred and Capital Expenditure relating to Research and
Development are included in property, plant and equipment.

2.16 Earnings per share

(1) Basic earnings per shore

Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing:
« the profit attributable to owners of the Company
« by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(i1) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

« the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

« the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares

2,17 Segment reporling

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of manufacturing Rayon, Transparent Paper
and Chemicals. The Company operates in local and export segments geographically.

The Company’s organizational structure and governance processes are designed to support
effective management of Rayon, Transparent Paper and Chemicals business. The business
results have been reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Board of Directors, which is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (Refer note 35).

2.18 Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

[n preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.




The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future
periods affected.

Significant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities
include useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, impairment of
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investments, provision for employee
benefits and other provisions, recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and
contingencies, measurement of lease liability and Right to Use Asset.

Rounding off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.




